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Powered by strategically located state-of-the-art manufacturing facilities, we are relentlessly
pushing ourselves to break benchmarks on what defines high quality building materials.



FROM THE MD’S DESK

DEAR SHAREHOLDERS,

Companies that adapt to an ever changing macro and micro economic
environment are the ones that deliver sustainable results and value. These
changes stretch the capability of an organization in integrating new
products into the organization and aligning people, processes and systems
to ensure that they deliver on the promise to all stakeholders.

At NCL Buildtek Ltd., your Company’s objective of being a one-stop-shop for
building materials is manifesting in the form of a wide range of
ever-growing high quality products that complement the existing portfolio.
The objective coupled with Your Company’s constant endeavour to identify
changing consumer behaviour has led us to invest in and enter into product

verticals that drive towards our vision.

Over the last few years, our strategy of geographical expansion, deeper
penetration into existing markets and expanding our product portfolio is
yielding results by growing your Company from a 300crores to 500crores MR. B. SUBBA RAJU

Company. Investing for the future is the key to yielding long term results. (Managing Director)
NCL Buildtek Ltd.

YOUR COMPANY’S FY24 PERFORMANCE

Our priorities heading into FY24 were to focus on profitability, efficiencies, building a high performing team and driving
growth in segments such as Aluminium windows & doors and tile adhesives. | am pleased to report that our Aluminium
business has grown at 59% YoY with an order pipeline that still has potential. Your Company bagged the single largest
Aluminium order to-date of about Rs.17crores. The Tile Adhesives business grew by a moderate 8% YoY with significant
potential still untapped. The required infrastructure to support growth in this segment is falling in place. Notable
efficiencies were achieved in the Fly Ash blocks division which contributed to a growth in the bottom-line.

Your Company, for the first time in it's history, was recognized as a “Great Place to Work” which is a testament to the
strong team we are building here.

A SUMMARY OF KEY NUMBERS:

« 3% drop in Gross Sales to about Rs. 506.70crores

- 8% increase in EBITDA to Rs. 49.80crores

+ 27% increase in PBT to Rs. 23.10crores

+ 64% increase in EBITDA in the Flyash Blocks division from Rs. 8.7crores to Rs. 14.20crores
« Highest ever EPS of Rs. 13.76 post bonus-issue

The drop in top-line was offset by an increase in our bottom-line which demonstrated our ability to prioritize, pivot
based on market demand and deliver on our goals. While there were positives, liquidity challenges in the market saw
demand taper in the second half of FY24, This is expected to be a medium term phenomenon considering the macro
economic factors in the last 12 months.

ADVANCING

In FY25, to ensure that your Company caters to the changing market requirements, we are establishing a Steel Doors
manufacturing unit. The plant is expected to be commissioned in Q4 FY25 with the operations and sales team being
assimilated.

While development plans being undertaken by the new government in Andhra Pradesh show promise, the timing of the
execution is yet to be crystallized. In addition, some risks such as slowdown in the Telangana real-estate market, liquidity
constraints that we saw in the second half of FY24 continue to exist that may impede growth.

As communicated last year, we have increased our spending on branding and advertising to expand our brand recall
pan-India and we expect that to continue as we enter into and establish ourselves in new product verticals.

| strongly believe that your Company, through it's pan-India presence and a diverse product portfolio, is well positioned
to sustain the progress we have made in the last few years

! would like to thank each of you for your confidence and belief in our product offerings and look forward
to achieving our shared goals with your support.
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NCL ABS DOORS
ABSOLUTELY SMART DOORS \
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Flush doors are history. It's time to switch to revolutionary abs doors from the house of \\\ :
NCL Buildtek Ltd. With the strength and rigidity of acrylonitrile butadiene styrene (abs), N
These are ready to use moulded doors that are durable and maintenance - free, with

Aesthetic appeal that makes interiors come alive. Once installed, they stay problem free forever.
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FLYASH BLOCKS
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THE LARGEST MANUFACTURER OF
FLYASH BLOCKS IN SOUTH INDIA
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NCL
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R - PUTTY

The Engineered Putty

NCL WALL-X PUTTY

« Choose NCL Wall-X Putty with unique Hi-5 Advantage.
CLXP technology ensures smoothness of walls, acts as protactive
base and levelling of wall surfaces and makes it ideal for primer
coating and painting

NC SMOOTH
FLAKING FIMISH
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PUTTY

The Enginesred Putty
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NCL |illtek

SUPERTFINE

ADVANTAGES

» India’s pioneering Putty: NCL Alltek Superfine

» Putties that truly compliment wall & wallet
« Wide range of ready-to-apply putties

INTERIORS %

NCL ALLTEK SUPERFINE PUTTY

» Acrylic based plaster for interiors

» Ready-mixed paste for direct application

» Easy application

EXTERIORS

« Specially formulated for long-term protection of
surfaces from exterior climatic conditions

Vet Quaatity: 28 Kg
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NCL ALLTEK WHITE CEMENT PUTTY
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BUILDTEK LTD

Present Across India

BUILD SMART. LIVE HABPEY

MNCL Buildtek Ltd - a leader in manufacturing of
wide range of building materials has its operations
spread across the nation for over 25 years. The
company’s range of products are well recognised

JAMML &
KASHMIR and accepted by many state Governments as
+ - preferred manufacturer and supplier and have
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Key Performance Indicators: FY 2023-24

. Standalone Consolidated
Particulars p— _—
Rs. Lakhs US $ Million Rs. Lakhs US $ Million
Net Turnover 43,548.83 52.99 43,548.83 52.99
EBIDTA 4,971.18 6.05 5,032.32 6.12
Profit / (Loss) before Tax 2,310.15 2.81 2,370.84 2.88
Profit / (Loss) after Tax 1,592.56 1.94 2,433.65 2.96
Contribution to Exchequer 7,994.01 9.73 8,071.97 9.82
| EPS (Rs.) | 13.76 | 21.03
Net Turnover (Standalone) Rs. in Lakhs Profitability Rs. in Lakhs

50,000 45,035 3500 3001

43,549

5,000 40,748 3,000

40,000 37,243 -

35,000 !
2,000 1,758

30,000 28,544 26,489 i 1,593
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20,000 1,000 696

15,000 500 I

10,000 0

5,000 (500) 2018-19 2019-20 zoln 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24

0

2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 (1,000) (700)
Contribution to Exchequer Rs. in Lakhs Book Value of Shares- Consolidated Rs. in Lakhs
9,000 250 189
7,968 7,994
8,000 7,781
200
7,000 166
6,000 5,807 - 147
4,967 129 x129 124
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3,943
4,000 100
3,000
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0
0 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24

2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 * Bonus shares are issued in 1:1
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NOTICE

NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the Thirty Eighth (38") Annual General Meeting of the members of NCL Buildtek Limited will be held on
Saturday, 21* September, 2024 at 10.30 a.m. IST through Video Conferencing (“VC”)/ Other Audio-Visual Means (“OAVM”) platform in
accordance with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with MCA General Circulars and Circular No. 09/2023 dated
25" September, 2023 to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1.

To consider Stand-Alone and the Consolidated Audited Financial Statements for the financial year 31% March 2024, and the Reports of the
Auditors and Directors’thereon.

2. Todeclare Dividend for the financial year ended 31* March, 2024,

. Toappointadirectorin place of Mr. Kapula Satya Subram,who retires by rotation and is eligible for re-appointment.

To appointadirector in place of Mr.Vatsavayi Venkata Jagannadha Raju (VVJ Raju), who retires by rotation and is eligible for
re-ppointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:
5. Appointment of Ms. Kalidindi Pooja (DIN: 03496114) as an Executive Director of the Company:

To consider and, if thought it, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 197, 198 and 203 read with Schedule V and other applicable provisions, if any, of
the Companies Act 2013, the approval of the Shareholders be and is hereby accorded for the appointment of Ms. Kalidindi Pooja (DIN:
03496114) as an Executive Director of the Company for period of 3 years with effect from the 8" November 2023 at the following remuneration
and other terms of appointment:

1. (a) Salary : Rs. 1,51,250/- per month
(b) Otherallowances : Rs. 30,754/- per month
(Subject to an annual increment of 10% on above)

2. Perquisites
a). Housing : @ 50% of the salary

b). Medical Reimbursement: For self and family subject to a ceiling of one month’s salary per year or three months salary in a period of
three years.

c). Leave Travel concession: For self and family subject to a ceiling of one month’s salary per year or three months salary in a period of
three years.

d). Gratuity: Equal to half month’s salary for each completed year of service and shall not be included in ceiling on remuneration.

). Company’s Contribution to Provident fund/Superannuation Fund atrates as per company’s rules, or an equivalent Special Allowance, if
so opted for by the appointee.

f). Earned/Privilege leave: As per the rules of the company and encashment of unavailed leaves with full pay and allowances at the end of
the tenure which shall not be included in ceiling on remuneration.

g). Provision of Car and Telephone/Cell phone: The Company shall provide car for official business and telephone at residence as well as
cell phone. However personal long distance calls on telephone/cell phone and use of car for private purposes shall be billed by the
company.

“FURTHER RESOLVED THAT that in the event of inadequacy of profits/loss in any year, the above remuneration be paid as minimum
remuneration to Ms. Kalidindi Pooja, in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made there under.”

Re-appointment of Mr. Vatsavayi Venkata Jagannadha Raju (DIN: 07573352) as an Executive Director of the Company:
To consider and, if thought it, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 197, 198 and 204, read with Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013, the approval of
the Shareholders be and is hereby accorded for the re-appointment of Mr. Vatsavayi Venkata Jagannadha Raju (Mr. VVJ Raju) (DIN:
07573352) as an Executive Director of the Company for a period of 3 years with effect from 01 August 2024 at the following remuneration and
other terms of appointment.”
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NOTICE

1. Salary:Rs. 2,25,000/- Per month.
(Subjectto an annual increment of 10% on salary)
2. Perquisites
a). Housing : @ 50% of the salary
b). Medical Reimbursement: For self and family subject to a ceiling of one month’s salary per year or three months salary in a period of
three years.

c). Leave Travel concession: For self and family subject to a ceiling of one month’s salary per year or three months salary in a period of
three years.

d). Gratuity: Equal to half month’s salary for each completed year of service and shall not be included in ceiling on remuneration.

). Company’s Contribution to Provident fund/Superannuation Fund at rates as per company’s rules, or an equivalent Special Allowance, if
so opted for by the appointee.

f). Earned/Privilege leave: As per the rules of the company and encashment of unavailed leaves with full pay and allowances at the end of
the tenure which shall not be included in ceiling on remuneration.

g). Provision of Car and Telephone/Cell phone: The Company shall provide car for official business and telephone at residence as well as
cell phone. However personal long distance calls on telephone/cell phone and use of car for private purposes shall be billed by the
company.

“FURTHER RESOLVED THAT that in the event of inadequacy of profits/loss in any years during his tenure, the above remuneration be paid
as minimum remuneration to Mr. VVJ Raju in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made there under.”

7. Remuneration to Cost Auditor
To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 148 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and The Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014, the remuneration payable to M/s. SR and Associates, Cost Accountants, the Cost Auditor appointed by the Board
of Directors of the Company fixed as Rs. 82,500/- (Rupees Eighty Two Thousand Five hundred Only) for the financial year ending March 31,
2025, be and is hereby ratified.”

By order of the Board
For NCL Buildtek Limited
(Formerly NCLAlltek&Seccolor Ltd)

Place: Hyderabad U. Divya Bharathi
Date:  08"August, 2024 Company Secretary
(Membership No:A31170)
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NOTICE

NOTES:

10.

1.

12.

Explanatory Statement setting out the material facts concerning each item of Special Businesses to be transacted at the General Meeting
pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013, is annexed hereto and forms part of the Notice.

In view of the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic and pursuant to General Circulars, No. 14/2020 dated April 8, 2020, No.17/2020 dated April 13,
2020, No. 20/2020 dated May 5, 2020, No. 02/2021 dated January 13, 2021, No. 21/2021 dated December 14,2021, No. 2/2022 dated May
5,2022 ,No. 10/2022 dated December 28, 2022 and No.09/2023 dated 25" September, 2023 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs
(collectively referred to as ‘MCA Circulars’), the Company is convening the 38" Annual General Meeting through Video Conferencing
(‘VC’) or Other Audio- Visual Means (‘OAVM’) also send notice of the Meeting and other correspondence related thereto, through
electronicmode without the physical presence of the Members.

In compliance with the said requirements of the MCA Circulars, electronic copy of the Notice along with the Annual Report for the financial
year ended 31* March, 2024 consisting of financial statements including Board’s Report, Auditors’ Report and other documents required to
be attached therewith (Collectively referred to as “Notice”) have been sent only to those members whose e-mail ids are registered with the
Company or the Demat Registrar or Depository Participants through electronic means and no physical copy of the Notice has been sent by
the Company to any member.The Company shall send the physical copy of the Annual Report for FY2023-24 only to those members who
specifically request for the same at: companysecretary@nclbuildtek.com.

The Notice for this Meeting along with requisite documents and the Annual Report for the financial year ended 2023-24 shall also be
available on the Company’s website www.nclbuildtek.com.

In view of the MCA Circulars, no proxy shall be appointed by the members. However, corporate members are required to send to the
Company/ RTA/ Scrutinizer, a certified copy of the Board Resolution, pursuant to section 113 of the Companies Act 2013, authorizing their
representative to attend and vote at the Meeting through VC.

In terms of the aforesaid Circulars, the businesses set out in the Notice will be transacted by the members only through remote e-voting or
through the e-voting system provided during the meeting while participating through VC facility.

The facility of e-voting through the same portal provided by Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) will be available during the
Meeting through VC also to those Members who do not cast their votes by remote e-voting prior to the Meeting. Members, who cast their
votes by remote e-voting, may attend the Meeting through VC but will not be entitled to cast their votes once again.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules,
2014 the company is providing e-voting facility to enable shareholders to cast their vote electronically on all the resolutions set forth in the
Notice to the 38" General Meeting to be held on Saturday, 21* September, 2024 at 10.30 am. The company has engaged the services of
Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) to provide the facility of voting through electronic means to the members to enable them
to cast their votes electronically in respect of all the businesses to be transacted at the aforesaid Meeting.

The Register of Members and Share Transfer Registers of the Company will remain closed from 14" September, 2024 (Saturday) to 21°*
September, 2024 (Saturday)(both days inclusive) for the purpose of payment of dividend and Annual General Meeting.

Payment of final dividend for the FY 2023-24 as recommended by the Board of Directors, if approved at this meeting, will be made to those
members whose names are on the Company’s Register of Members on Friday,13" September, 2024 (cut-off date) and those whose
names appear as Beneficial Owners as at the close of the business hours on Friday, 13" September, 2024 as per the details to be furnished
by the Depositories, viz. National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) for this
puUrpose.

Pursuant to Finance Act 2020, dividend income will be taxable in the hands of shareholders with effect from 1* April 2020 and the Company
is required to deduct tax at source (TDS) from dividend paid to the members at the applicable rates. For the prescribed rates for various
categories, the shareholders are requested to refer to the Finance Act, 2020 and amendments thereof.

Updation of mandate for receiving dividend directly in bank account through Electronic Clearing System (ECS Facility) or any
other means in atimely manner:

Shares held in physical form: Members holding shares in physical form are requested to send the following details/ documents to the
Company viz. NCL Buildtek Limited (Formerly NCL Alltek&Seccolor Ltd) at #10-3-162, 5" Floor, NCL Pearl, Sarojini Devi Road, Opp.
Hyderabad Bhawan, East Marredpally, Secunderabad, Telangana -500026, latest by 13" day, September, 2024:

a). Self declaration Form along with supporting documents. The said form is available on the website of the Company at:
www.nclbuildtek.com.

b). Cancelled cheque in original, bearing the name of the Member or first holder, in case shares are held jointly. In case name of the
holderis not available on the cheque, kindly submit the following documents:

i. Cancelled cheque in original;

i.  Bankattested legible copy of the first page of the Bank Passbook/ Bank Statement bearing the names of the account holders,
address, same bank account number and type as on the cheque leaf and full address of the bank branch.

c). Self-attested copy of the PAN Card of all the holders; and

d). Self-attested copy of any document (such as Aadhaar Card, Driving License, Election Identity Card, Passport) in support of the
address of the first holder as registered with the Company.
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13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

NOTICE

Further, Members are requested to refer to process detailed on the website of the Company at: www.nclbuildtek.com and proceed
accordingly.

Shares held in electronic form: Members holding shares in electronic form may please note that their bank details as furnished by the
respective DPs to the Company will be considered for remittance of dividend as per the applicable regulations of the DPs and the Company
will not be able to accede to any direct request from such Members for change/ addition/deletion in such bank details. Accordingly, the
Members holding shares in electronic form are requested to ensure that their Electronic Bank Mandate is updated with their respective DPs
by Friday, 13"day, September, 2024.

Further, please note that instructions, if any, already given by Members in respect of shares held in physical form, will not be automatically
applicable to the dividend paid on shares held in electronic form. For Members who are unable to receive the dividend directly in their bank
account through Electronic Clearing Service or any other means, due to non-registration of the Electronic Bank Mandate, the Company
shall dispatch the Warrant/Bankers’ Cheque/Demand Draft through postal service.

The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted for the purpose of ascertaining the quorum under
Section 103 of the CompaniesAct, 2013.

The members who have not yet registered their e-mail ids with the Company can register their email ids and contact nos. with the Company
for paperless communication by filling the GO GREEN Form in the Annual Report at page no. 103, and submit the same to the company
through email to the Secretarial Department on: companysecretary@nclbuildtek.com or 040-68313333 for registering their e-mail ids
on or before 13" September, 2024 (cut-off date). The Company shall send the Notice to such members whose e-mail ids get registered
within the aforesaid time enabling them to participate in the meeting and cast their votes.

If there is any change in the e-mail ID already registered with the Company, members are requested to immediately notify such change to
the Company in respect of shares held in physical form and to DPs in respect of shares held in electronic form.

Any person, who acquires shares of the Company and becomes Member of the Company after the date of sending of this Notice and holds
shares as on the cut-off date i.e.13" September, 2024 can cast the vote by following the instructions as mentioned in this Notice.

Queries on the accounts and operations of the Company or the businesses covered under the Notice may be sent to:
companysecretary@nclbuildtek.com at least Ten(10) days in advance of the meeting so that the answers may be made readily available
atthe meeting.

Unclaimed Dividends:

a. Interms of Sections 124 and 125 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Investor Education and Protection Fund Authority
(Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016 (as amended) (the “|EPF Rules”), the Company has transferred the unpaid or
unclaimed dividend declared up to the financial year 2015-16 to the Investor Education and Protection Fund (the IEPF) established by
the Central Government (GOI).

b.  Members may claim refund of their dividend which has been transferred in IEPF from the IEPF Authority by following the procedure as
prescribed under the IEPF Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016 (as amended from time to time).

¢.  The Company has uploaded the details of unpaid and unclaimed amounts lying with the Company as on 31*March, 2024 on the
website of the Company. The Members who have not yet claimed the dividends are requested to approach to the Company for
dividend payment.

d.  Members are requested to note that pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the |[EPF Rules, the Company is also
required to transfer the shares to the IEPF Suspense Account in respect of which dividends remained unpaid/ unclaimed for a period
of seven consecutive years or more. In compliance with the said requirements, the Company has transferred shares which were
liable to be transferred in favour of IEPF authority in the prescribed manner. Such shares could be claimed from I[EPF authority by
filing Form No.IEPF-5in the prescribed manner. The details thereof are available on the website of the Company.

e.  The Shareholders are requested to note that, the Company had sent reminders to the Shareholders whose dividends are remained
unpaid /unclaimed over a period of 7 years. These shares are due to transfer to IEPF by October 2024. The Details are available on
the Company website at: www.nclbuildtek.com

The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding maintained under Section 170 of the Companies Act, 2013
and the Register of Contracts and Arrangements in which Directors are interested maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act,
2013 shall be made available only in electronic form for inspection during the Meeting through VC which can be accessed at:
www.nclbuildtek.com

All other relevant documents referred to in the accompanying notice/explanatory statement Notice will also be available for electronic
inspection without any fee by the members from the date of circulation of this Notice up to the date of General Meeting ,i.e. September 21,
2024. Members seeking toinspect such documents can send an email to: companysecretary@nclbuildtek.com

Ms. D Soumya, Practicing Company Secretary (COP No- 13199) has been appointed as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the e-voting process in
a fair and transparent manner. The Scrutinizer shall within a period not exceeding two (2) working days from the conclusion of the E-voting
period unblock the votes in the presence of atleast two (2) witnesses not in the employment of the Company and make a Scrutinizer’s report
of the Votes castin favour or against, if any, forthwith to the Chairman of the Company.

Circular of Ministry of Corporate Affairs dated September 10, 2018, which provides that from 2" October 2018 transfer of securities would
not be processed unless the securities are held in the dematerialized form with a depository. In view of the same, now the shares cannot be
transferred in the physical mode. Members holding shares in physical form are therefore requested to Dematerialise their holdings
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23.

24.

25.

26.

27.

NOTICE

immediately. However, members can continue to make request for transmission or transposition of securities held in physical form.

Shareholders are further requested to note that any Corporate Actions namely Bonus Issues/ Rights Issue/any other Issue of Securities by
the Unlisted Public Company to be made only in Dematerialized form. Therefore all the shareholders are requested to dematerialise their
respective holdings. The Company has admitted its shares with NSDL & CDSL for Dematerialization.The ISIN Number is: INE243S01010

Shareholders holding share certificates in the name of “NCL Seccolor Limited” or "Alltek Coating Products Ltd." are requested to surrender
the original share certificates to the Company at its registered office address in exchange of which the Company will issue new share
certificates of “NCL Buildtek Ltd”.

The Shareholders are requested to lodge the share certificate of “NCL Alltek&Seccolor Ltd” or “NCL Buildtek Limited” for Dematerialization
instead of share certificates in the name of “NCL Seccolor Limited” or "Alltek Coating Products Ltd." to avoid the Rejection of Demat
requests.

Individual shareholders can avail the facility of nomination. Shareholders holding shares in physical form may write to the Company for
assistance. Shareholders holding in electronic form may approach their DP with whom they maintain their account quote ledger Folio/Client
IDin all the correspondence.

The investors may contact the Company Secretary for redressal of their grievances/queries. For this purpose, they may either

write to the Registered office address or e-mail their grievances/queries to the Company Secretary at the following e-mail
address at: companysecretary@nclbuildtek.com or Dial 040-68313333;Direct Line : 040-68313346

In accordance with the aforementioned MCA Circulars, the Company has appointed Central Depository Services (India) Limited for providing the
V/C facility to the members for participating in the Meeting. The members are requested to follow the following instructions in order to participate in
the Meeting through VC mechanism:

Refer the detailed E-voting instruction for knowing the login-id and password for joining the meeting which is part of this Notice;

The facility for joining the Meeting shall be kept open 30 minutes before the time scheduled to start the meeting i.e. 10.30 am and 30
minutes after the start of the meetingi.e. till 11.00 am.

SHAREHOLDERINSTRUCTIONS FORE-VOTING & JOINING VIRTUAL MEETINGS

1.

In line with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, the Notice calling the AGM has been
uploaded on the website of the Company at : www.nclbuildtek.com. The AGM Notice is also disseminated on the website of CDSL
(agency for providing the Remote e-Voting facility and e-voting system during the AGM)i.e., www.evotingindia.com.

The AGM has been convened through VC/OAVM in compliance with applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with MCA
Circular No.14/2020 dated April 8, 2020 and MCA Circular No.17/2020 dated April 13, 2020 and MCA Circular No.20/2020 dated May 05,
2020, MCA Circular No.02/2021 dated January 13, 2021, MCA Circular No.02/2022 dated 05" May, 2022, MCA Circular No.10/2022 dated
December 28,2022 and MCA Circular No.09/2023 dated 25" September, 2023.

THEINTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS FORREMOTE E-VOTING ARE AS UNDER:

a) The voting period begins at 09:00 am on 18" September 2024 and ends at 5:00 pm on 20" September 2024. During this period

shareholders of the Company, holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date 13" September,
2024 may cast their vote electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter.

b) Shareholders who have already voted prior to the meeting date would not be entitled to vote at the meeting venue.
c) Loginmethod for e-Voting and joining virtual meetings for Individual shareholders holding securities in Demat mode is given below:

Type of shareholders Login Method

Individual
Shareholders

holding securities in
Demat mode with 2) After successful login the Easi/ Easiest user will be able to see the e-Voting option for eligible companies where the

CDSL Depository evoting is in progress as per the information provided by company. On clicking the evoting option, the user will be

1) Users who have opted for CDSL Easi/ Easiest facility, can login through their existing user id and password. Option
will be made available to reach e-Voting page without any further authentication. The users to login to Easi/ Easiest
are requested to visit cdsl website www.cdslindia.com and click on login icon& New System Myeasi Tab.

able to see e-Voting page of the e-Voting service provider for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or
joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. Additionally, there is also links provided to access the system of
alle-Voting Service Providers, so that the user can visit the e-Voting service providers’ website directly.

3) [Ifthe user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at cdsl website www.cdslindia.com and
click onlogin & New System Myeasi Tab and then click on registration option.

4) Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing Demat Account Number and PAN No. from a
e-Voting link available on www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will authenticate the user by sending OTP on
registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the Demat Account. After successful authentication, user will be able to
see the e-Voting option where the evoting is in progress and also able to directly access the system of all e-Voting
Service Providers.

1) If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please visit the e-Services website of NSDL. Open web
browser by typing the following URL: https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.
Once the home page of e-Services is launched, click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” which is available
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iy under ‘IDeAS’ section. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID and Password. After successful
Individual , authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services and
Sharqholdgrs holding you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be re-
secunhgs in demat directed to e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual
mode with meeting & voting during the meeting.
NSDL Depository ) ) ) i o i i
2) If the user is not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is available at https:/eservices.nsdl.com.
Select “Register Online for IDeAS “Portal or clickat https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp
3) Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following
URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-
Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new
screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number hold with NSDL),
Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the screen. After successful authentication, you will be
redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service
provider name and you will be redirected to e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote during the
remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting
Individual
Shareholders You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through your Depository Participant registered
(holding securities with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. After Successful login, you will be able to see e-Voting option. Once you click
in demat mode) on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful authentication, wherein
login through their you can see e-Voting feature. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be redirected
Depository to e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting
Participants (DP) & voting during the meeting.

The instructions for remote e-voting through Depository Participants are as under:

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through your Depository Participant registered with NSDL/ CDSL for e-Voting
facility. After successful login, you will be able to see e-Voting option. Once you click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to NSDL/ CDSL
Depository site after successful authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider name
and you will be redirected to e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting &
voting during the meeting.

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID and Forget Password option available

atabovementioned website.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related to login through Depository i.e.

CDSL and NSDL

Login type Helpdesk details

with CDSL

Individual Shareholders holding securities in Demat mode | Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL helpdesk by

sending a request at helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at toll free no.
1800225533

with NSDL

Individual Shareholders holding securities in Demat mode | Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL helpdesk by

sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at toll free no.: 022-48867000
and 022-24997000

d) Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meetings for Physical shareholders and shareholders other than individual holding in

Demat form.

1) The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com.
2) Click on“Shareholders” module.
3) NowenteryourUserID
a. ForCDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID,
b. ForNSDL:8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID,
c. Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with the Company.

4

) Nextenter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login.
5) If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and voted on an earlier e-voting of any company,

then your existing password is to be used.
6) Ifyouare afirst-time user follow the steps given below:
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NOTICE

For Physical shareholders and other than individual shareholders holding shares in Demat.

Enter your 10digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax Department (Applicable for both demat
shareholders as well as physical shareholders)

+ Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with the Company/Depository Participant are requested to
use the sequence number sentby Company/RTA or contact Company/RTA.

PAN

Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) as recorded in your demat account or in
Dividend Bank Details | the company records in order to login.

OR Date of Birth (DOB) + If both the details are not recorded with the depository or company, please enter the member id / folio
number in the Dividend Bank details field.
e) Afterentering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab.

Shareholders holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection screen. However, shareholders holding shares in
demat form will now reach ‘Password Creation’ menu wherein they are required to mandatorily enter their login password in the new password
field. Kindly note that this password is to be also used by the demat holders for voting for resolutions of any other company on which they are
eligible to vote, provided that company opts for e-voting through CDSL platform. Itis strongly recommended not to share your password with
any other person and take utmost care to keep your password confidential.

For shareholders holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on the resolutions contained in this Notice.
Click on the EVSN for the relevant <NCL BUILDTEK LIMITED> on which you choose to vote.

On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the same the option “YES/NO” for voting. Select the option YES
orNO as desired. The option YES implies that you assent to the Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent to the Resolution.

Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire Resolution details.

After selecting the resolution, you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT". A confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your
vote, click on “OK”, else to change your vote, click on “CANCEL” and accordingly modify your vote.

Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

m) You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on “Click here to print” option on the Voting page.

IN
1.
2.

If a demat account holder has forgotten the login password then Enter the User ID and the image verification code and click on Forgot
Password & enter the details as prompted by the system.

There is also an optional provision to upload BR/POAIf any uploaded, which will be made available to scrutinizer for verification.
Additional Facility for Non - Individual Shareholders and Custodians —-For Remote Voting only.

+  Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodians are required to log on to www.evotingindia.com
and register themselves in the “Corporates” module.

+  Ascanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be emailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

+  Afterreceiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the admin login and password. The Compliance User would
be able to link the account(s) for which they wish to vote on.

+  Thelistofaccounts linked in the login will be mapped automatically & can be delink in case of any wrong mapping.

+ Itis Mandatory that, a scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have issued in favour of the
Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF formatin the system for the scrutinizer to verify the same.

+ Alternatively Non Individual shareholders are required mandatory to send the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. together
with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer and to the Company at the
email address companysecretary@nclbuildtek.com, if they have voted from individual tab & not uploaded same in the CDSL e-voting
system for the scrutinizer to verify the same.

STRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS ATTENDING THE AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM ARE AS UNDER:
The procedure for attending meeting & e-Voting on the day of the AGM/ EGM is same as the instructions mentioned above for e-voting.

The link for VC/OAVM to attend meeting will be available where the EVSN of Company will be displayed after successful login as per the
instructions mentioned above for e-voting.

Shareholders who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the meeting. However, they will not be eligible to vote at the
AGM/EGM.

4. Shareholders are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops / IPads for better experience.

Further shareholders will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to avoid any disturbance during the meeting.
Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience
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NOTICE

Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their respective network. It is therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to
mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

Shareholders who would like to express their views/ask questions during the meeting may register themselves as a speaker by sending their
request in advance atleast 10 days prior to meeting mentioning their name, demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at
companysecretary@nclbuildtek.com. The shareholders who do not wish to speak during the AGM but have queries may send their queries
in advance 10 days prior to meeting mentioning their name, demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at
companysecretary@nclbuildtek.com. These queries will be replied to by the company suitably by email.

Those shareholders who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to express their views/ask questions during the
meeting.

Only those shareholders, who are present in the AGM/EGM through VC/OAVM facility and have not casted their vote on the Resolutions
through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting system available during the
EGMWAGM.

If any Votes are cast by the shareholders through the e-voting available during the EGM/AGM and if the same shareholders have not
participated in the meeting through VC/OAVM facility, then the votes cast by such shareholders may be considered invalid as the facility of e-
voting during the meeting is available only to the shareholders attending the meeting.

PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE EMAIL ADDRESSES ARE NOT REGISTERED WITH THE DEPOSITORIES &
COMPANY FOR OBTAINING LOGIN CREDENTIALS FORE-VOTING FOR THE RESOLUTIONS PROPOSED IN THIS NOTICE:

. For Physical shareholders- please provide necessary details like Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned copy of the share certificate (front

and back), PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to
companysecretary@nclbuildtek.com.

2. ForDematshareholders -Please update your email id & mobile no. with your respective Depository Participant (DP).
3. For Individual Demat shareholders — Please update your email id & mobile no. with your respective Depository Participant (DP) which is

mandatory while e-Voting & joining virtual meetings through Depository.

If you have any queries or issues regarding attending AGM & e-Voting from the CDSL e-Voting System, you can write an email to
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact attoll free no. 1800 22 55 33.

All grievances connected with the facility for voting by electronic means may be addressed to Mr. Rakesh Dalvi, Sr. Manager, (CDSL, ) Central
Depository Services (India) Limited, AWing, 25" Floor, Marathon Futurex, Mafatlal Mill Compounds, N M Joshi Marg, Lower Parel (East), Mumbai
-400013 or send an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or call toll free no. 1800 22 55 33.

By order of the Board
For NCL Buildtek Limited
(Formerly NCLAlltek&Seccolor Ltd)

Place: Hyderabad U. Divya Bharathi
Date: 08"August, 2024 Company Secretary
(M.No:A31170)
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STATEMENT CONTAINING MATERIAL FACTS

(PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF SECTION 102 OF THE
COMPANIES ACT, 2013)

ITEMNO.05:

Ms. Kalidindi Pooja (DIN: 03496114) was appointed as a Director by
the Shareholders of the Company in place of Mr. Ashven Datla who
retired by rotation in the 37" Annual General Meeting of the Company
held on 26" September’ 2023. On the date of the above appointment,
Ms. Kalidindi Pooja was already in Whole-time employment as
President, Walls Division. Hence in terms of the definition contained in
Section 2 (94) of the Companies Act 2013, she is considered as a
Whole-time Director with effect from the date of her appointment as
Director, though her substantive appointmentwas as President.

Ms. Pooja Kalidindi is a Promoter Director and is the daughter of Late
Mr. K Madhu, former Managing Director and Vice Chairman of the
Board. After the demise of Mr. K Madhu and the resignation of
Mr. P Aditya Krishna Varma, the representation of the core Promoters
at the executive director’s level has been reduced, and it was felt
necessary to appoint a representative of the Promoters at the level of
executive director.

Accordingly, the Board of Directors based on the recommendations of
the Nomination and Remuneration committee, Ms. Kalidindi Pooja
was appointed as an Executive Director with effect from the 8"
November 2023 for period of 3 years at the remuneration set outin the
resolution.

Ms. Kalidindi Pooja satisfies all the conditions set out in Part-| of
Schedule V to the Companies Act 2013 (the “Act”) and conditions set
outunder sub-section (3) of Section 196 of the Act for being eligible for

NOTICE

her appointment. Ms. Kalidindi Pooja is not disqualified from being
appointed as a Director in terms of Section 164 of the Act.

Profile of Ms. Kalidindi Pooja

Ms. Pooja Kalidindi, aged about 39 years is a graduate in commerce
and PGDM with specialization in Finance and Marketing. She has
completed Management Development programme - Strategic
Management from Indian Institute of Management, Kozhikode (IIMK).
Ms. K Pooja has been associated with the NCL Buildtek Ltd. since
2011.

She is in whole-time employment of NCL Buildtek Ltd as President,
Walls Division. She has been associated with the company for over 12
years, and has held several positions in Accounts & Finance, HR,
Purchase and marketing functions. She holds directorships in NCL
Industries Ltd, NCL Homes Ltd, NCL Holdings (A&S) Ltd, Hampi
Energy Ltd, Eastern Ghat Renewable Energy Ltd., Kakatiya
Industries Ltd & Maddi Constructions Pvt. Ltd.

She is the daughter of Late Mr. K Madhu, a co-founder and former
Managing Director and later Vice Chairman of the Board of the
Company. She is also the sister of Mr. K Gautam, a Non-Executive
Director of the company. She holds 8,32,265 Equity Shares in the
Company.

The proposed remuneration is within the monetary ceilings for
individual directors based on the effective capital, prescribed by the
Schedule V of the Companies Act 2013, It is also proposed that the
same remuneration to be paid as minimum remuneration to
Ms. Kalidindi Pooja, in the event of absence or inadequacy of profits in
any year.

The information required to be provided in terms of Section Il of
Schedule V ofthe Companies Act, 2013 is furnished below:-

S. No. Particulars Details
(a) Salary Rs. 1,51,250/-Per month
1 Basic Salary (b) Other allowances : Rs. 30,754/- per month
(Subjectto an annual increment of 10% on above)
2 Housing 50% on Salary
3 Medical Reimbursement For self and family subject to a ceiling of one month’s salary per year or three months salaryina

period of three years.

For self and family subject to a ceiling of one month’s salary per year or three months salaryina

4 Leave Travel concession .
period of three years.
5 Gratuity Equal to half month’s salary for each completed year of service and shall not be included in
ceiling on remuneration.
6 Contribution to Provident fund/ Contribution to provident fund/ superannuation fund at rates as per Company’s rules, or an
Superannuation equivalent Special Allowance, if so opted by the appointee.
. As per the rules of the company and encashment of unavailed leaves with full pay and
7 Eamed/Privilege leave allowances at the end of the tenure which shall not be included in ceiling on remuneration.
The Company shall provide car for official business and telephone at residence as well as cell
8 Provision of Car and Cell phone phone. However personal long distance calls on telephone/cell phone and use of car for private

purposes shall be billed by the company.

The information required to be provided in terms of Section Il of Part Il of Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 is furnished below:-

General Information:

Nature of industry

The Company is a Manufacturer of Building Materials viz. Putties, Textures, Emulsion Paints,
doors and windows (GI, ABS, uPVC and Aluminium) AAC Blocks, Dry-Mix Cement Mortarsand
Tile Adhesives.

Date of Commencement of
Commerecial production

April, 1992
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In case of new companies,
expected date of commencement

3 of activities as per project Not Applicable
approved by financial institutions
appearing in the prospectus
Rupees in Crores
Particulars FY ended FY ended FY ended
31-03-2023 31-03-2022 31-03-2021
Gross Sales & Other Income 453.62 408.23 265.98
Profitbefore Interest & Depreciation (EBITA) 4591 23.20 16.60
4 | Financial performance based | Profit before Tax excluding exceptional ltems 18.21 153 (7.16)
on given indicators , ,
Exceptional ltem (Profit) 0.02 8.22 1.33
Profit before Tax (PBT) Including Exceptional ltems 18.23 9.76 (5.83)
Profit after Tax 13.45 6.96 (7.00)
Dividend Paid 3.47 2.89 0
Dividend Paid per share (%) 3.00 2.50 0
Technical collaboration with ICP Sweden for paints and Secco s.p.a. ltaly for coated steel profiles.
o Technology has since been fully absorbed.
Foreign investments or )
5 : : Technology for ABS Doors acquired from KOS, South Korea, and from SCHUCO, Germany for extruded
collaborations, if any. - '
Aluminium Windows.
No foreign investments.
1. Information about the appointee:
1 |Background details Brief background provided in the Notice convening the Meeting
Past remuneration 2023-24 2022-23 2021-22
2 |Rs. In Lakhs)
. 30.46 28.58 23.57
3 |Recognition or awards NILL
In addition to her principal role of heading Marketing operations of the Walls division, she heads the
4 | Job profile and her suitability P'ro.CL.Jremer)t fgnction for the Qrganizatiqn. Regpo.nsible fgr marketir)g operatigns for the Qoatings
Division which includes marketing strategies, designing and implementing promotional campaigns and
key stakeholder management.
5 |Remuneration proposed As setoutin the resolution.
Comparative remuneration profile
with respect t(f)_lmd?;t]ry, s'zi. of the The proposed remuneration of Ms. K Pooja is comparable to the remuneration being paid to the Executive
6 company, profiié ot the posttion | e oo of other companies of similar size and operations.
and person (in case of expatriates
the relevant details would be with
respect to the country of his origin)
.P eguniary r.elationship directly or Ms. K Pooja holds 8,32,265 Equity Shares in the Company. Her spouse and other family members hold
indirectly with the company, or . .
7 ooy R . | 1,46,776 Equity Shares in the company.
relationship with the managerial
personnel or other director, if any. | She has no other pecuniary relationship with the company apart from the remuneration payable to her.
1 Other information:
The financial performance of the Company for 2020-21 has been affected by the Covid pandemic,
1 Reasons of |OS§ or resulting in a loss for that year. The Company has returned to a modest profit during the last three years
inadequate profits FY 22, FY 23 & FY 24. ltis expected that the Company will make adequate profits and the managerial
remuneration in the ensuing efforts shall be within the ceilings prescribed in Section 197 of the Act.
2 gﬁg: ftsl( ﬁgpor;\?;ﬁ::f dlobe The company has taken effective steps at cost reduction and improvement of efficiencies at all levels.
3 Expected increase in productivity | The management is very much optimistic about achieving the desired financial performance with

and profits in measurable terms

increased productivity and efficiencies.
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NOTICE

The Board recommends the resolution atitem no.5 of this notice for the approval of the members.

Except Mr. Kalidindi Gautam, none of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives other than those mentioned in
the respective resolutions and their relatives are in any way concerned or interested.

ITEMNO.06:

The previous tenure of Mr.Vatsavayi Venkata Jagannadha Raju (Mr. VVJ Raju) (DIN: 07573352) expired on 31*July 2024.

The Board, at its meeting held on 30" May 2024, reappointed Mr.VVJ Raju as an Executive Director for a further period of three years from 1*
August 2024 at the remuneration and other terms as mentioned in the Resolution, as recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee.

Brief Profile of Mr. VVJ Raju

Mr. VWJ Raju, born on 01% July, 1961, has Degree in Science, Law from Andhra University and Masters in Business Administration (Marketing)
from Nagarjuna University.

He is associated with the NCL Group since August 1989. He has overall 35 years of experience in NCL Group. He was appointed as Trainee Sales
officer in erstwhile NCL Seccolor Ltd and then promoted to various positions in the organization for his dedicated efforts and contributions to the
Company’s growth and profitability. He served as Deputy CEQ of the Company later he was appointed as an Executive Director ofthe Company.

Subsequently he was designated as CEO of the Company during the process of restructuring of the Board in 2019. He was appointed as
Executive Director of the Company for a period of 3 years w.e.f 01% August, 2021. Now, it is proposed to re-appoint him as an Executive Director of
the Company for a period of another 3 years w.e.f 01" August, 2024.

The proposed remuneration is within the monetary ceilings for individual directors based on the effective capital, prescribed by the Schedule V of
the Companies Act 2013.The proposed Resolution also seeks the approval of the shareholders for payment of the Remuneration in terms of the
Resolution as minimum remuneration in the absence orinadequacy of profits in any financial year during the tenure.

Mr. VVJ Raju satisfies all the conditions set out in Part-I of Schedule V to the Act and conditions set out under sub-section (3) of Section 196 of the
Companies Act, 2013 for being eligible for his re-appointment. Mr. VVJ Raju is not disqualified from being appointed as a Director in terms of
Section 164 of the Act.

Mr. VVJ Raju holds 1,668 equity shares of the Company.

The information required to be provided in terms of Section Il of Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 is furnished below:-

S. No. Particulars Details

Rs. 2,25,000/- Per month.

1 Basic Salary (Subject to an annual increment of 10% on salary)

2 Housing 50% on Salary

. . For self and family subject to a ceiling of one month’s salary per year or three months salary ina

3 Medical Reimbursement period of three years.

4 Leave Travel concession For.self and family subject to a ceiling of one month’s salary per year or three months salaryina
period of three years.

5 Gratuity Equal to half month’s salary for each completed year of service and shall not be included in
ceiling on remuneration.

6 Contribution to Provident fund/ Contribution to provident fund/ superannuation fund at rates as per Company’s rules, or an

Superannuation equivalent Special Allowance, if so optedby the appointee.
. Eamed/Privilege leave As per the rules of the company and encashment of unavailed leaves with full pay and

allowances at the end of the tenure which shall not be included in ceiling on remuneration.

The Company shall provide car for official business and telephone at residence as well as cell
8 Provision of Car and Cell phone phone. However personal long distance calls on telephone/cell phone and use of car for private
purposes shall be billed by the company.

The information required to be provided in terms of Section Il of Part Il of Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 is furnished below:-

l. General Information:

The Company is a Manufacturer of Building Materials viz. Putties, Textures, Emulsion Paints, doors and

1| Nature of industry windows (GI, ABS, uPVC and Aluminium) AAC Blocks, Dry-Mix Cement Mortarsand Tile Adhesives.

Date of Commencement of .
Commercial production April, 1992
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NOTICE

In case of new companies,
expected date of commencement
of activities as per project
approved by financial institutions
appearing in the prospectus

Not Applicable

Financial performance based
on given indicators

Rupees in Crores
Particulars FY ended FY ended FY ended
31-03-2023 31-03-2022 31-03-2021

Gross Sales & Other Income 453.62 408.23 265.98
Profitbefore Interest & Depreciation (EBITA) 4591 23.20 16.60
Profit before Tax excluding exceptional ltems 18.21 1.53 (7.16)
Exceptional ltem (Profit) 0.02 8.22 1.33
Profitbefore Tax (PBT) Including Exceptional ltems 18.23 9.76 (5.83)
Profit after Tax 13.45 6.96 (7.00)
Dividend Paid 347 2.89 0
Dividend Paid per share (%) 3.00 2.50 0

Foreign investments or
collaborations, if any.

Technical collaboration with ICP Sweden for paints and Secco s.p.a. Italy for coated steel profiles.
Technology has since been fully absorbed.

Technology for ABS Doors acquired from KOS, South Korea, and from SCHUCO, Germany for
extruded Aluminium Windows.

No foreign investments.

Information about the appointee:

Background details

Brief background provided in the Notice convening the Meeting

Past remuneration 2023-24 2022-23 2021-22
2 | (Rs. In Lakhs)
: 37.73 34.30 29.78
3 | Recognition or awards NILL
He is associated with the Company Since 1989 and contributing significantly for the entire operations of
4 | Job profile and his suitability | Coatings and Walls division, in addition he is leading the market expansion of New products and Tile

Adhesives.

Remuneration proposed

As setoutin the resolution.

Comparative remuneration profile
with respect to industry, size of the
company, profile of the position
and person (in case of expatriates
the relevant details would be with
respect to the country of his origin)

The proposed remuneration of Mr. VVJ Raju is comparable to the remuneration being paid to the
Executive Director of other companies of similar size and operations.

Pecuniary relationship directly or
indirectly with the company, or
relationship with the managerial
personnel or other director, if any.

Mr.VVJ Raju holds 1,668 Equity Shares inthe Company.

He has no other pecuniary relationship with the company apart from the remuneration payable to him.

Other information:

Reasons of loss or
inadequate profits

The financial performance of the Company for 2020-21 has been affected by the Covid pandemic,
resulting in a loss for that year. The Company has returned to a modest profit during the last three years
FY 22, FY 23 & FY 24. ltis expected that the Company will make adequate profits and the managerial
remuneration in the ensuing efforts shall be within the ceilings prescribed in Section 197 of the Act.

Steps taken or proposed to be
taken for improvement

The company has taken effective steps at cost reduction and improvement of efficiencies at all levels.

Expected increase in productivity
and profits in measurable terms

The management is very much optimistic about achieving the desired financial performance with
increased productivity and efficiencies.
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NOTICE

The Board recommends the resolution atitem no.6 of this notice for the approval of the members.

Except Mr. VVJ Raju, none of the other Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives are, in any way, concerned or
interested, financially or otherwise in the said resolution.

ITEMNO.07:

The Board, on the recommendation of the Audit Committee held on 08" August 2024 approved the appointment of M/s. SR and Associates as the
Cost Auditors of the Company to conduct Cost Audits for Steel Profiles and Steel Windows of the Company for the year ending 31" March, 2025,
ataremuneration of Rs. 82,500/- (Rupees Eighty Two Thousand Five hundred Only).

In accordance with the provisions of Section 148 of the Act read with the Rules, the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors has to be ratified by
the Shareholders of the Company.

The Board recommends the resolution for the approval of the Shareholders.
None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives is, in any way, concerned or interested in this Resolution.
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Your Directors have pleasure in presenting to you their report for the
financial year ended 31 March 2024.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The Audited Balance Sheet of your company as at 31" March 2024,
the Statement of Profitand Loss for the year ended as on that date, the
consolidated financial statements and the report of the Auditors
thereon are being circulated with this report. The salient features of the
Standalone financial results are as follows:

Rs. Crores
Particlars $1.08.2024 | 51.03.2025
ﬁ]?:\c/)?r?:((e érr%?S)Operanns & thefr 437.09 453.62
(F’Ergﬁ% t%if)ore Interest & Depreciation 49.71 45.91
Profit before Tax excluding 23.03 18.21

exceptional items
Exceptional item (profit) 0.07 0.02
Profit/Loss Before Tax (EBT)

including Exceptional ltems 2310 18.23

Profit/Loss After Tax 15.92 13.45

Interim Dividend 1.73 347

Transfer to General Reserve - 0.76
TRANSFER TO RESERVES

No amounts were transferred to the Reserves for the year under
review.

OPERATIONS

Your Board is pleased to report that initiatives undertaken during the
year have progressed according to plan. Consolidation of uPVC and
Aluminium activities into our new plant have been completed and are
yielding efficiencies by leveraging resources and enabling cross
functional training.

This planned infrastructure expansion is enabling us to cater to the
growth we are seeing in Aluminium with this vertical growing by 57% in
FY24 following a 70% YoY growth in the previous year. Your Board is
pleased to report that your Company secured the largest order to-date
of Rs. 17crores in the Aluminium division. With the enhanced
capabilities in Aluminium that have been built out over the last two
years, your Company is confident of delivering on our commitment of
qualityand scale.

Similar to what we have seen in the last two years, Coatings volumes
in the North continue to expand albeit growth has normalized to about
15%.

The most notable turnround was observed in the Blocks division with
profitability seeing an uptick. This was primarily due to enhanced
efficiencies in raw material utilization and R&D.

Your Company's Board has approved establishment of a new Steel
Doors plant that would expand our current product offerings and tap
into the growing potential in this segment. Machinery has been
ordered and construction of the plant has commenced. The plant is
expected to be commissioned in Q4 FY25.

MATERIAL CHANGES AFTER FINANCIALYEAR

Members are aware that your company holds 23.70% of the shares of
NCL Veka Pvt. Ltd., a joint venture with Veka AG. In terms of the
Shareholders’ Agreement (SHA) with Veka AG, your company has
given an Exit Notice, upon which Veka AG issued a Call Notice to
purchase 62,31,799 Equity Shares @ Rs. 138.78 per share. Since
your Board felt that the offer price was low, it made a counter offer to
buy all Veka Shares at 90% of the Call Price, as permitted by the SHA.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Veka AG contested the counter offer on some technical grounds, and
the dispute was referred to Arbitration. The Arbitration proceedings
have concluded, and the Award has been reserved by the Arbitrator.

If the Award upholds Veka AG’s claim, your company has to sell
62,31,799 shares held by itin the joint venture for Rs.86.48 crores. On
the contrary, if the award upholds the counter claim, your company will
acquire 1,31,50,001 equity shares in NCL Veka Pvt Ltd at the cost of
Rs. 164.26 crores, and acquire the controlling interest in the said
company.

Your Board will report the updated status at the ensuing AGM.

There are no other material changes or commitments affecting the
financial position of the Company between the end of the year under
review and the date of this Report.

DIVIDEND

Members are aware that on 08" February 2024 the Board declared
interim dividend @ 15% per Equity Share. Your directors are pleased
to recommend a further dividend (Final Dividend) of Rs.1.50 per
Equity Share at the ensuing Annual General Meeting thus the
aggregate dividend for the year 2023-24 stands at Rs.3.00 per Equity
Share, if approved by the shareholders.

SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES

The details of performance of the subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures, as required in Rule 8 (1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules
2014, are contained in Annexure-| to this Report

DIRECTORS

The following changes have taken place in the Board of Directors
since the lastAnnual General Meeting.

Independent Directors

The reappointment of Mr. Kamlesh Gandhi, Independent Director for
the Second term of five years was approved by the Shareholders in
the previous Annual General Meeting held on 26" September’ 2023.

Non-Independent Directors and Executive Directors

Apart from the changes in the Board already reported in the last
Annual Report, the following further changes have taken place in the
Board of Directors during the financial year 2023-24.

Mrs. Kalidindi Pooja, was appointed as a Director by the Shareholders
in place of Mr. Ashven Datla who retired by rotation in the previous
Annual General Meeting of the Company.

The Board of Directors based on the recommendations of the
Nomination and Remuneration committee, appointed Ms. Kalidindi
Pooja as an Executive Director with effect from 8" November 2023 for
the period of three years. Aresolution is being proposed at the ensuing
Annual General Meeting for her appointment as an Executive Director.

Mr. P Aditya Krishna Varma, Director resigned from the Board with
effect from 26" September’ 2023 due to his personal reasons.

Ms. Madhavi Penumasta, Director resigned from the Board with effect
from 30" May 2024 due to her other commitments.

Your Directors wish to place on record its profound appreciation for the
contributions made by Mr. Aditya Krishna Varma, Ms. Madhavi
Penumasta and Mr.Ashven Datla as Directors of the Company.

Retirement by Rotation

Mr. K. Satya Subram and Mr. VVJ Raju retire by rotation at the ensuing
Annual General Meeting and is eligible for re-appointment.

The tenure of Mr. VVJ Raju, Executive Director term expired on
31% July 2024 and the Board of Directors reappointed him for further
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term of three years w.e.f 01" August 2024 with revised terms and
conditions. Necessary resolution proposing his re-appointment is
beingplaced atthe ensuingAnnual General Meeting.

Board Meetings

During the period under review, Six Board Meetings were held, viz.,
04" May, 2023, 09" June, 2023, 10" August, 2023, 26" September,
2023, 08" November, 2023 and 08" February, 2024.

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD
AUDIT COMMITTEE

Your Company has an Audit Committee consisting of three
Independent Directors,. Kamlesh Gandhi as Chairman, Mr. D Niranjan
Reddy and Mr. Kalidindi Venkata Vishnu Raju and one non-executive
director, Mr. K. Gautam.

During the year under Review, the Audit Committee met five times on
09" June, 2023, 10" August, 2023, 26" September, 2023, 08"
November, 2023 and 08" February, 2024.

There are no occasions where the Board had not accepted any
recommendation of the Audit Committee.

Nomination & Remuneration Committee

Your company has a Nomination and Remuneration Committee
consisting of 3 Independent Directors, namely Mr. D Niranjan Reddy
as Chairman, Mr. Kamlesh Gandhi and Mr. KV Vishnu Raju and two
Non-Executive Directors namely Mr. K Ravi and Mr. K Gautam.

This Committee considers and recommends the remuneration
payable to Executive Directors. During the year under review, the
meeting of the Committee was convened on 08" November, 2023.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has adopted a
Nomination and Remuneration Policy which, inter alia, deals with the
manner of selection of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other
employees and the remuneration of Directors.

A copy of the remuneration policy can be accessed at the Company
website at: www.nclbuildtek.com.

OTHER COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

The following are Committees of the Board as on 31* March, 2024:
a) Stakeholders Relationship Committee

b) Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

BOARD EVALUATION

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee has laid down the
evaluation criteria for performance evaluation of Independent
Directors and other Executive and Non-Executive Directors of the
company. The performance of each Independent Director has been
evaluated by the other members of the Board.

One separate meeting of the independent Directors was held on 08"
February 2024 during the year under review. Independent directors
evaluated the performance of other Executive and Non-Executive
Directors and conveyed their views to other directors on the Board.

DIRECTORS’RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

In terms of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, your Directors
hereby confirm that

(@). in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable
accounting standards had been followed along with proper
explanation relating to material departures;

(b). the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied
them consistently and made judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

of the profitand loss of the company for that period;

(c) the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the
company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other
irregularities;

(d). the directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going
concern basis; and

(e). the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance
with the provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems
were adequate and operating effectively.

LOANS, INVESTMENTS AND GUARANTEES

The particulars of Loans, Investments, and Guarantees under Section
186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are furnished below:

Rs. Lakhs
Particulars Fingncial Year
A. Loans/Advances:
NCL Holdings (A&S) Ltd. 1210.00
ICD given to Hampi Energy Ltd. 115.00
B. Investments including advances for investments:
NCL Veka Pvt. Ltd 1130.70
NCL ASL Services Pvt. Ltd 70.00
(formerly Span tile Mfg Co. Pvt. Ltd.)
NCL Buildtek & NCL Industries JV (Partnership Firm) 400.00
C. Guarantees: NIL
Total 2925.70

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:

The details of the Related Party Transactions are furnished in Note
No. 49 of the Notes on the Stand-alone Financial Statement attached
to this Report. All the related party transactions have been on an arms-
length basis.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

The prescribed information on conservation of energy, technology
absorption and foreign exchange outgo is contained in Annexure-ll to
this Report.

Your Company continues to be conscious of the need for conservation
of energy, and wherever feasible, effective steps for energy
conservation are taken.

RISKMANAGEMENT

The Company has in place a mechanism to identify, assess, monitor
and mitigate various risks to key business objectives. Major risks
identified by the businesses and functions are systematically
addressed through mitigating actions on a continuing basis by the
Risk Management Committee.

In the opinion of the Board, there are no elements of risk at present,
which threaten the existence of the Company.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Company believes that the industry owes duty of welfare to the
society at large and it shall pursue the commitment of Social
Responsibility and carry out the social work directly and/or through
otherregistered welfare organizations.

The Company’s policy on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
spells out priority areas to deploy CSR funds for promotion of
Education, Women Welfare, Health care and Social Infrastructure
Development. The detailed CSR policy and CSR Annual Action plan
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for FY 2024-25 is available on the Company’s website at:
www.nclbuildtek.com.

The Annual report on CSR for the FY 2023-24 is enclosed as the
Annexure-lll to this report.

VIGIL MECHANISM

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013
your Board has framed a “Whistle Blower Policy” for Directors and
employees of the Company for reporting the genuine concerns or
grievances. Cases of actual or suspected, fraud or violation of the
Company’s code of conduct and ethics policy are investigated and
appropriate action taken. The Whistle Blower Policy of the Company is
available on the Company’s website at: www.nclbuildtek.com.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Company has adequate systems of internal financial controls to
safeguard and protect its assets from unauthorised use or
misappropriation. All the financial transactions are properly
authorized, recorded and reported to the Management. The Company
follows all the applicable Accounting Standards for proper
maintenance of books of accounts for financial reporting.

DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN
AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND
REDRESSAL)ACT, 2013.

The Company is committed to provide a safe and conducive work
environment to its employees. The Anti-Sexual Harassment Policy
making of the company is Gender Neutral, encompassing the
provisions of the Act in letter and spirit and is applicable to all. Copy of
the Policy is available on the Company’s website at:
www.nclbuildtek.com.

Your Directors state that during the year under review, there were no
cases filed pursuant to the aforesaid Act.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

As required by Section 134(3)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013, the
extract of Annual Return, can be accessed on the Company’s website
at: www.nclbuildtek.com.

FIXED DEPOSITS

As required by Rule 8(5) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,
the details relating to fixed deposits are as follows:

(a) Acceptedduring the year . Rs.148.19Lakhs
Renewal during the year . Rs.581.86 Lakhs
(b) remained unpaid or unclaimed as

atthe end of the year Rs. Nil

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

(c) whetherthere has been any defaultin
repayment of deposits or payment
of interest thereon during the year : No

The Company has repaid all the matured deposits that have been
claimed, and there have been no defaults in payment of interest or
repayment of principal.

The details of deposits received from the directors/ relatives of
directors during the year under review in terms of MCA Notification
No.GSR695(E) dated 15"September, 2015 are as under:

Name of the Director/ | Amount : ;
Relative of Director (Rs. In Lakhs) Relationship
. . Wife of Mr. Kamlesh Gandhi,

Sonali K Gandhi 5.00 Independent Director

Kamlesh Suresh Gandhi 35.00 Independent Director
Mother of Mr. K Gautam,

Kalidindi Anuradha 40.00 Director and Mrs. Kalidindi
Pooja, Executive Director

The Deposits are in compliance with Chapter V of the Act.

Unclaimed Dividends and Investor Education & Protection Fund
(IEPF)

As on 31" March 2024, Rs. 83,74,498/- of Unpaid Dividends remained
unclaimed by shareholders for various years.

During the year under review, the Company has transferred
Rs. 8,81,183.00/- relating to unpaid Dividend for the Financial Year
2015-16 to the Investor Education Protection Fund (IEPF). Further, as
required by Section 124 of Companies Act, 2013. A total of 11,674
Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each were transferred to IEPF in October
2023.

Pursuant to the provisions of the IEPF Rules, the Company has sent
three individual notices to the latest available addresses of the
shareholders whose dividends are lying unpaid/unclaimed for the last
seven consecutive years or more, Inter alia, providing details of
shares to be transferred to IEPF Authority. These shares are due to
transfer to IEPF by October, 2024.

AUDITORS
STATUTORY AUDITORS

M/s. Anant Rao & Mallik, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration
No.006266S) continue as the Statutory Auditors to hold office for a
Second term of 5 (five) years commencing from the conclusion of the
36" AGM until the conclusion of the 41" AGM to be held in the year
2027.

The Auditors' Report for the FY 2023-24 does not contain any
qualification. Notes to Accounts and Auditors' remarks in their report
are self-explanatory and do not call for any further comments.
COSTAUDIT

M/s S.R. and Associates, Cost Accountants have been reappointed to
conduct the cost audit pertaining to the activity of manufacture of Steel
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Profiles and Steel Windows of the company for the year 2024-25.

The CostAudit Report for the financial year ended March 31%, 2023 was duly filed with Ministry of Corporate Affairs.

SECRETARIAL AUDIT

The Secretarial Audit Report pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 is attached as Annexure-IV to this Report.

Thereis an observation in Point 1 of the Report relating to delays in filing certain documents with MCA. The delays were caused by technical glitches
in the MCA System which was not accepting the filing. As the Report itself indicates, the forms have been filed subsequently with requisite
additional fees, hence do not call for any further explanation from the Board as envisaged by Section 204(3) of the Companies Act, 2013.”

DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT & MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR TRIBUNAL

During the year no significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the going concern status and
company’s operationsin future.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

Your Directors would like to place on record their appreciation of the support received from Yes Bank Ltd, Canara Bank and Government
Authorities during the year. Your Directors wish to place on record their deep sense of appreciation for the co-operation and support extended by
the employees atall levels.

By Order ofthe Board
NCLBUILDTEK LIMITED
(Formerly NCLAlltek & Seccolor Ltd)

Place: Hyderabad Kamlesh Gandhi
Date: 08" August, 2024 Chairman

NCL BUILDTEKLIMITED & ANNUAL REPORT 2023-24 | 19



DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Annexure-|
PERFORMANCE AND FINANCIAL POSITION OF SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES (Form AOC-1)
(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Part “A”: Subsidiaries

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of Subsidiary Companies
(Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in Rs. Lakhs)

Particulars Details
Name of the Subsidiary Company NCL ASL Services Pvt. Ltd
(Formerly Span Tile Mfg. Company Pvt. Ltd.)
Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if different from the
holding company’s reporting period 2023-24
Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last date of the
relevant Financial year in the case of foreign subsidiaries Indian Company
Share capital 20.46
Reserves & surplus 185.41
Total assets 235.46
Total Liabilities 29.59
Investments Nil
Turnover / Total Income 330.77
Profit before taxation 60.7
Provision for taxation 15.06
Profit after taxation 45.64
Proposed Dividend 200%
% of shareholding 100%

Notes:

The following information shall be furnished at the end of the statement:
1. Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations: Nil
2. Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year: Nil
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Part “B”: Associate Companies and Joint Ventures

Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate
Companies and Joint Ventures

Sl . . ASSOCIATE JOINT VENTURE
No Name of Associates or Joint Ventures
' NCL Veka Ltd NCL Buildtek & NCL Industries JV
(Formerly NCL Wintech India Ltd) (Partnership Firm)
1 | Latest audited Balance Sheet Date 2023-24 2023-24
2 | Date on which the Associate or Joint Venture was associated or acquired 2008-09 2021-22
Shares of Associate or Joint Ventures held by the company on the year end 62,31,799 Investment in
the Capital of the Firm
3 | Amount of Investment in Associates or Joint Venture (Rs. Lakhs) 1130.70 400.00
Extent of Holding (in percentage) 23.70% 50%
4 | Description of how there is significant influence By Shareholding/ Voting rights Lead Partner
5 | Reason why the associate/Joint venture is not consolidated Since holding is Less than 51% Less than 51%
6 | Net worth attributable to shareholding as per latest audited
Balance Sheet (Rs. Lakhs) 355919 432.65
7 | Profit or Loss for the year (Rs. Lakhs) 4237.98 -168.85
i. Considered in Consolidation 879.90 -84.43
ii. Not Considered in Consolidation 3358.08 -84.43

Annexure-ll

Details of measures on Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Inflow/Outflow

(A) Conservation of energy-

(i)

the steps taken orimpact on conservation of energy;

The Company being not a power intensive unit, the scope
for energy conservation efforts is limited

(i

the steps taken by the company for utilizing alternate sources of energy;

Solar energy units have been set up on a BOOT basis to
harness solar energy

(i)

the capital investment on energy conservation equipment;

Negligible

(B) Technology absorption-

(i)

the efforts made towards technology absorption;

(i)

the benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product
development orimport substitution;

The Company has fully absorbed the technology derived
fromits collaborators and is self sufficient in technology

in case of imported technology (imported during the last three years
reckoned from the beginning of the financial year)-

(@) thedetails of technology imported;

(b) theyearofimport;

(c) whetherthe technology been fully absorbed;

(d) if notfully absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken place, and the

reasons thereof; and

NotApplicable

(v)

the expenditure incurred on Research and Development.

Rs. 16.04 Lakhs

C) Foreign exchange earnings and Outgo-

The Foreign Exchange earned in terms of actual inflows during the year and the
Foreign Exchange outgo during the year in terms of actual outflows.

Earnings: Nil
Outflow: Rs. 683.54 Lakhs
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Annexure-lll

ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES FOR THE FY 2023-24

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company:
Your Company adopted a comprehensive CSR Policy in strict compliance with the contents and spirit of Schedule VII of the Companies
Act, 2013. In line with the CSR Policy adopted by the Company, your company has been concentrating on the fields of Education,
Women Welfare, Health care and Social Infrastructure Development during the year under review.
2. Composition of CSR Committee:
sl I _ .| Number of meetings Number of meetings
N ’ Name of the Director Designation Nature of Directorship | of CSR Committee held of CSR Committee
0 during the year attended during the year
1 D. Niranjan Reddy Chairman Independent Director 1 1
2 | K.VenkataVishnuRaju Member Director 1 1
3 | VVJ.Raju Member Whole Time Director 1 1
4 | K.Pooja' Member Whole Time Director 0 0
5 | P.AdityaKrishnaVarma’ Member Director 1 0

"“Mrs. K. Paoja has been inducted as member of CSR Committee w.e.f. 08" November, 2023.

*Mr. P. Aditya Krishna Varma has ceased to be member of CSR Committee w.e.f. 26" September, 2023.

3. Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the board are
disclosed on the website of the company: https://nclbuildtek.com/corporate-social-responsibility/
4. Provide the executive Summary along with web-link(s) of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-
rule (3) of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable.
Impact Assessment Not Applicable.
5. a). Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) Rs. 4,37,65,766/-
b). Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) Rs. 8,75,315/-
c). Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmers
or activities of the previous financial years. Nil
d).  Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any Rs. 8,75,315/-
e). Total CSR obligation for the financial year [(b)+(c)-(d)] Nil
6. a) Amountspenton CSR Projects (both Ongoing project and other than ongoing projects) Rs. 22,18,281/-
b)  Amount spent in Administrative Overheads Nil
c) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable Nil
d) Total amount spent for the Financial Year [(a)+(b)+( c)] Rs. 22,18,281/-
e) CSR amount spent er-unspent for the financial year Rs. 22,18,281/-
Total Amount Unspent (in Rs.)
Amount
Spent for Total Amount transferred to Amount transferred to any fund
the Unspent CSR Account as per specified under Schedule VIl as per
Financial section 135(6) second proviso to section 135(5)
Year Amount Date of Name of the Amount Date of
(InRs.) transfer Fund transfer
22,18,281/- NA NA NA NA NA
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f) Excess amount for set off, if any : Rs. 26,18,761/-

Sl. No. Particular Amount (in Rs.)
(i) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) 8,75,315
(i) Total amount spent for the Financial Year 22,18,281
(iii) Excess amount spent for the financial year 22,18,281
(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years, if any Nil
(v) a) Amount available for set off for FY 2023-2024(iii)-(iv) 22,18,281
b) Amount available for set off from FY 2022-2023 4,00,480
Total Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years(a)+(b) 26,18,761

7. Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years:

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
Amount Balance Amount Amount transferred to a Amount
Precedi transferred | in Unspent CSR | Amount spent | Fund as specified under | remaining to be
Sl. Fr_ece '.n? to Unspent CSR| Account under in the Ss‘;'(‘:%%'e I\_()" ?Ssoﬁg" spent in Deficiency,
No. |$anc|a Account for the | sub-section (6) of | Financial Year sub-sec‘t)ior:, '(5) of succeeding if any
ears project as per section 135 (InRs.) section 135, if any financial years
Sec(tl:mR1s3)5(6) (in.Rs.) Amount Date of (inRs.)
T (inRs.) Transfer
1 | FY-1(2020-21) - - - - - -
2 | FY-2(2021-22) - - - - - -
3 | FY-3(2022-23) - - - - - -

8. Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through Corporate Social Responsibility amount spent in the
Financial Year: NO

If Yes, enter the number of assets created/acquired : Not Applicable

Furnish the details relating to such asset (s) so created or acquired through CSR amount spent in the financial year:

Short particulars of the ) Amount of
sl. property or asset(s) Pincode of the Date of CSR Details of entity/ Authority/
[including complete property or ci i
No. address a%d ocation asset(s) creation amourt1t beneficiary of the registered owner
spen
of the property] P
1 2 3 4 5 6
CSR Registration .
Number, if applicable Name | Registered address

NO ASSETS WERE CREATED/ACQUIRED DURING YEAR UNDER REVIEW.

9.Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two percent of the average net profit as per section 135(5):

Not Applicable

Bh. Subba Raju D. Niranjan Reddy

Place: Hyderabad Managing Director Chairperson of CSR Committee

Date: 08" August 2024
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Annexure-lV

Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED March 31, 2024
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

NCLBUILDTEK LIMITED
10-3-162, 5" Floor, NCL Pearl,
Sarojinidevi Road, East Marredpally,
Secunderabad, TG-500026

| have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by
NCL BUILDTEK LIMITED (formerly NCL ALLTEK & SECCOLOR LIMITED (hereinafter called the company) bearing
CIN U72200TG1986PLC006601. Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate
conduct/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the company
and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, |
hereby report that in my opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on March 31, 2024 complied with the
statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance mechanism in place to the extent,
inthe manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

| have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by NCL BUILDTEK LIMITED (“the
Company”) an Unlisted Public Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2024 according to the provisions of;

() The CompaniesAct, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under

(i) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made there under ( Not applicable being an Unlisted
Company)

(i) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under

(iv) Foreign Exchange ManagementAct, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment,
Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings ( Not applicable during the audit period)

(v) Thefollowing Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’) viz

(@) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011 (Not applicable
being an Unlisted Company)

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992 and 2015 (Not applicable being an
unlisted Company)

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009 (Not applicable
being an unlisted Company)

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ('Listing
Regulations’) to the extent applicable during the Audit Period (Not applicable being an unlisted Company)

(e) The Securities Exchange Board of India (share based Employee benefits) Regulations 2014: (Not applicable being an unlisted
Company)

(f)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008 as amended (Not applicable
during the period under review)

(9) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the
Companies Act and dealing with client.

Rule 9A of Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of securities) Rules 2014 as amended relating to Issue of securities in
dematerialized form by unlisted public companies

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009- (Not applicable being an unlisted
Company)

()  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998- (Not applicable being an unlisted
Company)
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vi) Otherapplicable laws consisting of the following

FactoriesAct, 1948

Industrial Disputes Act 1947

Payment of wagesAct 1936

The Minimum wagesAct 1948

Employees state insurance Act 1948

Employees Provident Funds and Miscellaneous Provisions Act 1952

Payment of Bonus Act 1965

Payment of gratuity Act 1972

. ContractLabour (Regulation &Abolition ) Act, 1970

10. Maternity BenefitAct 1961

11. Equal Remuneration Act

12. Environment Protection Act 1986

13. Indian Boilers Act 1923

14. Legal Metrology Act2009.

15. Electricity Act2003

16. Air (Prevention & control of pollution) Act 1981 and water (Prevention & control of Pollution) Act 1974
17. The Sexual Harassment of Women at workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013

©oNo RN~

Records and compliances in respect of direct and indirect tax laws have not been reviewed by us, since these come under the purview of the
financial and tax auditors

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following
Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

During the period under review the Company has generally complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards,
etc. mentioned above subject to the following observations:

1. There was delay in filing of Form IEPF-7 and IEPF-2 during the year. The Company explained that the delays were mostly caused due to MCA
Portal migration problems from V2 to V3. The respective filings have been regularized by payment of additional fees

I further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and
Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried
outin compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent generally at least
seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the
meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

As informed to me, the Company has responded appropriately to notices received from various statutory /regulatory authorities including
initiating actions for corrective measures, wherever found necessary.

As per the minutes of the Board and Board committees | noticed that all the decisions were carried through unanimously.

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size and operations of the company to
monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

| further report that, during the audit period, there were no other specific events /actions in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules,
regulations, guidelines etc. having major bearing on the Company'’s affairs.

This reportis to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure-Aand forms an integral part of this report

ForA.J.Sharma &Associates

Company Secretaries
A.J.Sharma
FCS-2120,CP-2176
Place: Hyderabad UDIN: F002120F000585054
Date: 18" June 2024 Peer Review Certificate No: 2411/2022
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Annexure-A

The Members,
NCLBUILDTEKLIMITED
10-3-162, 5" Floor, NCL Pearl,
Sarojinidevi Road, East Marredpally,
Secunderabad, TG-500026

Ourreport of even date is to be read along with this letter

1.

Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion
on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2. I'have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness of the
contents of the secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial
records. | believe that the processes and practices, | followed provide a reasonable basis for my opinion.

3. Ihave notverified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Account of the Company

4. Wherever required | have obtained the Management representation about the compliances of laws, rules and regulations and
happening of events etc.,

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules and regulations, standards is the responsibility of
management. My examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with
which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company

ForA.J.Sharma & Associates
Company Secretaries
A.J.Sharma
FCS-2120,CP-2176
Place: Hyderabad UDIN: F002120F000585054
Date: 18" June 2024 Peer Review Certificate No: 2411/2022
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To

The Members

NCLBUILDTEK LIMITED

(Formerly NCLAlltek &Seccolor Limited)
Hyderabad.

Report on the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

Opinion:

We have audited the accompanying Standalone Ind AS Financial
Statements of M/s. NCL BUILDTEK LIMITED (Formerly NCL Alltek
& Seccolor Limited) (‘the Company”) which comprises the Balance
Sheet as at March 31, 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss
(including Other Comprehensive Income), Statement of Cash Flows
and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and
notes to the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us, the aforesaid Standalone Ind AS Financial
Statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in Indiaincluding the Ind AS :

a) in the case of Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the
Company as at 31stMarch, 2024 ;

b) inthe case of Statement of Profit and Loss, of the Profit for the
yearthenended;

c) inthe case of Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows of the
Company for the year ;

d) inthe case of Statement of Changes in Equity, of the changes
in Equity, for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion:

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013.
Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in
the "Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS
Financial Statements’ section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Standalone Ind AS
financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code
of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficientand appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibility of Management for the Standalone Ind AS
Financial Statements :

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters
stated in section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act’) with
respect to the preparation of these standalone Ind AS financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the Balance Sheet
(financial position), Profit or Loss (financial performance including
Other Comprehensive Income), Cash Flows and Changes in Equity of
the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
prescribed under section 133 of the Act.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT & STANDALONE

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding
the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgements and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation
of the standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the standalone Ind AS financial statements, management
is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. Those Board of
Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial
reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS
Financial Statements :

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Standalone IndAS
Financial Statements based on our audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the Indian
accounting and auditing standards and matters which are required to
be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the
Rules made thereunder.

We conducted our audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial
Statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified
under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone Ind AS
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and the disclosures in the standalone Ind AS
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the standalone Ind AS financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s
preparation of the standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company’s
Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
standalone Ind AS financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Standalone
Ind AS Financial Statements.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements :

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the
Order”), issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-
section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we enclose in
the “Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3
and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.
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As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that :

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and
explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief
were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law
have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our
examination of those books.

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss
(including other comprehensive income), the Cash Flow
Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone Ind AS Financial
Statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the
Directors as on 31st March, 2024 taken on record by the Board
of Directors, none of the Directors is disqualified as on 31st
March, 2024 from being appointed as a Director in terms of
Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls
over financial reporting of the Company and the operating
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Reportin
‘Annexure B”.

g) Withrespectto the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s
Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ¢  STANDALONE

1)

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations
on its financial position in its standalone Ind AS financial
statements - Refer Note 40 to the Standalone Ind AS
Financial Statements.

Provision relating to Material Foreseeable Losses on Long-
Term Contracts — Not Applicable. The company neither
entered into any derivative contract during the year nor have
any outstanding derivative contract at the year end.

There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to
be transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection Fund
by the Company.

Based on our audit procedures which we considered
reasonable and appropriate in the  circumstances, nothing
has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
various matters mentioned in “Disclosures of other Statutory
Information’ annexed to the Notes to accounts, contain any
material mis-statement.

The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the
year in contravention of the provisions of section 123 of the
CompaniesAct, 2013.

Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014
and Reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 - Based on our examination, which
included test checks, we state that :

The company has three divisions — Windoors, Coatings and
Walls. The Windoors division accounts are maintained in
Focus Software. The Coatings and Walls divisions accounts
are maintainedin SAP ERP.

The Focus accounting software used for maintaining books of
account for Windoors division does not have a feature of
recording audit trail (edit log) facility for the financial year
ended 31-03-2024.

The SAP ERP accounting software used for maintaining
books of account for Coatings and Walls divisions has a
feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility for the financial
year ended 31-03-2024 and the same has been enabled and
operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions in
the software. From our examination, we did not come across
any instance of the audit trail feature being tampered with.

For ANANT RAO & MALLIK
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 006266S

V. ANANT RAO
Partner

Place : Hyderabad
Date : 30-05-2024

Membership No. 022644
UDIN : 24022644BKANUP6706
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Annexure - Ato the Independent Auditors’ Report

The Annexure referred to in Paragraph 1 under the heading of
“Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” of our
report of even date to the members of NCL BUILDTEK LIMITED
(Formerly NCL Alltek &Seccolor Limited) for the year ended 31st
March, 2024 ;

Wereportthat:
(i) Withrespectto Property, Plantand Equipment:

(@) The Company has maintained proper records showing
full particulars, including quantitative details and
situation of Property, Plant and Equipment which needs
to be updated.

The Company has maintained proper records showing
full particulars, including quantitative details and
situation of Intangible Assets which needs to be updated.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to
us and on the basis of our examination of the records of
the Company, the Property, Plant and Equipment have
not been physically verified by the management during
the year.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to
us and on the basis of our examination of the records of
the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties
are held in the name of the Company.

(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and
Equipmentand the Intangible Assets during the year.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to
us and on the basis of our examination of the records of
the Company, no proceedings have been initiated or are
pending against the company under the Benami
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and the
rules made thereunder.

(i) (a) According to the information and explanations given to
us and on the basis of our examination of the records of
the Company, the management has conducted physical

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ¢  STANDALONE

(v) The Company has accepted fixed deposits from its

shareholders and General Public and as per the information
and explanations given to us, the Company has complied with
the directives of the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions
of sections 73 to 76 and other relevant provisions of the Act
and the rules framed thereunder, wherever applicable, and no
order has been passed against the Company by Company
Law Board or National Company Law Tribunal or Reserve
Bank of India or court or any other tribunal.

We have broadly reviewed the cost records maintained by
the Company relating toits products for which maintenance of
cost records has been specified by the Central Government
under Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and are of
the opinion that prima facie, the prescribed accounts and
records have been made and maintained. We have, however
not made a detailed examination of the records with a view to
determining whether they are accurate or complete.

(vii) With respectto Statutory Dues:

(@) According to the information and explanations given to
us and the records of the Company examined by us, the
Company is generally regular in depositing the
undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund,
Employees State Insurance, Income-tax, Wealth-Tax,
Value Added Tax, Service Tax, Goods and Services Tax,
Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise, Cess and other
material statutory dues as applicable to it, with the
appropriate authorities and there were no undisputed
statutory dues outstanding as at 31st March, 2024 for a
period exceeding six months from the date they became
payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to
us and the records of the Company examined by us, the
disputed statutory dues which have not been deposited
on account of disputed matters pending before
appropriate authorities as at 31st March 2024 are as
following :

. . . . . . ) Amount_ Amount . Pe!'iod to | h
s e e i gy T o R v |
) ’ ) relates pencing
verification, and the coverage and the procedures of | Theincome | income | 1094 219|875 2016-17 | Appeal
such verification are appropriate. We are informed that | ™/+"%°"| ™ Srpoca ey
no material discrepancies of 10 % or more in the o
aggregate in each class of inventory were noticed. flingan
(b) The company has been sanctioned working capital limits Hydorabad.
of more than Rs. 5 Crores by banks. The monthly S — A
returns filed by the company with Yes Bank Limited are GSTACt, | GST 1915 766 49| 200804 | sty
in agreement with the books of account of the company. 1963 2873 1149 1724] 200405 | scheme

(i) According to the information and explanations given to us
and on the basis of our examination of the records of the
company, the company had made an investment into M/s.
NCL Buildtek and NCL Industries JV — a Joint Venture
Partnership Firm, during the FY 2021-22 and the amount
outstanding as on 31-03-2024 is Rs. 400.00 Lakhs (Prev.
Year:Rs. 400 Lakhs). Thisinvestmentis not prejudicial to the
company’sinterest.

(iv) According to the information and explanations given to us,

(viii) On the basis of our examination of records and according to
the information and explanations given to us, the Company
does not have any transactions which are referred to in
clause (viii) of para 3 referred to in the said Order.

(ix) (a) In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the Company has not
defaulted in repayment of duesto banks and financial
institutions.

(b) In our opinion and according to the information and

the Company has complied with the provisions of Sections
185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of grant of
loans, making investments and providing guarantees and
securities, as applicable.

explanations given to us, the company has not been
declared as a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or other lender.
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(c) In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given tous, the Terms Loans availed by
the company were applied for the purposes for which
they were obtained.

(d) In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the company has not raised
funds on short term basis for utilisation for long term
purposes.

(e) Clauses (ix) (e) and (f) of para3 referred to in the
said Order are notapplicable.

(x) In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the Company has not raised any
monies by way of initial public offer or further public offer
during the year. The company has also not made any
preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
convertible debentures during the year. Therefore, clause
(x) of paragraph 3 of the said order is not applicable to the
Company.

(xi) In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations givento us, nofraud by the Company oron the
Company by its officers / employees / whistle blowers has
been noticed or reported during the year. Therefore, clauses
(xi) (a) to (xi) (c) of paragraph 3 of the said order are not
applicable to the Company.

(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, clauses
(xii)(a) to (xii)(c) of paragraph 3 of the said order are not
applicable to the Company.

(xiii) According to the information and explanations given to us
and based on our examination of the records of the
Company, transactions with the related parties are in
compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act, where
applicable, and details of such transactions have been
disclosed in the Ind AS financial statements as required by
the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv) (@) The Company has an Internal Audit System — a firm of
Chartered Accountants were appointed as Internal
Auditors for verification of the transactions as per the
scope prescribed by the Audit Committee of the Board.

(b) The Reports of the Internal Auditors for FY 2023-24 were
considered by us.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ¢  STANDALONE

(xv)  According to the information and explanations given to us
and based on our examination of the records of the
Company, the company has not entered into any non-cash
transactions with directors or persons connected with them
and as such the provisions of Section 192 of the Companies
Act, 2013 are notapplicable.

(xvi) According tothe information and explanations given to us
and based on our examination of of the records of the
Company, the company is not required to be registered
under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934
(2 of 1934). Therefore, clauses (xvi)(a) to (xvi)(d) of
paragraph 3 of the said order is not applicable to the
Company.

(xvii) According to the information and explanations given to us
and based on our examination of the records of the
Company, the Company has notincurred cash losses in
this financial year (FY 2023-24) and during the immediately
preceeding financial year (FY 2022-23).

(xviii) There has been no resignation by the Statutory Auditors of
the company during the year and as such provisions of
clause (xviii) of paragraph 3 of the said order is not
applicable to the Company.

(xix) According to the information and explanations given to us
and based on our examination of the records of the
Company, the information accompanying the financial
statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and
the management plans, no material uncertainty exists as
on the date of the audit report and the company is capable of
meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as
and when they fall due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date.

(xx) According to the information and explanations given to us
and based on our examination of the records of the
Company, the company does not have any on-going
projects or other projects and as such provisions of clause
(xx) (a) and (b) of paragraph 3 of the said order are not
applicable to the Company.

(xxi) According to the information and explanations given to us
and based on our examination of the records of the
company, there have been no qualifications or adverse
remarks in the Companies (Auditors Report) Order (CARO
Reports) in respect of its subsidiary company — M/s. NCL
ASL Services Private Limited — included in the consolidated
financial statements.

For ANANT RAO & MALLIK
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 006266S

V. ANANT RAO
Partner

Place : Hyderabad
Date : 30-05-2024

Membership No. 022644
UDIN : 24022644BKANUP6706
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Annexure - B to the Independent Auditor’s Report

The Annexure referred to in Paragraph 2 (f) under the heading of
“Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” of our
report of even date to the members of NCL BUILDTEK LIMITED
(Formerly NCL Alltek & Seccolor Limited) for the year ended 31st
March, 2024 :

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting
of NCLBUILDTEK LIMITED (Formerly, NCL Alltek & Seccolor Limited
(“the Company”) as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of
the Standalone Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the
year ended on thatdate.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls :

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
(‘ICAT’). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of
its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and
the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required
under the CompaniesAct, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility :

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal
financial controls over financial reporting based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance
Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to
be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to
the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both
applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and
if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining
an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures elected depend on the
auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the standalone Ind As financial statements, whether
due tofraud orerror.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ¢  STANDALONE

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s
internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting:

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a
process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of standalone Ind
AS financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and
procedures that:

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of
the assets of the company ;

(2) Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of standalone Ind As financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company
are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company ; and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company's assets that could have a material effect on the
standalone Ind AS financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting:

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over
financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes
in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion:

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such
internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on “the internal control over
financial reporting” criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For ANANT RAO & MALLIK
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 006266S

V. ANANT RAO

Partner

Membership No. 022644

UDIN : 24022644BKANUP6706

Place : Hyderabad
Date : 30-05-2024
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31,2024 e STANDALONE

Rs. in Lakhs
Sl. . As at As at
No. Particulars NoteNo. | march 31,2024 | March 31,2023
| ASSETS
1 Non-Current Assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 6 16,213.97 15,393.97
(b) Capital Work-in-Progress 7 234.52 741.59
(c) Intangible Assets 8 5.79 8.16
(d) Right-of-use asset 8A 626.65 633.32
(e) Financial Assets
(i) Investments 9 1,600.70 1,600.70
(ii) Other Financial Assets 10 262.79 343.09
(iii) Trade Receivables 13 664.45 884.04
(f) Other Non-Current Assets 11 131.70 -
Total Non-Current Assets 19,740.57 19,604.87
2 Current Assets
(a) Inventories 12 6,143.50 5,887.73
(b) Financial Assets
(i) Trade Receivables 13 8,708.36 8,442.34
(i) Cash and Cash Equivalents 14 267.47 264.23
(iiii) Bank Balances 15 910.45 998.56
(iv) Other Financial Assets 16 1,724.50 611.09
(c) Current Tax Assets (Net) 17 288.81 119.06
(d) Other Current Assets 18 1,774.02 2,016.31
Total Current Assets 19,817.11 18,339.32
Total Assets 39,557.68 37,944.19
Il EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
A Equity
(a) Equity Share Capital 19 1,156.97 1,156.97
(b) Other Equity 15,599.41 14,138.99
Total Equity 16,756.38 15,295.96
B Liabilities
1 Non-Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 20 2,636.18 4,931.89
(b) Provisions 21 1,018.29 821.45
(c) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 22 1,348.76 1,457.46
Total Non-Current Liabilities 5,003.23 7,210.80
2 Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 23 5,930.59 4,563.00
(i) Trade Payables 24
Dues to MSMEs 340.00 416.79
Dues to Others 3,303.32 3,437.14
(iii) Current Maturities 25 3,026.90 2,832.87
(iv) Other Financial Liabilities 2% 3,651.44 3,123.18
(b) Provisions 21 127.00 112.00
(c) Other Current Liabilities (Net) 27 1,418.82 952.45
Total Current Liabilities 17,798.07 15,437.43
Total Liabilities 22,801.30 22,648.23
Total Equity and Liabilities 39,557.68 37,944.19

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
The accompanying Notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements

For and on behalf of the Board

As per our report attached
For Anant Rao & Mallik
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No.006266S

V. Anant Rao

Partner

Membership No. 022644

Place : Hyderabad
Date : May 30, 2024

1-5

NCL Buildtek Limited
(formerly NCL Alltek & Seccolor Ltd.)

Bh. Subba Raju
Managing Director
DIN-08408400

B. Madhavi

Chief Financial Officer

NCL BUILDTEKLIMITED o

K. Satya Subram
Executive Director
DIN: 07573350

U. Divya Bharathi
Company Secretary
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2024 ¢ STANDALONE

Rs. in Lakhs
Sl . For the year ended | For the year ended
No. Particulars NoteNo. |~ ‘\arch 31,2024 | March 31,2023
| REVENUE
(a) Revenue from Operations
(b) Other Income 28 43,548.83 45,035.21
Total Revenue (1) 29 160.03 327.28
Il EXPENSES 43,708.86 45,362.49
(a) Cost of Materials Consumed 30 22,917.47 25,570.20
(b) Purchases of Traded Goods 494 47 443.95
(c) Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, Work-in-Progress 31 (167.14) (449.57)
(d) Other Manufacturing Expenses 32 4,786.74 5,268.60
(e) Employee Benefits Expenses 33 5,880.79 5,414.59
(f) Finance Costs 34 1,536.63 1,662.16
(9) Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses 35 1,131.15 1,108.00
(h) Other Expenses 36 4,825.35 4,523.31
Total Expenses (Il) 41,405.46 43,541.24
1] Profit / (Loss) before Exceptional Items (I-I1) 2,303.40 1,821.25
v Exceptional 37 6.75 1.74
v Profit / (Loss) before Tax (llI+V) 2,310.15 1,822.99
Vi Tax Expense 38
(a) Current Tax 768.60 303.69
(b) Deferred Tax (125.71) 174.50
(c) Adjustment of Current Tax relating to earlier years 74.70 -
Total Tax Expense (V) 717.59 478.19
Vil Profit / (Loss) for the year (V-VI) 1,592.56 1,344.80
Vil Other Comprehensive Income
(a) Re-measurement (loss) / gain on Employee Defined Benefit Plans 39 58.42 86.71
(b) Tax Expense 39 (17.01) (25.25)
Other Comprehensive Income (VIII) 4.4 61.46
IX Total Comprehensive Income for the year (VII+VIIl) 1,633.97 1,406.26
X Earnings Per Share (of ¥ 10 each) (Basic & Diluted) 41
() Excluding Exceptional Items (in ) 13.71 11.61
(b) Including Exceptional Items (in ¥) 13.76 11.62

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements

As per our report attached
For Anant Rao & Mallik
Chartered Accountants

NCL Buildtek Limited

Firm Reg. No.006266S

V. Anant Rao

Partner

Membership No. 022644

Place : Hyderabad
Date : May 30, 2024

Bh. Subba Raju
Managing Director
DIN-08408400

B. Madhavi
Chief Financial Officer

1-5

For and on behalf of the Board

(formerly NCL Alltek & Seccolor Ltd.)

K. Satya Subram
Executive Director
DIN: 07573350

U. Divya Bharathi
Company Secretary
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2024 ¢ STANDALONE

B. Other Equity Rs. in Lakhs
Reserves and Surplus
Particulars Securities | General Retained é?rw:rgﬁgggm Total
Premium Reserve Earnings Income
Balance as at March 31, 2022 34517 11,808.94 871.45 54.27 |13,079.83
Profit for the year - - 1,344.80 - 1,344.80
Other Comprehensive Income for the year, net of Income Tax - - - 61.46 61.46
Transfer to General Reserve - 75.96 (75.96) - -
Dividend to Equity Shareholders - - - -
- Dividend on Equity Shares - - (173.55) - (173.55)
- Interim Dividend on Equity Shares - - (173.55) - (173.55)
Balance as at March 31, 2023 34517 11,884.90 1,793.20 115.73 | 14,138.99
Profit / (Loss) for the period - - 1,592.56 - 1,592.56
Other Comprehensive Income for the period, net of Income Tax - - - 41.41 41.41
Transfer to General Reserve - - - -
Dividend to Equity Shareholders - - - -
- Dividend on Equity Shares - - - - -
Interim Dividend to Equity Shareholders - - - -
- Interim Dividend on Equity Shares - - (173.55) - (173.55)
Balance as at March 31, 2024 34517 11,884.90 3,212.21 157.14 | 15,599.41
The accompanying Notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements

As per our report Attached For and on behalf of the Board

For Anant Rao & Mallik NCL Buildtek Limited

Chartered Accountants (formerly NCL Alltek & Seccolor Ltd.)

Firm Reg. N0.006266S

V. Anant Rao Bh. Subba Raju K. Satya Subram

Partner Managing Director Executive Director

Membership No. 022644 DIN-08408400 DIN: 07573350

Place : Hyderabad B. Madhavi U. Divya Bharathi

Date : May 30, 2024 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2024 e STANDALONE

Rs. in Lakhs
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
A. Cash Flow from Operating Activities
Profit before Tax 2,351.55 1,884.40
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of Property, Plant and Equipment 1,124.83 1,074.45
Amortisation of Intangible Assets 6.32 33.57
Interest Income and Notional Income (110.29) (183.83)
Finance Costs 1,536.63 1,662.16
Derecognisation of Financial Assets 2.09 59.81
Adjustment for Exceptional Iltems (6.75) (0.19)
Operating Profit before Working Capital changes 4,904.38 4,530.36
Changes in Working Capital
- Adjustments for (increase) / decrease in Operating Assets:
Inventories (255.77) (108.48)
Trade Receivables (48.52) (8.02)
Current Financial Assets (1,113.36) (263.16)
Non-Current Financial Assets 80.31 (28.02)
Other Current Assets 564.12 1,663.01
- Adjustments for increase / (decrease) in Operating Liabilities: - -
Trade Payables (210.60) (541.96)
Other Financial Liabilities 528.26 (712.67)
Other Current Financial Liabilities and Provisions 678.20 (316.08)
Cash (used in) / generated from Operations 5,127.02 4,214.98
Income Taxes paid (1,114.15) (272.66)
Net Cash (used in) / generated from Operating Activities - (A) 4,012.87 3,942.32
B. Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment, including Intangible Assets, (1,672.62) (1,147.54)
Capital Work-in-Progress and Capital Advances
Proceeds from sale of Property, Plant and Equipment 40.62 3.31
Interest Received on Fixed Deposits 110.23 175.96
Investment in Joint Venture - 425.00
Net Cash used in Investing Activities - (B) (1,521.77) (543.27)
C. Cash Flow from Financing Activities
Increase in other non-current Assets (131.70)
Proceeds from Long Term Borrowings - 1,327.57
Repayment of Long Term Borrowings (2,101.67) (1,902.61)
Proceeds from / (repayment of) Short Term Borrowings (net) 1,367.59 43.20
Dividend paid (173.55) (347.09)
Finance Costs (1,536.63) (1,672.16)
Net Cash (used in) / from Financing Activities - © (2,575.95) (2,551.10)
Net (decrease) / increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents - (A+B+C) (84.86) 847.95
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year (Refer Note 13 & 14) 1,262.78 414.83
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year (Refer Note 13 & 14) 1,177.92 1,262.78
Components of Cash and Cash Equivalents:
Cash on Hand 4.01 3.42
Balances with Banks
In Current Accounts 263.46 260.80
In Dividend Accounts 83.74 77.85
In Deposit Accounts 826.71 920.71
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,177.92 1,262.78

Note:

The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the 'Indirect Method' as set out in the Ind AS-7 on Cash Flow Statements.

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements

For and on behalf of the Board
NCL Buildtek Limited

As per our report attached
For Anant Rao & Mallik

Chartered Accountants (formerly NCL Alltek & Seccolor Ltd.)
Firm Reg. No0.006266S

V. Anant Rao Bh. Subba Raju

Partner Managing Director

Membership No. 022644

Place : Hyderabad

Date : May 30, 2024

K. Satya Subram
Executive Director
DIN: 07573350

U. Divya Bharathi
Company Secretary

DIN-08408400

B. Madhavi
Chief Financial Officer
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NOTES AND OTHER EXPLANATORY INFORMATION TO Ind AS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ¢ STANDALONE

Notes and other explanatory information to Standalone Ind AS
Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2024.

Significant Accounting Policies:

1.

Corporate Information

NCL Buildtek Ltd (formerly NCL Alltek & Seccolor Limited (CIN
U72200TG1986PLC006601) is an Unlisted Public Limited
Company. The Company is engaged in manufacture and selling
of Spray Plasters, Paints, Skim Coat, Steel Profiles, Doors,
Windows (Steel, ABS , uPVC and Aluminium) and Fly Ash Bricks.
The Company is organized into three divisions namely:

Windoors: The Company manufactures colour coated Gl
windows, and over a period started manufacturing
ABS Doors in collaboration with KOS, South Korea,
uPVC Doors & Windows in collaboration with Veka
AG, Germany, and high-end Aluminum Windows in
partnership with SCHUECO, Germany.

Coatings: NCL Buildtek was the first Company in India to
manufacture Putty (Acrylic) and textured paint. The
company has developed several products during
last 3 decades which includes putties, textures,
emulsion paints, tile adhesives and masonry glue etc.

The company has set up its first AAC Block unit near
Kavuluru region, Ibrahimpatnam Mandal, Krishna
District of Andhra Pradesh. To cater to the demand
in the state of Andhra Pradesh, Tamil Nadu etc.,
Company has set up one more unitin Nellore District
of Andhra Pradesh. The total capacity of both the
units put together is about 7,49,600 Cubic meter.

Basis of Preparation

This note provides the list of the Significant Accounting Policies
adopted in the preparation of these Ind AS Financial Statements.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

a. Compliance withInd AS

The Financial Statements comply in all material aspects with
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133
of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) read with Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014, and other relevant amendments and
provisions of the Act.

b. Historical cost convention

The Financial Statements have been prepared on a historical
costbasis, except for the following:

+ Certain financial assets and liabilities (including derivative
instruments) and contingent consideration that is measured at
fairvalue;

Walls :

+ Assets held for sale —measured at fair value less cost to sell;
+ Defined benefit plans — plan assets measured at fair value; and
+ Share-based payments.

¢. Current/Non-Current Classification

Any Asset or Liability is classified as current if it satisfies any of
the following conditions:

+ Asset / Liability is expected to be realised / settled in the
Company’s normal operating cycle

+ Assetisintended for sale or consumption

+ Asset/Liability is held primarily for the purpose of trading

+ Assetis a cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from
being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting date

* In case of a Liability, the Company does not have an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at
least twelve months after the reporting date

Operating cycle for the business activities of the Company
covers the duration of the specific project / contract / product
line / service including the defect liability period wherever
applicable and extends up to the realisation of receivables
(including retention monies) within the agreed credit period
normally applicable to the respective lines of business. For
the purpose of this classification, the Company has
ascertained its normal operating cycle as twelve months or
the duration of the project / contract, which is based on the
nature of business and time between acquisition of assets
and inventories for processing and their realisation in Cash
and Cash Equivalents.

d. Preparation of Financial Statements and Statement of
CashFlows

The Standalone Financial Statements have been prepared in
Indian Rupees Lakhs (Rs. In Lakhs), which is the functional
currency of the company. Accounting policies with regards to
Foreign currency transactions have been explained under
Note 5.21.

The Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under
Indirect Method, whereby the statement is segregated into
Operating, Investing and Financial activities. Under
Operating Activities, Net profit or Loss before taxes is
adjusted for changes in working capital, non-cash
transactions and items associated with Investment or
Financial activities. The Company has considered Margin
Money and all Deposits maturing within next 12 months from
the end of Financial Year under cash and cash equivalent.

3. Significant Accounting Estimates and Judgements

Estimates, assumptions concerning the future and judgments are
made in the preparation of the Financial Statements. They affect
the application of the Company’s accounting policies, reporting
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expense and disclosures
made. Although these estimates are based on management’s best
knowledge of current events and actions, actual result may differ
fromthose estimates.

The critical accounting estimates and assumptions used and areas
involving a high degree of judgments are described below:

Use of estimates and assumptions

In the process of applying the entity’s accounting policies,
management had made the following estimates and assumptions
that have the significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
Financial Statements. The estimates and assumptions used in
accompanying Financial Statements are based upon
management’s evaluation of the relevant facts and circumstances
as of the date of the Financial Statements are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Actual results may differ from the estimates and
assumptions used in preparing the accompanying Financial
Statements. Any revision to accounting estimates is recognised
prospectively in current and future periods.
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NOTES AND OTHER EXPLANATORY INFORMATION TO Ind AS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ¢ STANDALONE

a. Property, Plant and Equipment & Intangible Assets

Key estimates related to long-lived assets (Property, Plant and
Equipment, Mineral Leaseholds and Intangible Assets) include
useful lives, recoverability of carrying values and the existence
of any retirement obligations. As a result of future decisions,
such estimates could be significantly modified. The useful lives
are applied as per Schedule Il of Companies Act, 2013 and
estimated based upon our historical experience, engineering
estimates and industry information. These estimates include an
assumption regarding periodic maintenance and an appropriate
level of annual capital expenditures to maintain the assets.

b.Employee Benefits-Measurement of Defined Benefit
Obligation

Management assesses post-employment and other employee
benefit obligations using the projected unit credit method based
on actuarial assumptions which represent management’s best
estimates of the variables that will determine the ultimate cost of
providing post-employment and other employee benefits.

c.Income Tax

The Company recognizes tax liabilities based upon self-
assessment as per the tax laws. When the final tax outcome of
these matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recognised, such differences will impact the income tax and
deferred tax provisions in the period in which such determination
ismade.

4. Critical judgements made in applying accounting policies

a. Lease Classifications

The Company evaluates if an arrangement qualifies to be a
lease as per the requirements of Ind AS 116. Identification of a
lease requires significant judgment. The Company uses
significant judgement in assessing the lease term (including
anticipated renewals) and the applicable discount rate.

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable
period of a lease, together with both periods covered by an
option to extend the lease if the Company is reasonably certain
to exercise that option; and periods covered by an option to
terminate the lease if the Company is reasonably certain not to
exercise that option. In assessing whether the Company is
reasonably certain to exercise an option to extend a lease, or not
to exercise an option to terminate a lease, it considers all
relevant facts and circumstances that create an economic
incentive for the Company to exercise the option to extend the
lease, or not to exercise the option to terminate the lease. The
Company revises the lease term if there is a change in the non-
cancellable period of a lease.

The discount rate is generally based on the incremental
borrowing rate specific to the lease being evaluated or for a
portfolio of leases with similar characteristics.

b.Expected Credit Loss

Expected Credit Losses of the Company are based on an
evaluation of the collectability of receivables. A considerable
amount of judgment is required in assessing the ultimate
realization of these receivables, including their current credit
worthiness, past collection history of each customer and
ongoing dealings with them. If the financial conditions of the
counterparties with which the Company contracted were to
deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their ability to make

payments, additional Expected Credit Loss may be required.

5. Material Accounting Policies

5.1 Property, Plantand Equipment and Depreciation

All items of Property, Plant and Equipment are initially
recorded at cost. The cost of an item of plantand equipment is
recognized as an asset if, and only if, it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Cost includes its purchase price (after deducting trade
discounts and rebates), import duties & non-refundable
purchase taxes, any costs directly attributable to bringing the
asset to the location & condition necessary for it to be capable
of operating in the manner intended by management,
Borrowing Costs on qualifying assets and asset retirement
costs. When parts of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment
have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate
items (major components) of Property, Plantand Equipment.

The activities necessary to prepare an asset for its intended
use or sale extend to more than just physical construction of
the asset. It may also include technical (DPR, environmental,
planning, land acquisition and geological study) and
administrative work such as obtaining approvals before the
commencement of physical construction.

The cost of replacing a part of an item of Property, Plant and
Equipment is capitalized if it is probable that the future
economic benefits of the part will flow to the Company and that
its cost can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
replaced partis derecognized.

Costs of day to day repairs and maintenance costs are
recognized into the Statement of Profitand Loss asincurred.

Subsequent to recognition, Property, Plant and Equipment
are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment losses.

The carrying values of Property, Plant and Equipment are
reviewed for impairment when events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be
recoverable.

The residual values, estimated useful lives and depreciation
method are reviewed at each financial year-end and adjusted
prospectively, if appropriate.

An item of Property, Plant and Equipment is derecognized
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset is recognised in the Statement of
Profitand Loss in the year the asset is derecognized.

Assets under installation or under construction as at the
Balance Sheet date are shown as Capital Work in Progress.

Depreciation is provided on Straight Line Method, as per the
provisions of Schedule |l of the Companies Act, 2013 or based
on useful life estimated on the technical assessment. Asset
class wise useful lives are as under:

Factory Buildings - 30 Years
Non-Factory Buildings - 60 Years
Plantand Machinery - 15Years

Computer - 3Years
Furniture and Fixtures - 10 Years
Vehicles - 8Years
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Electrical Installation - 10 Years
Office Equipment - 5Years

Intangible Assets & Amortization

Intangible Assets are recognised when it is probable that the
future economic benefits that are attributable to the asset will
flow to the enterprise and the cost of the asset can be
measured reliably.

Intangible Assets are stated at cost of acquisition less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any. Product development cost recognises on initial
product registration charges, analysis and other relevant
costs and are stated as intangible assets less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses.

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of Intangible
Assets are added to its book value only if they increase the
future benefits from the existing asset beyond its previously
assessed standard of performance.

Company amortizes Computer Software and Licences using
the straight-line method over its estimated useful economic
life, which is generally a period of 3 years.

Investment Properties

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both is classified as Investment Property.
Investment Property is measured at its cost, including related
transaction costs and where applicable Borrowing Costs.
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised to the asset’s carrying
amount only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company and
the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs
and maintenance costs are expensed when incurred. When
part of an Investment Property is replaced, the carrying
amountof the replaced partis derecognized.

Investment Properties are depreciated using the straight-line
method as per the provisions of Schedule Il of the Companies
Act, 2013 or based on useful life estimated on the technical
assessment.

Inventories

Raw Materials, Consumables, Stores and Spares and
Finished Goods are valued at lower of cost and net realizable
value. Costis determined on weighted average cost method.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of
completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Inventories are valued atlower of cost or net realizable value.

Goods-in transit are valued at cost which represents the cost
incurred up to the stage atwhich the goods are in transit.

Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether there
is any indication that an asset may be impaired. Where an
indicator of impairment exists, the Company makes a formal
estimate of recoverable amount. Where the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount the asset is
considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable
amount.

Recoverable amount is the greater of fair value less costs to
sell and value in use. It is determined for an individual asset,

5.6

5.7

unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are
largely independent of those from other assets or groups of
assets, in which case, the recoverable amount is determined
forthe cash generating unit to which the asset belongs.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset.

Non-current Assets Held for Sale

Non-current Assets, or disposal groups comprising assets
and liabilities, that are expected to be recovered through sale
rather than through continuing use, are classified as Held for
Sale. Immediately before classification as Held for Sale, the
assets or components of the disposal group, are re-measured
in accordance with the Company’s Accounting Policies.
Thereafter, the assets or disposal group, are measured at the
lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.
Any impairment losses on initial classification as Held for Sale
or subsequent gain on re-measurement are recognized into
the Statement of Profit and Loss. Gains are not recognized in
excess of any cumulative impairment losses.

Financial Assets

Financial Assets comprise of investments in equity and debt
securities, Trade Receivables, Cash and Cash Equivalents
and Other Financial Assets.

Initial recognition:

All Financial Assets are recognized initially at fair value.
Purchases or sales of Financial Asset that require delivery of
assets within a time frame established by regulation or
convention in the market place (regular way trades) are
recognized on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company
commits to purchase or sell the assets.

Subsequent Measurement:
a) Financial Assets measured at amortised cost:

Financial Assets held within a business model whose
objective is to hold Financial Assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the
Financial Assets give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding are measured at amortised
cost using Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method. The EIR
amortization is recognised as finance income in the
Statement of Profit and Loss. The Company while
applying above criteria has classified the following at
amortised cost:

* Trade Receivables
+ Cashand Cash Equivalents
+ OtherFinancial Assets

b) Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Other
Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI):

Financial Assets held within a business model whose
objective is to hold Financial Assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows, selling the Financial Assets and
the contractual terms of the Financial Assets give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding
are measured at FVTOCI. Fair Value movements in

~
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Financial Assets at FVTOCI are recognised in Other
Comprehensive Income. Equity instruments held for
trading are classified at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss
(FVTPL). For other equity instruments the Company
classifies the same at FVTOCI. The classification is made
on initial recognition and is irrevocable. Fair Value
changes on equity investments at FVTOCI, excluding
dividends are recognised in Other Comprehensive
Income (OCI).

c) Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss
(FVTPL)

Financial Assets are measured at Fair Value Through
Profit or Loss if it does not meet the criteria for
classification as measured at amortised cost or at Fair
Value Through Other Comprehensive Income. All fair
value changes are recognised in the Statement of Profit
and Loss.

d) Investment in subsidiaries, joint ventures &
associates are carried at cost in the separate Financial
Statements.

Impairment of Financial Assets:

Financial Assets are tested for impairment based on the
Expected Credit Losses.

a) Trade Receivables

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting
date. The Expected Credit Losses over life time of the
asset are estimated by adopting the simplified approach
using a provision matrix which is based on historical loss
rates reflecting current condition and forecasts of future
economic conditions. In this approach, assets are grouped
on the basis of similar credit characteristics such as
customer segment, past due status and other factors
which are relevant to estimate the expected cash loss from
these assets.

b) Other Financial Assets

Other Financial Assets are tested forimpairment based on
significant change in credit risk since initial recognition and
impairment is measured based on probability of default
over the life time when there is significant increase in credit
risk.

De-recognition of Financial Assets:
AFinancial Asset s derecognized only when:

+ The Company has transferred the rights to receive cash
flows from the Financial Asset or

+ The contractual right to receive cash flows from Financial
Assetis expired or

+ Retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of
the Financial Asset, but assumes a contractual obligation
to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

Where the entity has transferred an asset and transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the
Financial Asset, in such cases the Financial Asset is
derecognized. Where the entity has neither transferred a
Financial Asset nor retains substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership of the Financial Asset, the Financial
Asset is also derecognized if the Company has not
retained control of the Financial Asset.

5.8

5.9

5.10

5.11

5.12

Cashand Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents comprise cash at bank and in hand
and short-term investments with an original maturity of three
months or less. Deposits with banks are subsequently measured
at amortized cost and short term investments are measured at
fair value through Statement of Profitand Loss.

Share Capital

Equity Shares are classified as equity.
Financial Liabilities

Initial recognition

Financial Liabilities are recognized when, and only when, the
Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
financial instrument. The Company determines the classification
of its Financial Liabilities at initial recognition. All Financial
Liabilities are recognized initially at fair value plus any directly
attributable transaction costs, such as loan processing fees and
issue expenses.

Subsequent measurement - atamortised cost

After initial recognition, Financial Liabilities are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the Effective Interest Rate
(EIR) method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the liabilities are de recognised, and through the
amortization process.

Derecognition

Afinancial liability is de recognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled or expired. When an existing
financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is
treated as a de recognition of the original liability and the
recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in Statement of Profitand Loss.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing Costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale
are capitalized as part of the cost of the respective asset. All
other Borrowing Costs are expensed in the period they occur.
Borrowing Costs consist of interest, exchange differences
arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent they are
regarded as an adjustment to the interest cost and other costs
thatan entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the Borrowing Costs eligible for
capitalization.

Employee Benefits

Employee Benefits are charged to the Statement of Profit and
Loss forthe year.

Retirement benefits in the form of Provident Fund are defined
contribution scheme and such contributions are recognised,
when the contributions to the respective funds are due. There
are no other obligation other than the contribution payable to the
respective funds Gratuity liability is defined benefit obligation
and is provided for on the basis of actuarial valuation on
projected unit credit method made at the end of each financial
year. Re-measurement in case of defined benefit plans gains
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and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in
actuarial assumptions are recognised in the period in which they
occur, directly in Other Comprehensive Income and they are
included in retained earnings in the Statement of Changes in
Equity inthe Balance Sheet.

Compensated absences are provided for on the basis of
actuarial valuation on projected unit credit method made at the
end of each financial year. Re-measurements as a result of
experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions
are recognised in Statement of Profitand Loss.

The amount of Non-current and Current portions of Employee
Benefits is classified as per the actuarial valuation at the end of
each financial year.

Income Taxes

Income tax expense is comprised of current and deferred taxes.
Current and deferred tax is recognized in net income except to
the extent that it relates to a business combination or items
recognized directly in equity or in Other Comprehensive
Income. Current income taxes for the current period, including
any adjustments to tax payable in respect of previous years, are
recognized and measured at the amount expected to be
recovered from or payable to the taxation authorities based on
the tax rates that are enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognized for
temporary differences between the Financial Statements
carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their
respective tax base using the tax rates that are expected to
apply in the period in which the deferred tax asset or liability is
expected to settle, based on the laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognized if the
temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable income nor the accounting income. Deferred tax assets
are generally recognized for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable income
will be available against which they can be utilized. Deferred tax
assets are reviewed at each reporting date and reduced
accordingly to the extent that it is no longer probable that they
can be utilized.

In the situations where the Company is entitled to a tax holiday
under the Income-Tax Act, 1961 enacted in India or tax laws
prevailing in the respective tax jurisdictions where it operates,
no deferred tax (asset or liability) is recognized in respect of
temporary differences which reverse during the tax holiday
period, to the extent the Company’s gross total income is subject
to the deduction during the tax holiday period.

Deferred tax in respect of temporary differences which reverse
after the tax holiday period is recognized in the year in which the
temporary differences originate. However, the Company
restricts recognition of deferred tax assets to the extent that it
has become reasonably certain, that sufficient future taxable
income will be available against which such deferred tax assets
can be realized. For recognition of deferred taxes, the temporary
differences which originate first are considered to reverse first.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is legally
enforceable right of offset current tax assets and liabilities when

5.14

5.15

the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority.
Current tax asset and liabilities are offset where the entity has
legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a
net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT)

MAT creditis recognised as an asset only when and to the extent
there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal
income tax during the specified period. In the year in which the
MAT credit becomes eligible to be recognized as an asset in
accordance with the recommendations contained in Guidance
Note issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India,
the said asset is created by way of a credit to the statement of
profit and loss and shown as MAT Credit Entitlement. The
Company reviews the same at each Balance Sheet date and
writes down the carrying amount of MAT Credit Entitlement to
the extent there is no longer convincing evidence to the effect
that Company will pay normal income tax during the specified
period.

Leases

Effective April 1, 2019, the Company has applied Ind AS 116
using the modified retrospective approach and therefore the
comparative information has not been restated and continues to
be reported under IndAS 17.

For contracts entered into or changed, on or after April 1, 2019,
the Company assesses whether a contract is or contains a
lease. A contract is or contains a lease if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset, the Company assesses whether:

« the contractinvolves the use of anidentified asset;

+ the Company has the right to obtain substantially all of the
economic benefits from use of the asset throughout the period
ofuse;and

+ the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At inception or on reassessment of a contract that contains a
lease component, the Company allocates the consideration in
the contract to each lease component on the basis of their
relative stand-alone prices. However, for the leases of land and
buildings in which itis a lesseg, the Company has elected not to
separate non-lease components and account for the lease and
non-lease components as a single lease component.

For contracts entered into before April 1, 2019, the Company
determined whether the arrangement was or contained a lease
based on the assessment of whether:

« fulfilment of the arrangement was dependent on the use of a
specific asset or assets; and

+ thearrangementhad conveyed a right to use the asset.
Company as alessee

The Company recognises a Right-of-use Asset and a Lease
Liability at the lease commencement date. The Right-of-use
Asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial
amount of the Lease Liability adjusted for any lease payments
made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct
costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove
the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site
onwhichitis located, less any lease incentives received.
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The Right-of-use Asset is subsequently depreciated using the
straight-line method from the commencement date to the earlier
of the end of the useful life of the Right-of-use Asset or the end of
the lease term. The estimated useful lives of Right-of-use Assets
are determined on the same basis as those of Property, Plant
and Equipment. In addition, the Right-of-use Asset is
periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted
for certain remeasurements of the Lease Liability.

The Lease Liability is initially measured at the present value of
the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement
date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if
that rate cannot be readily determined, the Company’s
incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the Company uses its
incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the Lease
Liability comprise the following:

+ fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments;

+ variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate,
initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date;

+ amounts expected to be payable under a residual value
guarantee; and

+ the exercise price under a purchase option that the Company
is reasonably certain to exercise, lease payments in an
optional renewal period if the Company is reasonably certain
to exercise an extension option, and penalties for early
termination of a lease unless the Company is reasonably
certain not to terminate early.

The Lease Liability is measured at amortised cost using the
Effective Interest Rate method (EIR). It is remeasured when
there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change
inanindexorrate, ifthere is a change in the Company’s estimate
of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value
guarantee or if the Company changes its assessment of whether
it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination option.

In certain Agreements under Lease where the annual rental
payments under lease are nominal, the company has decided
not calculate its Present value using EIR method. The company
recognises such payments in Statement of Profitand Loss.

When the Lease Liability is remeasured in this way, a
corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the
Right-of-use Asset, or is recorded in Statement of Profit and
Loss if the carrying amount of the Right-of-use Asset has been
reduced to zero.

The Company presents Right-of-use Assets that do not meet the
definition of investment property and Lease Liabilities as a
separate line item on the face of the Balance Sheet.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets: The
Company has elected not to recognise Right-of-use Assets and
Lease Liabilities for short-term leases that have a lease term of
12 months or less and leases of low-value assets. The Company
recognises the lease payments associated with these leases as
an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Asalessor

Lease income from operating leases where the Company is a
lessor is recognised in income on a straight-line basis over the
lease term unless the receipts are structured to increase in line

with expected general inflation to compensate for the expected
inflationary cost increases. The respective Leased Assets are
included in the Balance Sheet based on their nature.

5.16 Provisions

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the
Company has a present legal or constructive obligation that can
be estimated reliably and it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation.
Provisions are measured at the present value of management's
best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate
used to determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to
the passage of time is recognised as interest expense and is
recorded over the estimated time period until settiement of the
obligation. Provisions are reviewed and adjusted, when
required, to reflect the current best estimate at the end of each
reporting period.

The Company recognizes decommissioning provisions in the
period in which a legal or constructive obligation is incurred. A
corresponding decommissioning cost is added to the carrying
amount of the associated Property, Plantand Equipmentand itis
depreciated over the estimated useful life of the asset.

5.17 ContingentLiabilities

Contingent Liability is disclosed in case of:

+ A present obligation arising from past events, when it is not
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation;

« Apresentobligation arising from past events, when no reliable
estimate is possible;

+ A possible obligation arising from past events whose
existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the
control of the Company where the probability of outflow of
resourcesis notremote.

5.18 ContingentAssets

Contingent Assets are not recognized but disclosed in the
Financial Statements when an inflow of economic benefits is
probable.

5.19 FairValue Measurements

Company uses the following hierarchy when determining fair
values:

+ Level 1 — Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities;

+ Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1
that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly
(prices) orindirectly (derived from prices); and

+ Level 3 - Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data.

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is
based on quoted market prices at the reporting dates. A market
is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly
available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group,
pricing service, or regulatory agency and those prices represent
actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm'’s
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length basis. The fair value for these instruments is determined
using Level 1inputs.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an
active market (for example, over the counter derivatives) is
determined by using valuation techniques. These valuation
techniques maximize the use of observable market data where it
is available and rely as little as possible on entity specific
estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an
instrument are observable, the instrument is fair valued using
level 2inputs.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable
market data, the instrument is fair valued using Level 3 inputs.
Specific valuation techniques used to value financial
instrumentsinclude:

+ Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments

+ The fair value of interest rate swaps is calculated as the
present value of the estimated future cash flows based on
observable yield curves

+ The fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts is
determined using forward exchange rates at the reporting
dates, with the resulting value discounted back to present
value

+ Other techniques, such as discounted cash flow analysis, are
used to determine fair value for the remaining financial
instruments.

5.20 Revenue Recognition

The Company recognises revenue from contracts with
customers based on a five-step model, such as to, identifying the
contracts with a customer, identifying the performance
obligations in the contract, determine the transaction price,
allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in
the contract and recognise revenue when (or as) the entity
satisfies a performance obligation ata pointin time or over time.

The Company satisfies a performance obligation and
recognises revenue over time, if one of the following criteria is
met:

+ The customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Company’s performance as the
Company performs; or

+ The Company’s performance creates or enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the asset is created or
enhanced; or

+ The Company’s performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Company and the entity has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed to
date.

5.21

For performance obligations where one of the above conditions
are notmet, revenue is recognised at the point in time at which
the performance obligation is satisfied.

Foreign Currency Transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the
functional currency of the Company, at exchange rates in effect
at the transaction date. At each reporting date monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the exchange rate in effect at the date of the Financial
Statements. The translation for other non-monetary assets is not
updated from historical exchange rates unless they are carried
atfairvalue.

5.22 Government Grants

Government Grants are recognised where there is reasonable
assurance that the grant will be received and all attached
conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an
expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis
over the periods that the related costs, for which it is intended to
compensate, are expensed.

5.23 Earnings Per Share

Basic Earnings Per Share are calculated by dividing the profit
attributable to owners of the Company by the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year,
adjusted for bonus elements in equity shares issued during the
year and excluding treasury shares.

Diluted Earnings Per Share adjust the figures used in the
determination of Basic Earnings Per Share to take into account,
the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs
associated with dilutive potential equity shares and the weighted
average number of additional equity shares that would have
been outstanding assuming the conversion of all dilutive
potential equity shares.

5.24 Segmental Reporting

Operating Segments are reported in a manner consistent with
the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision
makers, who are responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the Operating Segments.

6. RecentPronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standards or
amendments to the existing Standards under Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 from time to time.
For this year ending on 31st March, 2024, MCA has not notified
any amendments or new standards to the existing standards
applicable to the company.
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Note 7A. Capital Work-in-Progress Ageing Schedule : Rs. in Lakhs
Particulars Amount in CWIP for a year of:
Less than 1 year 1-2years | 2-3years | Morethan3years| Total
Balance as at March 31, 2024
(i) Projects in Progress
(a) Projects 185.80 - - - 185.80
(b) Others 8.70 - 2.05 37.97 48.72
(ii) Projects Temporarily suspended
Total 194.50 - 2.05 37.97 234.53
Balance as at March 31, 2023
(i) Projects in Progress
(a) Projects 683.85 - - - 683.85
(b) Others 17.77 2.00 6.65 31.32 57.74
(ii) Projects Temporarily suspended
Total 701.63 2.00 6.65 31.32 741.59
Note 8. Intangible Assets Rs. in Lakhs
Particulars Computer Software
Gross Carrying Value
Balance as at April 1, 2022 98.70
Additions -
Disposals / Deductions -
Balance as at March 31, 2023 98.70
Additions 0.58
Disposals / Deductions -
Balance as at March 31, 2024 99.28
Amortisation and Impairment
Balance as at April 1, 2022 78.16
Amortisation expenses 12.38
Amortisation on Disposals / Deductions -
Balance as at March 31, 2023 90.54
Amortisation expenses 2.95
Amortisation on Disposals / Deductions -
Balance as at March 31, 2024 93.49
Net Carrying Value
As at March 31, 2023 8.16
As at March 31, 2024 5.79
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Note 8A. Right-of-use asset Rs. in Lakhs
Particulars Leasehold Land
Gross Carrying Value
Balance as at March 31, 2022 32.61
Additions 627.51
Disposals / Deductions -
Balance as at March 31, 2023 660.12
Additions .
Disposals / Deductions -
Balance as at March 31, 2024 660.12
Depreciation and Impairment
Balance as at March 31, 2022 5.61
Depreciation Expense 21.19
Depreciation on Disposals / Deductions -
Balance as at March 31, 2023 26.80
Depreciation Expense 6.68
Depreciation on Disposals / Deductions -
Balance as at March 31, 2024 33.47
Net Carrying Value
As at March 31, 2023 633.32
As at March 31, 2024 626.65

Note 9. Investments Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars As at As at

March 31,2024 | March 31, 2023

I) |Unquoted Investments :

(a) |Investment in Equity Instruments of Subsidiaries

NCL ASL Services Pvt. Ltd. (Formerly Span Tile Mfg. Co. Pvt. Ltd.)
20,460 equity shares of Rs. 100 each fully paid up ( Previous year 20,460 equity shares) 70.00 70.00

Total 70.00 70.00

(b) | Investment in Equity Instruments of Associates held for sale
NCL Veka Limited (Formerly NCL Wintech India Ltd.)

6,231,799 equity shares of Rs. 10 fully paid-up (Previous year 6,231,799 equity shares) 1,130.70 1,130.70

Total 1,130.70 1,130.70
(c) |Investment in Joint Venture

NCL Buildtek & NCL Industries JV (Equal Ratio of 50% each between NCL Industries 400.00 400.00

Limited and NCL Buildtek Limited)

Total 400.00 400.00
Total 1,600.70 1,600.70
Note 10. Other Financial Assets Rs. in Lakhs

Particul As at As at
artictiars March 31,2024 | March 31,2023
Non Current (unsecured, considered good, unless stated otherwise)
Security Deposits 93.93 95.55
Other Advances 136.37 215.06
Interest refundable from SBI (Excess collected) 32.48 32.48
Total 262.79 343.09
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Note 11. Other Non Current Asset

Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2023

As at
March 31, 2024

Non Current (unsecured, considered good, unless stated otherwise)

Other Deposits 131.70
Total 131.70 -
Note 12. Inventories Rs. in Lakhs
Particul As at As at
articufars March 31,2024 | March 31, 2023
Raw Materials and Packing Materials 3,686.52 3,591.46
Work-in-Progress 1,227.89 795.30
Finished Goods 785.82 1,051.27
Stores and Spares 443.27 449.70
Total 6,143.50 5,887.73
Note 13. Trade Receivables Rs. in Lakhs
Particul As at As at
articufars March 31,2024 | March 31, 2023
i) Current:
Unsecured, Considered good 8,708.36 8,442.34
Less: Provision for Credit Impaired - -
Total 8,708.36 8,442.34
ii) Non Current:
Unsecured, Considered good 721.02 977.12
Less: Provision for Credit Impaired 56.57 93.08
Total 664.45 884.04
Note 13.1 Trade Receivables Ageing Rs. in Lakhs
As at March 31, 2024
. Less than |6 months - More than
Particulars 6months | 1 year 1-2years | 2-3years | "5 years Total
Undisputed Trade receivables — due and considered good 5156.46 | 989.36 898.00 1,534.98 | 129.57 | 8,708.36
Total 5,156.46 | 989.36 898.00 1,534.98 | 129.57 | 8,708.36
As at March 31, 2023 Rs. in Lakhs
. Less than |6 months - More than
Particulars 6 months | 1 year 1-2years | 2-3years | "5 years Total
Undisputed Trade receivables — due and considered good 4,895.11 | 1,085.11 929.68 1,321.89 | 210.55 | 8,442.34
Total 4,89511 | 1,085.11 | 929.68 1,321.89 | 210.55 | 8,442.34
Note 14. Cash and Cash Equivalents Rs. in Lakhs
Particul As at As at
articufars March 31,2024 | March 31,2023
Cash on Hand 4.01 3.42
Balances with Banks
- In Current Accounts 263.46 260.80
Total 267.47 264.23
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Note 15. Bank Balances Rs. in Lakhs
Particul As at As at

articufars March 31,2024 | March 31,2023

In Deposit Accounts

Deposits maturing for more than 3 months but less than 12 months 499.05 231.92
Margin Money 193.63 47712
- Fixed Deposit Reserve 134.02 211.67
- In Dividend Accounts 83.74 77.85
Total 910.45 998.56

Note 16. Other Financial Assets Rs. in Lakhs
Particul As at As at

articufars March 31,2024 | March 31,2023
Advances to Employees 14.53 17.14
EMD & Security Deposits 5.92 5.92
Deposits 3.02 3.02
Deposit with Others 29.81 27.02
Interest Receivable 13.10 13.04
Insurance Claim Receivable * 264.67 293.91
Inter Corporate Loan Given 1,393.46 210.12
Dividend Receivable - 40.92
Total 1,724.50 611.09

*

On October 1, 2020 a fire broke out in a shed located in Factory premises at Mattapally, Suryapet District, Telengana, wherein certain
equipment and inventory items were stored. There has been no loss of life. The Assets and Inventory items are fully insured with the National
Insurance Company Limited and the Company is following up with the insurance company for settlement of the claim. Based on the conditions
of insurance policy, an amount of Rs. 17,15,891 has been provided for (exceptional item) in the financial year 2020-21 and the claim amount of
Rs. 2,93,90,673 (after adjusting salvage disposal value of Rs. 15,25,786) is shown above as receivable. Out of the above, the company
received an amount of Rs. 29,24,001 and accepted the amount under protest.

Note 17. Current Tax Assets (Net) Rs. in Lakhs
Particul As at As at
articufars March 31,2024 | March 31,2023
Current Tax Assets (net) 288.81 119.06
Total 288.81 119.06
Note 18. Other Current Assets Rs. in Lakhs
Particul As at As at
articufars March 31,2024 | March 31, 2023
MAT Credit Entitlement 220.81 102.70
Advances for Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment 499.02 295.30
Advances to Suppliers 281.71 460.78
Prepaid Expenses 343.86 326.11
Balances with Statutory / Government Authorities 428.62 831.42
Total 1,774.02 2,016.31
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Note 19. Equity Share Capital Rs. in Lakhs
As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Particulars
No. of Shares Amount No. of Shares Amount

Authorised Share Capital

Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each 250.00 2,500.00 250.00 2,500.00

Issued Share Capital

Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each 127.45 1,274.54 127.45 1,274.54

Subscribed and Paid up Share Capital

Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each 115.70 1,156.97 115.70 1,156.97

Total 115.70 1,156.97 115.70 1,156.97
19.1 Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period Rs. in Lakhs

As At March 31, 2024 As At March 31, 2023
Particulars
No. of Shares Amount No. of Shares Amount
Opening Shares Outstanding 115.70 1,156.97 115.70 1,156.97
Add: Issued during the period - - - -
Closing Shares Outstanding 115.70 1,156.97 115.70 1,156.97

19.2 The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one
vote per share atthe general meeting of the Company. The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian Rupees.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after
distribution of all preferential amounts in the proportion of the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

19.3 Details of shareholders, holding more than 5% shares in the Company Rs. in Lakhs
. As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Particulars
No. of Shares % Holding No. of Shares % Holding

Sri. K. Ravi 7.01 6.06 7.01 6.06
Sri. K. Gautam 7.76 6.71 7.76 6.71
Smt. K. Anuradha 8.51 7.36 4.61 3.98
Smt. K. Pooja 8.32 719 8.32 719

19.4 Details of Shares held by promoters Rs. in Lakhs
Sl. Sharsholder's N As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31,2023 | Change During the Year
No. areholder's Rame No. of Shares | % Holding |No. of Shares | % Holding | Sales |Purchase | % of change
1 |Pooja Kalidindi 8.32 7.19 8.32 7.19 - -
2 |Gautam Kalidindi 7.76 6.71 7.76 6.71 - -
3 |Kalidindi Ravi 7.01 6.06 7.01 6.06 - -
4 | Kalidindi Roopa 5.67 4.90 5.65 4.88 - 0.02 0.01%
5 |Ashven Datla 4.30 3.72 5.65 4.88 1.35 - -1.17%
6 |Kalidindi Shilpa 5.61 4.85 5.61 4.85 - - -
7 |Anuradha Kalidindi 8.51 7.36 4.61 3.98 - 3.90 3.37%
8 |Madhu Kalidindi - - 3.90 3.37 3.90 - -3.37%
9 |Goradia Vinodrai Vachharaj 2.08 1.79 2.08 1.79 - - -

Goradia Charulata Vinodrai
10 [Goradia Charulata Vinodrai 1.98 1.71 1.98 1.71 - -
Goradia Vinodrai Vachharaj

11 | Divya Penumacha 1.50 1.30 1.50 1.30 - -
12 [Kanumilli Sudheer 1.34 1.16 1.34 1.16 - -
13 |Vijaya Lakshmi Kanumilli 1.16 1.00 1.16 1.00 - -
14 |Madhavi Penumasta 1.05 0.90 1.05 0.90 - -
15 [K Mallika 0.99 0.85 0.99 0.85 - -
16 |G Jyothi 0.97 0.84 0.97 0.84 - - -
17 [Varma PAK 0.87 0.84 0.97 0.84 0.10 - -0.09%
18 |Padma Gottumukkala 0.96 0.83 0.96 0.83 - - -
19 |Penmetsa Narasimha Raju - - - - -
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20 |Sridevi Manthena 0.88 0.76 0.88 0.76 - -
21 |Penmetsa Vara Lakshmi - - - - - -
22 |Geeta GoradiaNirhmal V Goradia 0.83 0.71 0.83 0.71 - - -
23 |Nirmala Kanumilli 0.96 0.71 0.82 0.71 - 0.13 0.11%
24 |Aditi Krishna Sundari Penumatcha 0.66 0.57 0.66 0.57 - - -
25 |Meera B Goradia Bimal V Goradia 0.58 0.50 0.58 0.50 - - -
26 |Somaraju Sakhineti 0.57 0.49 0.57 0.49 - - -
27 |P Aparna Krishna 0.50 0.43 0.50 0.43 - - -
28 |Parvati Sakhineti 0.50 0.43 0.50 0.43 - - -
29 |Penumatsa Satyanarayana Raju 0.45 0.39 0.45 0.39 - - -
30 |Bimal Goradia Meera Goradia 0.32 0.28 0.32 0.28 - - -
31 |Utkal B Goradia Hiral U Goradia 0.31 0.27 0.31 0.27 - - -
32 |Kanumilli Malathi 0.29 0.25 0.29 0.25 - - -
33 [Surapaneni Madhavi 0.27 0.23 0.27 0.23 - - -
34 |Nirhmal V Goradia Geeta Goradia 0.24 0.21 0.24 0.21 - - -
35 |ValliP 0.24 0.21 0.24 0.21 - - -
36 |Penmetcha Manoj Raj 0.23 0.19 0.23 0.19 - - -
37 |Vijaya Raghavan Endlur 0.20 0.18 0.20 0.18 - - -
38 |Kalidindi Abhiram Chandra 0.18 0.16 0.18 0.16 - - -
39 |Ashwin Goradia Bharti Goradia 0.14 0.12 0.14 0.12 - - -
40 | Sai Sreedhar Kanumilli - 0.1 0.13 0.1 0.13 - -0.11%
41 |Bharti Goradia Ashwin Goradia 0.10 0.09 0.10 0.09 - - -
42 | Subba Raju Bhupatiraju 0.35 0.30 0.10 0.08 - 0.25 0.22%
43 |G.T.Sandeep 0.08 0.07 0.08 0.07 - - -
44 | Hiral Utkal Goradia Utkal Bimal Goradia 0.05 0.04 0.05 0.04 - - -
45 |"Meera Bimal Goradia Bimal V Goradia" 0.01 0.00 0.01 0.00 - - -
46 |Bharti A Goradia 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 - - -
47 |Diti Ashwin Goradia 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 - - -
48 |Nishi Ashwin Goradia 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 - - -
Total Shares held by promoters 69.01 59.73 70.19 60.67 5.48 4.30 -1.02%
Note 20. Borrowings Rs. in Lakhs
Non Current Current
Particulars As at As at As at As at
March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Secured at Amortised Costs
Term Loans
YES Bank - Rupee Term Loans 1,383.98 3,317.01 1,950.99 1,758.50
Vehicle Loans from Banks - Hire Purchase 299.84 82.52 25.47 2751
Unsecured Loans - - - -
Fixed Deposits from Public and Shareholders (includes interest due of 851.63 1,464.07 1,050.45 1,046.86
Rs. 141.71 lakhs March 31, 2024 Rs. 205.60 lakhs
Deposits from Dealers 124.59 92.14 - -
2,660.03 4,955.74 3,026.90 2,832.87
Current portion of Financial Liabilities are disclosed under - - 3,026.90 2,832.87
the head Current Maturities (Note 25)
Less: Unamortised upfront fees and other borrowing cost 23.85 23.85 -
Total 2,636.18 4,931.89 - -
(a) The details of Term Loans from Banks and Financial Institutions are as under: Rs. in Lakhs
Outstanding as | Outstanding as Sanction Initial
Particulars on March 31, | on March 31, Amount Commencement
2024 2023 of instalments
YES Bank - Guaranteed Emergency Credit 866.29 1,314.29 1,820.00 Feb, 2022
YES Bank - Guaranteed Emergency Credit 670.95 890.15 900.00 April, 2023
YES Bank- Term Loan || 1,797.73 2,871.08 5,000.00 Jun, 2020
During years
2021-22
Vehicle Loan - HDFC Bank Limited and ICICI Bank Ltd 325.31 112.03 369.83 2022-23 &
2023-24
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The interest rate for the above borrowings ranges from 7.25% p.a. to 11.90% p.a. depending on the terms of loan sanction.

Terms and Conditions attached to the borrowings:

(@) Term Loans from State Bank of India were taken over by YES Bank Limited - Limit Rs. 3100 lakhs and are fully secured by;

(1) Exclusive Charge on the Property, Plant and Equipment (present & future) of the Company both moveable and immoveable.
(2)  Equitable Mortgage of Factory Land situated at various locations and Equitable Mortgage of commercial space belonging to the

Company, situated at Secunderabad, Telangana.

(3)  Personal Guarantees of Promoters - 1. Ms. Pooja . K, 2. Mr. Bimal V Goradia, 3. Mr. Gautam K, 4. Bh. Subba Raju and Mrs. K.

Roopa
(4)  Second paripassu by way of Hypothecation of current assets .

(b) State Bank of India (Guaranteed Emergency Credit Line-2) were taken over by YES Bank Limited - Both GECL Loans amounting to
Rs. 2500 lakhs and shall rank on second charge basis with the existing credit facilities. The loan carries an interest of 9.25% and

repayable in 48 monthly instalments after a moratorium of 12 months.

(c) Vehicle Loans from HDFC Bank Limited and ICICI Bank Limited are availed for the purpose of acquisition of vehicles and are secured

by primary charges created out of such loan facilities.

ixed Deposits are unsecured, bearing an interest rate ranges from 8% to 9.50% p.a. depending upon tenure of the deposit.
d) Fixed Deposit d, beari interest rat from 8% to 9.50% dependi t f the deposit

(e) Deposits from Dealers are unsecured, bearing an interest rate ranges from 8% p.a. to 10% p.a.

(f)  Working Capital facilities from State Bank of India are taken over by YES Bank Limited & Canara bank sanctioned additional working

capital limits of Rs.1800 lakhs and secured by;

(1)  Primary Security: Exclusive Charge (Hypothecation) of all chargeable Current Assets (present & future) of the Company,
including stocks of Raw Materials, Work-in-Progress, Stores and Spares, Packing Materials, Finished Goods and Receivables.

(2)  Collateral security: Assets referred in (a)(1) to (a)(4) of above.

Note 21. Provisions Rs. in Lakhs
Particul As at As at
articutars March 31,2024 | March 31,2023
i) Current :
Provision for Gratuity 117.81 103.82
Provision for Compensated Absences 9.19 8.19
Total 127.00 112.01
ii) | Non Current:
Provision for Gratuity 830.89 754.57
Provision for Compensated Absences 187.40 66.88
Total 1,018.29 821.45
Note 22. Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) Rs. in Lakhs
Particul As at As at
articufars March 31,2024 | March 31,2023
Deferred Tax Liabilities Relating to Accumulated Depreciation for Tax Purpose 1,710.37 1,739.07
1,710.37 1,739.07
Deferred Tax Assets Relating to Unused Tax Losses / Depreciation Expenses 361.61 281.62
Allowable on Payment Basis
361.61 281.62
Total 1,348.76 1,457.46
Note 23. Current Borrowings Rs. in Lakhs
As at As at

Particulars

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Indian Rupee loans from Banks - Secured
Working Capital Facilities from YES Bank & Canara Bank [Note 20 (f)

Total

5,930.59

4,563.00

5,930.59

4,563.00
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Note 24. Trade Payables Rs. in Lakhs
Particul As at As at
articufars March 31,2024 | March 31,2023
Outstanding dues to Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises 340.00 416.79
Outstanding dues to Creditors other than Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises 3,303.32 3,437.14
Total 3,643.32 3,853.93
Note 24.1 Trade Payables Ageing Rs. in Lakhs
As at March 31, 2024
. Less than More than
Particulars 1 year 1-2years | 2-3years | "4 years Total
Amounts which have fallen due:
a) Outstanding dues to Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises 340.00 - - 340.00
b) Outstanding dues to Creditors other than Micro Enterprises and 3,296.08 7.24 - 3,303.32
Small Enterprises
Total 3,636.08 7.24 3,643.32
As at March 31, 2023 Rs. in Lakhs
. Less than More than
Particulars 1 year 1-2 years | 2-3 years 3 years Total
Amounts which have fallen due:
a) Outstanding dues to Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises 416.79 - - - 416.79
b) Outstanding dues to Creditors other than Micro Enterprises 3,331.14 | 106.00 - - 3,437.14
and Small Enterprises
Total 3,747.93 | 106.00 3,853.93
Note 25. Current Maturities Rs. in Lakhs
Particul As at As at
articufars March 31,2024 | March 31,2023
Valued at Amortised Cost
Current maturities of non current borrowings from Bank - Secured (Note 20) 1,976.45 1,786.01
Current maturities of non current borrowings Others - Unsecured (Note 20) 1,050.45 1,046.86
Total 3,026.90 2,832.87
Note 26. Other Financial Liabilities Rs. in Lakhs
Particul As at As at
articutars March 31,2024 | March 31,2023
Valued at Amortised Cost
Inter Corporate Loan Received - 605.90
Unpaid Dividends * 83.74 77.85
Other Payables - Expenses 3,567.70 2,265.89
Dividend Payable - 173.55
Total 3,651.44 3,123.18
* Unpaid Dividends will be credited to Investors Education and Protection Fund as and when due.
Note 27. Other Current Liabilities Rs. in Lakhs
Particul As at As at
articufars March 31,2024 | March 31,2023
Advances Received from Customers 390.68 750.82
Statutory Dues 1,028.14 201.63
Total 1,418.82 952.45
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Note 28. Revenue from Operations Rs. in Lakhs
Particul For the year ended |For the year ended
articufars March 31,2024 | March 31, 2023
A | SALE OF PRODUCTS
Manufactured Goods 49,684.26 51,254.20
Traded Goods 729.55 654.92
Total (A) 50,413.81 51,909.12
B Sale of Services
Job Work Services 42.24 128.62
Total (B) 42.24 128.62
c Other Operating Revenue
Sale of Containers and Scrap 209.91 359.48
Total (c) 209.91 359.48
Revenue from Operations (Gross) (A+B+C) 50,665.96 52,397.22
Less: GST 711713 7,362.01
Total 43,548.83 45,035.21
Note 29. Other Income Rs. in Lakhs
Particul For the year ended |For the year ended
articufars March 31,2024 | March 31, 2023
Interest Income 110.29 183.83
Other Income 49.74 102.52
Dividend Income - 40.93
Total 160.03 327.28
Note 30. Cost of Materials Consumed Rs. in Lakhs
Particul For the year ended |For the year ended
articufars March 31,2024 | March 31,2023
Opening Stock at the beginning of the year 3,591.46 4,009.02
Add: Purchases 23,012.54 25,152.64
26,604.00 29,161.66
Less: Closing Stock at the end of the year 3,686.52 3,591.46
Total 22,917.47 25,570.20
Note 31. Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, Work-in-Progress Rs. in Lakhs
Particul For the year ended |For the year ended
articulars March 31,2024 | March 31, 2023
Opening Stock :
Work-in-Progress 795.30 76.64
Finished Goods 1,051.26 1,320.35
Closing Stock :
Work-in-Progress 1,227.89 795.30
Finished Goods 785.82 1,051.26
Net (Increase) / Decrease (167.14) (449.57)
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Note 32. Other Manufacturing Expenses Rs. in Lakhs
Particul For the year ended |For the year ended
articuars March 31,2024 | March 31,2023
Consumption of Stores and Spares 920.57 911.81
Power and Fuel Charges 1,920.49 2,233.12
Insurance 19.75 31.55
Packing, Forwarding etc. 143.05 147.37
Installation Expenses / Mining 1,450.40 1,627.59
Repairs & Maintenance :
(a) Plant & Equipment 325.83 311.28
(b) Buildings 5.85 3.96
(c) Others 0.80 1.92
Total 4,786.74 5,268.60
Note 33. Employee Benefits Expenses Rs. in Lakhs
Particul For the year ended |For the year ended
articufars March 31,2024 | March 31,2023
Salaries, Wages, Bonus and Other Benefits 5,089.61 4,730.68
Managerial Remuneration 240.19 201.09
Contribution to Provident and Other Funds 399.91 338.21
Staff Welfare Expenses 151.08 144.61
Total 5,880.79 5,414.59
Note 34. Finance Costs Rs. in Lakhs
Particul For the year ended |For the year ended
articufars March 31,2024 | March 31,2023
Interest Expenses on:
- Working Capital Loan 552.36 435.63
- Deposits 220.49 283.81
- Dealership Deposits 3.98 9.45
- Hire Purchase and Others 51.55 165.37
- Term Loans 525.23 608.18
Loan Processing Charges 140.66 61.24
Bank Charges 42.37 98.50
Total 1,536.63 1,662.16
Note 35. Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses Rs. in Lakhs
Particul For the year ended |For the year ended
articufars March 31,2024 | March 31, 2023
Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment 1,124.83 1,074.44
Amortisation of Intangible Assets/Right-of-use assets 6.32 33.56
Total 1,131.15 1,108.00
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Note 36. Other Expenses Rs. in Lakhs
Particul For the year ended |For the year ended
articufars March 31,2024 | March 31, 2023
Rent 330.27 291.83
Licence, Fee & Taxes 108.28 114.96
Research & Development Expenses 16.04 30.30
Printing & Stationery 20.17 20.91
Consultancy & Professional Charges 269.12 159.59
Auditors' Remuneration : - -
() Audit Fee 3.50 3.50
(b) Tax Audit Fee 1.50 1.50
(c) Out of Pocket Expenses 1.90 1.84
Remuneration to Cost Auditors 0.75 0.75
Remuneration to Internal Auditors 5.00 4.50
Derecognisation of Financial Assets (Bad Debts) 2.09 59.81
Provision for Credit Impaired Trade Receivables 94.41 -
CSR Expenses 25.95 22.62
Directors Sitting Fee 14.30 11.78
Directors Travelling & Conveyance 2.50 5.1
Travelling & Conveyance 362.05 342.16
Office Maintenance 130.94 131.05
Communication Expenses 50.65 49.56
Vehicle Maintenance 31.86 30.13
Security Services 137.03 126.39
Sales Promotion 1,000.59 867.67
Sales Commission 152.54 139.77
Freight Outward 2,063.91 2,107.61
Total 4,825.35 4,523.31
Note 37. Exceptional Items Rs. in Lakhs
Particul For the year ended |For the year ended
articufars March 31,2024 | March 31, 2023
Profit on Sale of Assets 6.75 1.74
Prior period Expenses - -
Total 6.75 1.74
Note 38. Tax Expense Rs. in Lakhs
Particul For the year ended |For the year ended
articufars March 31,2024 | March 31,2023
Current Tax 768.60 303.69
Deferred Tax (125.71) 174.50
Adjustment of Current Tax relating to earlier years 74.70 -
Total 717.59 478.19
Note 39. Other Comprehensive Income Rs. in Lakhs
Particul For the year ended |For the year ended
articufars March 31,2024 | March 31, 2023
Remeasurement Gain on Net Defined Benefit Liability 58.42 86.71
Deferred Tax effect on Remeasurement Costs on Net Defined Benefit Liability (17.01) (25.25)
Total 41.41 61.46
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Note 40. Contingent Liabilities - Not probable and therefore not provided for Rs. in Lakhs
Particul For the year ended |For the year ended
articuars March 31,2024 | March 31,2023
A. Claims disputed by the Company
Various demands raised, which in the opinion of the management are not tenable and are 62.70 58.82
pending with various Forums / Authorities
B. Outstanding Corporate Guarantees
Given to IREDA with respect to term loan to Khandaleru Power Company Limited. Khandaleru - 500.00
Power company Limited during the current year has been demerged and the loan was
transferred to the resultant company Hampi Energy Limited. Hampi Energy Limited has repaid
the entire Loan of IREDA and the Corporate guarantee seize to exist.
C. Outstanding Guarantees Given by Banks on behalf of Company 637.14 571.43
Note 41. Disclosures required under Section 22 of MSMED Act 2006 under the Chapter on Delayed Payments to Rs. in Lakhs
Micro and Small Enterprises
For the year ended |For the year ended

Particulars

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Amount remaining unpaid to micro, small and medium enterprises at the end of the period

Principal Amount 340.00 416.79
Interest thereon - -
Total 340.00 416.79
Note 42. Earnings Per Share (EPS) Rs. in Lakhs
For the year ended |For the year ended

Particulars

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Total Operations for the year

Profit / (Loss) after Tax but before Other Comprahensive income and exceptional items
Less : Adjustments for the purpose of diluted Earnings per Share

Net Profit / (Loss) for calculation of basic EPS

Net Profit as above

Exceptional Items: Gains/ (Loss)
Tax Impact on Exceptional ltems

Net Profit / (Loss) for calculation of basic EPS after Exceptional Items

Net Profit / (Loss) as above

Weighted average number of Equity Shares for Basic EPS (Refer Note 19)
Effect of dilution :

Weighted Average number of Equity shares for Diluted EPS

Basic EPS (Rs.)

Basic EPS excluding exceptional items (Rs.)

Diluted EPS on the basis of Total Operations (Rs.)

(A)

1,585.81 1,343.06
1,585.81 1,343.06
1,585.81 1,343.06
(6.75) (1.74)
1,502.56 1,344.80
1,585.81 1,343.06
115.70 115.70
115.70 115.70
13.76 11.62
13.71 11,61
13.76 11.62
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Note 43. Defined Benefit Plans - Gratuity Rs. in Lakhs

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five years or more of service gets a gratuity on departure at
15 days salary for each completed year of service subject to a maximum of Rs. 20.00 lakhs. The plan for the same is unfunded.

Gratuity

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Net Employee Benefit Expense recognized in the employee cost in Statement of Profit & Loss

Current Service Cost 108.23 95.47
Interest Cost on benefit obligation 57.66 48.61
Expected Return on Plan Assets - -
Sub Total 165.89 144.08

Recognised in Other Comprehensive Income

Net actuarial (gain) / loss recognized in the year
i. Demographic Assumptions on obligation -
ii. Financial Assumptions on obligation 10.78 (26.16)

iii. Experience Adjustments on obligation (39.57) 46.56
iv. Financial Assumptions on Plan Assets - -
Sub Total (28.79) 20.40
Net Benefit Expense 137.10 164.48

Balance Sheet
Benefit Asset / Liability

Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation 948.69 858.37
Fair Value of Plan Assets - -
Assets / (Liability) recognized in the Balance Sheet (948.69) (858.37)
Change in the Present Value of the Defined Benefit Obligation

Opening Defined Benefit Obligation 858.37 775.01
Benefit transferred in -
Benefit transferred out - -

Benefits paid (46.78) (81.12)
Expenses Recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss

Current Service Cost 108.23 95.47
Interest Cost on Benefit Obligation 57.66 48.61
Recognised in Other Comprehensive Income

Actuarial (gain) / loss on obligation (28.79) 20.40
Closing Defined Benefit Obligation 948.69 858.37

Change in the Fair Value of Plan Assets
Opening Fair Value of Plan Assets - -
Contributions by employer - -
Benefits Paid (46.78) (81.12)
Expenses Recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss - -
Expected return - -
Recognised in Other Comprehensive Income - -
Actuarial (gain) / loss on plan assets

Closing fair value of plan assets (46.78) (81.12)

Assumptions

Discount Rate (%) 6.97% 7.15%
Estimated Rate of Return on Plan Assets - -
Attrition Rate (%) 11.00% 11.00%
Expected rate of salary increase (%) 10.00% 10.00%
Expected Average Remaining Service (no. of years) 6.93 7.02

NCL BUILDTEK LIMITED & ANNUAL REPORT 2023-24 | 56



NOTES AND OTHER EXPLANATORY INFORMATION TO Ind AS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ¢ STANDALONE

Note 43A. Defined Benefit Plans - Leave Encashment Rs. in Lakhs
Leave Encashment
Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Net Employee Benefit Expense recognized in the employee cost in Statement of Profit & Loss

Current Service Cost 79.34 72.70
Interest Cost on benefit obligation 5.07 10.60
Expected Return on Plan Assets - -
Sub Total 84.41 83.30

Recognised in Other Comprehensive Income

Net actuarial (gain) / loss recognized in the year
i. Demographic Assumptions on obligation - -
ii. Financial Assumptions on obligation 1.02 (2.56)

iii. Experience Adjustments on obligation (30.65) (104.55)
iv. Financial Assumptions on Plan Assets - -
Sub Total (29.63) (107.11)
Net Benefit Expense 54.78 (23.81)

Balance Sheet
Benefit Asset / Liability

Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation 196.59 75.08
Fair Value of Plan Assets - -
Assets / (Liability) recognized in the Balance Sheet (196.59) (75.08)
Change in the Present Value of the Defined Benefit Obligation

Opening Defined Benefit Obligation 75.08 168.82
Benefit transferred in - -
Benefit transferred out - -
Benefits paid (49.59) (69.93)

Expenses Recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss

Current Service Cost 79.34 72.70
Short term compensated absence leave (additional liability) 116.33

Interest Cost on Benefit Obligation 5.07 10.60
Recognised in Other Comprehensive Income

Actuarial (gain) / loss on obligation (29.63) (107.11)
Closing Defined Benefit Obligation 196.59 75.08

Change in the Fair Value of Plan Assets
Opening Fair Value of Plan Assets
Contributions by employer - -
Benefits Paid (49.59) (69.93)
Expenses Recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss - -
Expected return

Recognised in Other Comprehensive Income
Actuarial (gain) / loss on plan assets

Closing fair value of plan assets (49.59) (69.93)

Assumptions

Discount Rate (%) 6.97% 7.15%
Estimated Rate of Return on Plan Assets - -
Attrition Rate (%) 11.00% 11.00%
Expected rate of salary increase (%) 10.00% 10.00%
Expected Average Remaining Service (no. of years) 6.93 7.02
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Note 44. Leases

Operating Lease : Company as lessee

The Company has entered into certain cancellable operating lease agreements mainly for office premises, land and infrastructure facilities, which
are renewable on mutual agreement with the parties. There is an escalation clause in the lease arrangements during the lease period in line with

the expected general inflation. The lease rentals charged during the year as per the agreements are as follows : Rs. in Lakhs
Particul As at As at
articulars March 31,2024 | March 31, 2023
Future minimum lease payments under Cancellable Leases
Not later than one year 330.27 304.90
Later than one year and not later than five years 817.60 685.91

26.94

Later than five years

a. Operating Lease Paymentrecognised in Statement of Profit and Loss amounting to Rs. 330.27 lakhs (Previous Year Rs. 291.83 lakhs).
b. General description of leasing arrangement
i. LeaseAssets: Company's offices consisting of infrastructure facilities, special amenities and car parking lots.
ii. Future lease rentals are determined at the rates prescribed in the arrangement. These lease payments to be esclated as 5% to 10% on the
previous year payments.

i The Company entered into a Lease agreement with RIICO at Neemrana for 99 years for two plots of Industrial Land SP-21 and SP-25.
These lease agreements commensed from 18.11.2019 and 13.01.2020 respectively for 99 years. RIICO has stipulated certain upfront
payments. The company sought some clarifications from RIICO which were finally completed in FY. 2022-23. The company has made
regular payments from time to time in the intervening period. Thus, the Assets were capitalized as a Right - to - use Assets during FY. 2022-
23 asperINDAS. 116. The Lease Agreements also stipulated annual lease rents of Rs. 849/- and Rs. 805/- for plots SP-21 and SP- 25. As

these annual lease rents are nominal and not material, they are being charged off to Profitand Loss Account.

Note 45. Capital and Other Commitments Rs. in Lakhs
Particul As at As at

articutars March 31,2024 | March 31,2023
Estimated amount of contracts not provided for 259.01 24587

Note 46. Corporate Social Responsibility

a. Gross amountrequired to be spent by the Company during the year 2023-24 is Rs. 8.75 lakhs and for the year 2022-23 is Rs. 9.50 lakhs

b. Amountspentduring the yearon: Rs. in Lakhs
Particul As at As at

articuars March 31,2024 | March 31,2023
i. Construction / Acquisition of any asset - Promoting of Education - -
i On purposes other than (i) above - Promoting of Education 2218 22.26
jii. ~ "Providing on job training for ITI Candidates - -
Total amount spent on CSR 22.18 22.26

CSR relating to FY 2020-21 incurred / paid in FY 2022-23

iv.  Incurred for various other activities 0.36
V. Advance paid for various other activities -
Total - 0.36
Total amount spent on CSR 22.18 22.62
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Rs. in Lakhs
. As at As at
Particulars March 31,2024 | March 31, 2023

a) Amount required to be spent by the Company during the year : 8.75 9.50
b) Amount of expenditure incurred : 22.18 22.62
c) Shortfall at the end of the year : - -
d) *Total of previous year Shortfall : - 3.77
e) Reasons for the Shortfall ; - -
f) Nature of CSR Activities : -

i.  Construction / Acquisition of any asset - Promoting of Education - -

ii. On purposes other than (i) above - Promoting of Education 2218 22.26

iii. “Providing on job training for ITI Candidates” - -

iv. Incurred for various other activities - 0.36

v. Advance paid for various other activities - -

Total amount spent on CSR 22.18 22.62
g) Details of Related Party Transactions, eg., Contribution to a Trust controlled by the company

in relation to CSR expenditure as per relevant Accounting standard:
h) Where a provision is made with respect to a liability incurred by entering into a contractual

obligation, the movements in the provision during the year should be shown separately : -
[) Opening Balance (Excess Spent available for set off from previous years) 12.76 -
j)  Excess amount spent available for set off 13.43 12.76
k) Amount available for set off in the succeeding 3 financial years 26.19 12.76

*The unspent amount of Rs.3.77 lakhs was transferred to Swacch Bharat Khosh Fund on 13.04.2023.

Note 47. Segment reporting

Based on "the management approach" as defined in Ind AS 108, the Chief Decision Maker evaluates the Company's performance and allocates
resources based on an analysis of various performance indicators by business segments.

Accordingly, information has been presented for each business segment. The accounting principles used in the preperation of the Financial
Statements are consistently applied to record revenue and expenditure in individual business segments and are as set out in the significant
accounting policies.

Business segments of the Company and products/ services in each segment are:

1. Windoors (Colour Coated Gl Profiles (CCGI), uPVC and Aluminium Doors & Windows, ABS Doors)
2. Coatings (Wall Putties, Paints and Textures)

3. Walls (Aerated Fly Ash Blocks)

Segment Revenue and Expense;

A) Revenue and expenses directly attributable to segments are reported under each reportable segment. All other expenses which are not
attributable or allocable to segments have been disclosed as unallocable expenses.

B) Assets and Liabilities that are directly attributable or allocable to segments are disclosed under each reportable segment. All other assets
and liabilities are disclosed as unallocable.

C) Assetsand Liabilities relating to Corporate Office / Corporate Investment portfolios are disclosed as unallocable.

For the year ended March 31, 2024 Rs. in Lakhs
Particulars Coatings Walls Windoors | Unallocable Total

Segment Revenue from External Customers

Within India 9,563.13 12,654.75 21,330.95 - | 43,548.83
Outside India -
Inter Segment Revenue -
Total Segment Revenue 9,563.13 12,654.75 21,330.95 - 43,548.83
Segment Result

Within India 1,239.75 754.83 1,845.44 - 3,840.02
Outside India -
Total Segment Result 1,239.75 754.83 1,845.44 - 3,840.02
Finance Costs - - - 1,536.63 1,536.63
Other un allocated Income / Expenses (net) -
Profit before Tax from ordinary activities 1,239.75 754.83 1,845.44 (1,536.63) 2,303.39
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For the year ended March 31, 2023 Rs. in Lakhs
Particulars Coatings Walls Windoors | Unallocable Total
Segment Revenue from External Customers
Within India 10,155.30 12,501.03 22,378.87 45,035.20
Outside India - - - -
Inter Segment Revenue - - - -
Total Segment Revenue 10,155.30 12,501.03 22,378.87 - 45,035.20
Segment Result
Within India 1,342.13 204.26 2,000.74 (63.77) 3,483.36
Outside India - - - - -
Total Segment Result 1,342.13 204.26 2,000.74 (63.77) 3,483.36
Finance Costs - - - 1,662.16 1,662.16
Other un allocated Income / Expenses (net) -
Profit before Tax from ordinary activities 1,342.13 204.26 2,000.74 (1,725.94) 1,821.19
Segment Assets and Liabilites As at March 31, 2024 Rs. in Lakhs
Particulars Coatings Walls Windoors | Unallocable Total
Assets 5,265.65 10,901.39 20,040.54 3,350.09 39,557.68
Liabilities 3,347.48 6,809.03 10,257.93 2,386.87 22,801.31
As at March 31, 2023 Rs. in Lakhs
Particulars Coatings Walls Windoors | Unallocable Total
Assets 5,457.76 11,901.19 18,924 .51 1,660.72 37,94417
Liabilities 3,003.38 6,572.88 10,012.31 3,059.65 22,648.22

Note 48. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

a.

Capital Management

The objective of the Company's capital management structure is to ensure sufficient liquidity to support its business and provide adequate
return to shareholders. Management monitors the long term cash flow requirements including externally imposed capital requirements of the
business in order to assess the requirement for changes to the capital structure to meet the said objective. As part of this monitoring, the
management considers the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of capital and makes adjustments to the capital structure,
where appropriate, in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. The funding requirementis
met through a combination of equity, internal accruals, borrowings or undertake other restructuring activities as appropriate.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes during the year ended March 31,2024.

The Company's capital and net debt were made up as follows:

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Net debt (Debt less Cash and Cash equivalent) 6,469.50 7,902.49
Total Equity 15,295.96 14,236.80

b. Financial Risk Management Framework

Company'’s principal financial liabilities comprise Borrowings, Trade Payables and Other Financial Liabilities. The main purpose of these
Financial Liabilities is to finance the Company’s operations and projects under implementation. The Company’s principal Financial

Assets include Trade Receivables, Loans, Cash and Bank Balances and Other Financial Assets.

Risk Exposures and Responses

The Company is exposed to Market Risk, Credit Risk and Liquidity Risk. The Board of Directors reviews policies for managing each of

these risks, which are summarised below :
i. Market Risk

Market Risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices.
Market prices comprise two types of risk i.e. Interest Rate Risk and Commodity Risk.

Interest Rate Risk

The Company obtains financing through borrowings. The Company's policy is to obtain the most favourable interest rates available.
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The Company's exposure to Interest Rate Risk relates primarily to interest bearing Financial Liabilities. Interest Rate Risk is managed
by the Company on an on-going basis with the primary objective of limiting the extent to which interest expense could be affected by an
adverse movement in interest rates.

Sensitivity Analysis
An increase / decrease of 100 basis points in interest rate at the end of the reporting period for the variable financial instruments would

(decrease) / increase profit before taxation for the year by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes all other variables remain
constant.

Rs. in Lakhs
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Financial Liabilities - Borrowings
+1% (100 basis points) 1,484.59 1,642.27
-1% (100 basis points) (1,484.59) (1,642.27)

There is no hedging instruments to mitigate this risk.
Commodity Risk

The Company has Commodity Price Risk, primarily related to manufacturing items and consumables. The Company monitors its purchases
closely to optimise the price.

CreditRisk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial
loss. The company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily for trade and other receivables) and from its financing
activities, including short-term deposits with banks and financial institutions, and other financial assets.

Credit Risk Management

The Company assesses the Credit Risk for each class of Financial Assets based on the assumptions, inputs and factors specific to the class
of Financial Assets.

The risk parameters are same for all Financial Assets for all periods presented. The Company considers the probability of default upon initial
recognition of asset and whether there has been a significant increase in Credit Risk on an on-going basis throughout each reporting period.
In general, itis presumed that Credit Risk has significantly increased since initial recognition if the payments are more than 30 days past due.
A default on a Financial Asset is when the counterparty fails to make contractual payments when they fall due. This definition of default is
determined by considering the business environment in which entity operates and other macro-economic factors.

Trade Receivables : The Company’s exposure to Credit Risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. The
demographics of the customer, including the default risk of the industry and country in which the customer operates, also has an influence on
credit risk assessment. Credit Risk is managed through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring the
creditworthiness of customers to which the Company grants credit terms in the normal course of business.

Bank Deposits : The Credit Risk is considered negligible, since the counterparties are reputable banks with high quality external credit
ratings.

Other Financial Assets : The Company ensures concentration of credit does not significantly impair the Financial Assets since the
customers to whom the exposure of credit is taken are well established and reputed industries engaged in their respective field of business.
The creditworthiness of customers to which the Company grants creditin the normal course of the business is monitored regularly.

The maximum exposure for Credit Risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of Financial Assets as stated in the Balance Sheet. The
Company does not hold any credit derivatives to offset its credit exposure.

Liquidity Risk
Liquidity Risk arises from the Financial Liabilities of the Company and the Company’s subsequent ability to meet its obligations to repay its
Financial Liabilities as and when they fall due. The Company regularly monitors its risk to a shortage of funds.

The Company’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of working capital facilities and
borrowings. The Company has reviewed the borrowings maturing within 12 months.

The following table details the remaining contractual maturities of the Company's Financial Liabilities at the end of the reporting period, which
are based on the contractual undiscounted cash flows and the earliest date the Company is required to pay:
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Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars

Weighted average
interest rate (%)

Less than 1 Year

More than 1 year

March 31, 2024

Borrowings - Variable Interest Rate 10.55% 5,930.59 -
Borrowings - Fixed Interest Rate 11.15% 3,026.90 2,535.44
Trade Payables & Other Financial Liabilities - 3,643.32 -
Total 12,600.82 2,535.44
March 31,2023
Borrowings - Variable Interest Rate 10.55% 4,563.00 -
Borrowings - Fixed Interest Rate 11.15% 2,832.87 4,899.41
Trade Payables & Other Financial Liabilities - 3,853.93 -
Total 11,249.79 4,899.41
c. Financial Instruments by Category .
For amortised cost instruments, carrying value represents the best estimate of fair value. Rs. in Lakhs
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Amortised Cost | Amortised Cost
Financial Assets
Investments 1,600.70 1,600.70
Trade Receivables 8,708.36 8,442.34
Cash and Cash Equivalents 267.47 264.23
Bank Balances 910.45 998.56
Other Financial Assets 1,724.50 611.09
Total 13,211.48 11,916.90
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings 8,566.77 9,494.89
Trade Payables 3,643.32 3,853.93
Other Financial Liabilities 3,026.90 2,832.87
Total 15,237.00 16,181.68

NCL BUILDTEK LIMITED & ANNUAL REPORT 2023-24 | 62




NOTES AND OTHER EXPLANATORY INFORMATION TO Ind AS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &  STANDALONE

Note 49. Related Party Transactions for the year ended Mar 31, 2024

a) Names of Related Parties and description of relationship.
S. No. Subsidiary Company
1 NCL ASL Services Private Limited (Formerly Span Tile Mfg. Co. Pvt. Ltd.)

S. No. Associate Company
1 NCL Veka Private Limited (Formerly NCL Veka Limited )

S. No. Joint Venture Firm
NCL Buildtek & NCL Industries JV

=
o

. Key Management Personnel and Relatives
Bh. Subba Raju - Managing Director
Kamlesh Suresh Gandhi - Chairman & Independent Director (Chairman w.e.f. 30.07.2022)
Kalidindi Ravi - Director
Kalidindi Gautam - Director (Appointed w.e.f. 10.11.2022)
Satya Subram Kapula - Wholetime Director
D Niranjan Reddy - Independent Director
Kallepalli Narasaraju - Independent Director (Resigned w.e.f. 10.02.2022)
Venkata Jagannadha Raju Vatsavayi - Wholetime Director (Appointed w.e.f. 01.08.2021)
P Madhavi - Director (Appointed w.e.f. 10.02.2022)
10 Madhavi Bangalore - Chief Financial Officer (Appointed w.e.f. 10.02.2022)
1" U. Divya Bharathi - Company Secretary
12 Roopa Bhupatiraju - Relative
13 Pooja Kalidindi - Wholetime Director( Appointed w.e.f. 08.11.2023)
14 Sonali Gandhi - Relative
15 K. Rajani - Relative
16 K. Susmitha Bindu - Relative
17 K. Venkata Vishnu Raju- Independent Director (Appointed w.e.f. 30.07.2022)

O o~NOocCaa PO

S. No. Enterprises Controlled or significantly influenced by Key Management Personnel or their Close Family Members
1 NCL Industries Limited

2 Khandaleru Power Company Limited (Demerged - Resultant Company - Hampi Energy Limited)

3 NCL Homes Limited

4 NCL Green Habitats Private Limited

5 Kakatiya Industries Private Limited

6 NCL Holdings (A&S) Limited
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NOTES AND OTHER EXPLANATORY INFORMATION TO Ind AS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &  STANDALONE

Note.50. Analytical Ratios : Rs. in Lakhs
Ratios Reasons for
Particulars Numerator Denominator As at As at Variance >25%
March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023 variance
a) [ Current Ratio Current Assets Current Liabilities 1.11 119 6%
b) | Debt-Equity Ratio Total Debt Shareholders Equity 0.34 0.51 -33% | Thereis a
reduction in debt
There is a reduction
in debt and with
. .| Earnings Available for . improved profitability
c) | Debt-Service Coverage Ratio Debt Service Debt Service 0.59 0.44 36% | there is an
improvement in
debt service ratio.
d) | Return on Equity Ratio Net Profit after Taxes | Average Shareholders Equity | 9.50% 8.79% 8%
e) | Inventory Turnover Ratio Sales Inventory 8.25 8.90 1%
f) | Trade Receivables Turnover Ratio| Net Credit Sales Average Trade Receivables 5.00 5.33 6%
g) | Trade Payables Turnover Ratio | Purchases of Services| Average Trade Payables 6.32 6.53 -3%
and other Expenses
h) |Net Capital Turnover Ratio Net Sales Average Working Capital 7.34 9.87 -26% | Due to increase
in CC limits
) | Net Profit Ratio Net Profit Net Sales 3.75% 3.12% 20%
i) |Return on Capital Employed [ Earnings before Capital Employed 19.84% 17.23% 15%
Interest and Taxes
k) |Return on Investment Income generated Time Weighted Average 9.75% 9.19% 6%
from Investments Investments

Note 51- Other Disclosures

(i)  The Company does nothave any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami property.

(i) The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction of charges which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

(i) The Company has nottraded orinvested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

(iv)  The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(is), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise)
that the Company shall: (a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate
Beneficiaries) or (b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(v)  Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(is), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary
shall: (a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or (b) provide any
guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(vi)  The Company does not have any transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments
under the Income TaxAct, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

(vii)  The Company is not declared as willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution (as defined under the Companies Act, 2013) or consortium thereof or other lender in accordance
with the guidelines on willful defaulters issued by the Reserve Bank of India.

(viii)  The Company has complied with the number of layers for its holding in downstream companies prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the
Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017.

(ix)  The Company does not have any transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments
under the Income TaxAct, 1961

(x)  The Company has notrevalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right-of-Use Assets) during the year.

(xi)  Thecompanyis nothaving any transactions with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of the Companies Act, 1956.

Note 52. Previous year figures have been regrouped / reclassified where ever necessary, to conform to those of the current year.

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements

As per our report attached For and on behalf of the Board

For Anant Rao & Mallik NCL Buildtek Limited

Chartered Accountants (formerly NCL Alltek & Seccolor Ltd.)

Firm Reg. N0.006266S

V. Anant Rao Bh. Subba Raju K. Satya Subram
Partner Managing Director Executive Director
Membership No. 022644 DIN-08408400 DIN: 07573350
Place : Hyderabad B. Madhavi U. Divya Bharathi
Date : May 30, 2024 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
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To May 30, 2024

The Members

NCLBUILDTEKLIMITED

(Formerly NCLALLTEK & SECCOLOR LIMITED)

Hyderabad.

Report on the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements.
Opinion:

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Ind AS financial
statements of NCL BUILDTEK LIMITED (Formerly NCL Alltek &
Seccolor Limited) and its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its
subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”), which comprises the
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss
(including Other Comprehensive Income), Statement of Cash Flows
and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and
notes to the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information. (Hereinafter referred to as “ the Consolidated Ind AS
financial statements”)

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us, the aforesaid Consolidated Ind AS financial
statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally acceptedin India::

a) inthe case of Consolidated Balance Sheet, of the state of
affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2024 ;

b) inthe case of Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, of
the Profit forthe yearthen ended;

c) inthe case of Consolidated Cash Flow Statement, of the
cash flows ofthe Company for the year;

d) inthe case of Consolidated Statement of Changesin Equity,
of the changes in Equity, forthe year ended on that date

Basis for Opinion:

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013.
Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in
the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Ind AS
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the

Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Consolidated Ind AS
financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code
of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficientand appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Ind AS
Financial Statements :

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the
preparation of these consolidated Ind AS financial statements in
terms of the requirements of the Companies Act 2013 (hereinafter
referred to as “the Act’) that give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance
and consolidated cash flows of the Group in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read
with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. The respective
Board of Directors of companies included in the Group are responsible

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ¢  CONSOLIDATED

for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and
for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements that give
a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of
preparation of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements by the
Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Ind AS Financial
Statements :

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated Ind
AS financial statements based on our audit. We have taken into
account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing
standards and matters, which are required to be included in the audit
report under the provisions of the Act, and the Rules made there
under.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
Ind AS financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and the disclosures in the Consolidated Ind AS
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the Consolidated Financial Statements, whether due
tofraud orerror.

In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal
financial control relevant to the Holding Company’s preparation of the
consolidated Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the
accounting estimates made by the Holding Company’s Board of
Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated Ind AS financial statements.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements :

1. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, based on our audit we
report, to the extent applicable, that :

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and
explanations, which to the best of our knowledge and belief
were necessary for the purposes of our audit of aforesaid
Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law
relating to preparation of the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS
financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from
our examination of those books and the reports of the other
auditors.

c) TheConsolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement
of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income),
The Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and Consolidated
Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account maintained for the
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purpose of preparation of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial
Statements.

In our opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated Ind AS Financial
Statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,

On the basis of the relevant assertion contained in the audit
reports on standalone Ind AS financial statements of each
subsidiary company, none of the Directors of any such
company are disqualified as on 31st March, 2023 from being
appointed as a director of that company in terms of Section 164
(2) ofthe Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls
over financial reporting of the Holding Company and subsidiary
companies and the operating effectiveness of such controls,
refer to our separate Reportin “Annexure A”.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s
Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations giventous :

i. The Consolidated Financial Statements disclose the
impact of pending litigations on the consolidated financial
position of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries —
Refer Note 40 to the Consolidated Ind AS Financial
Statements;

ii. ~ The Holding Company and its subsidiary companies have
no long term contracts including derivative contracts,
accordingly they have not made any provision relating to
material foreseeable losses in the Consolidated Financial
Statements;

i. There has been no delay in transferring amounts,
required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Holding Company and its
subsidiary companies;

iv. Based on our audit procedures which we considered
reasonable and appropriate in the  circumstances,
nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to
believe that the various matters mentioned in "Disclosures
of other Statutory Information” annexed to the Notes to
accounts, contain any material mis-statement;

v. The company has not declared or paid any dividend

1)

2)

3)

Place : Hyderabad
Date : 30-05-2024

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ¢  CONSOLIDATED

during the year in contravention of the provisions of
section 123 of the CompaniesAct, 2013.

vi. Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014 and Reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 - Based on our
examination, which included test checks, and that
performed by the respective auditors of the subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures we state that :

In case of Holding Company:

a) The company has three divisions — Windoors, Coatings and
Walls. The Windoors division accounts are maintained in
Focus Software. The Coatings and Walls divisions accounts
are maintainedin SAP ERP.

b) The Focus accounting software used for maintaining books
of account for Windoors divisions does not have a feature of
recording audit trail (edit log) facility for the financial year
ended 31-03-2024.

c) The SAP ERP accounting software used for maintaining
books of account for Coatings and Walls divisions has the
feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility for the financial
year ended 31-03-2024 and the same has been enabled and
operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions in
the software.

In case of Subsidiary Company:

a) The Focus accounting software used for maintaining books of
account forthe NCLASL Services Private Limited (“Subsidiary
company”) does not have a feature of recording audit trail (edit
log) facility for the financial year ended 31-03-2024.

In case of Associates and Joint Ventures:

a) As stated in the Independent Auditor's Report of NCL Veka
Limited (“Associate Company”), the feature of recording audit
trail (edit log) facility has been enabled for the financial year
31-03-2024 and the same has been operated throughout the
year for all relevant transactions in the software.

b) As Communicated by the auditors of NCL Buildtek and
Industries JV (“Joint Venture”), does not have a feature of
recording audit trail (edit log) facility for the financial year
ended 31-03-2024

Further, during the course of our audit, we and auditor of the
associate company did not come across any instance of audit
trail feature being tampered in the respective accounting
softwares.

For ANANT RAO & MALLIK
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 006266S

V. ANANT RAO

Partner

Membership No. 022644

UDIN : 24022644BKANUQ8923
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Annexure -Ato the Independent Auditors’ Report

The Annexure referred to in Paragraph 1 (f) under the heading of
“Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” of our
report of even date to the members of NCL Buildtek Limited
(Formerly NCL Alltek & Seccolor Limited) for the year ended 31st
March,2024:

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements of M/s. NCL BUILDTEK LIMITED (Formerly NCL Alltek
& Seccolor Limited) (‘the Holding Company”) as of and for the year
ended March 31, 2024, we have audited the internal financial controls
over financial reporting of the Holding Company and its subsidiary
companies as on thatdate.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls :

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding company and its
subsidiary companies are responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal controls
over financial reporting criteria established by the company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
(‘ICAT’). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of
its business, including adherence to respective company’s policies,
the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required
under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls :

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal
financial controls over financial reporting based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance
Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to
be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to
the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both
applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and
if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining
an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements,
whether due tofraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and audit
evidence obtained by other auditor in terms of their report referred toin

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ¢  CONSOLIDATED

the other matters paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal
financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a
process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of Consolidated Ind
AS financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and
procedures that:

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company;

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary to permit preparation of Consolidated Ind AS
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of
the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the company;
and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material
effecton the Consolidated IndAS financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting :

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over
financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes
in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies,
have, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls
over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31,
2024, based on “the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India.

For ANANT RAO & MALLIK
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 006266S

V. ANANT RAO

Partner

Membership No. 022644

UDIN : 24022644AKGXSY8309

Place : Hyderabad
Date : 30-05-2024
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31,2024 o CONSOLIDATED

Rs. in Lakhs
SI. . As at As at
No. Particulars NoteNo. | march 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
| ASSETS
1 Non-Current Assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 6 16,214.32 15,399.15
(b) Capital Work-in-Progress 7 23453 741.60
(c) Intangible Assets 8 5.78 8.15
(d) Right-of-use Asset 8A 626.65 633.32
(e) Financial Assets
(i) Investments 9 3,849.42 3,053.95
(ii) Other Financial Assets 10 262.79 128.03
(iii) Trade Receivables 13 664.45 884.04
(iv) Other Non-current Assets 11 131.70 -
(f) Goodwill on Consolidation 49.54 49.54
Total Non-Current Assets 22,039.18 20,897.78
2 Current Assets
(a) Inventories 12 6,143.50 5,887.73
(b) Financial Assets
(i) Trade Receivables 13 8,709.31 8,443.29
(ii) Cash and Cash Equivalents 14 268.78 265.04
(iiii) Bank Balances 15 910.45 998.56
(iv) Other Financial Assets 16 1,726.13 57113
(c) Current Tax Assets (Net) 17 288.05 118.76
(d) Other Current Assets 18 1,774.02 2,231.37
Total Current Assets 19,820.24 18,515.89
Total Assets 41,859.42 39,413.67
il EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
A Equity
(a) Equity Share Capital 19 1,156.97 1,156.97
(b) Other Equity 18,103.52 15,801.00
Total Equity 19,260.49 16,957.98
B Liabilities
1 Non-Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 20 2,636.18 4,931.89
(b) Provisions 21 1,024.21 826.05
(c) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 22 1,346.46 1,456.60
Total Non-Current Liabilities 5,006.85 7,214.54
2 Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 22 5,930.59 4,563.00
(ii) Trade Payables 23
Dues to MSMEs 340.00 416.79
Dues to Others 3,074.99 3,222.54
(iii) Current Maturities 25 3,026.90 2,832.87
(iv) Other Financial Liabilities 26 3,667.70 3,136.22
(b) Provisions 21 127.36 112.26
(c) Other Current Liabilities (Net) 27 1,424.54 957.49
Total Current Liabilities 17,592.08 15,241.15
Total Liabilities 22,598.93 22,455.69
Total Equity and Liabilities 41,859.42 39,413.67
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 1-5

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements

As per our report attached
For Anant Rao & Mallik
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. N0.006266S

V. Anant Rao

For and on behalf of the Board
NCL Buildtek Limited
(formerly NCL Alltek & Seccolor Ltd.)

Partner
Membership No. 022644

Place : Hyderabad
Date : May 30, 2024

Bh. Subba Raju
Managing Director
DIN-08408400

K. Satya Subram

Executive Director

DIN: 07573350

B. Madhavi U. Divya Bharathi

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2024 ¢ CONSOLIDATED

Rs. in Lakhs
Sl. Particul Note N For the Year ended | For the Year ended
No. arficufars OteNO. | March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
| REVENUE
(a) Revenue from Operations 28 43,548.83 45,035.20
(b) Other Income 29 154.76 277.22
Total Revenue (1) 43,703.59 45,312.42
I EXPENSES
(a) Cost of Materials Consumed 30 22,917 47 25,570.21
(b) Purchases of Traded Goods 494 47 443.95
(c) Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, Work-in-Progress 31 (167.14) (449.57)
(d) Other Manufacturing Expenses 32 4,466.12 4,991.08
(e) Employee Benefits Expenses 33 6,098.97 5,594.83
(f) Finance Costs 34 1,536.63 1,662.16
(9) Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses 35 1,131.60 1,108.47
(h) Other Expenses 36 4,861.38 4,543.35
Total Expenses (Il 41,339.50 43,464.47
]| Profit / (Loss) before Exceptional items (I-1l ) 2,364.09 1,847.95
v Exceptional Items 37 6.75 1.74
v Profit / (Loss) before Tax (llI+1V) 2,370.84 1,849.69
Vi Tax Expense 38
(a) Current Tax 786.97 321.87
(b) Deferred Tax (127.49) 173.88
(c) Adjustment of Current Tax relating to earlier years 73.18 -
Total Tax Expense (VI) 732.66 495.75
VIl | Profit/ (Loss) after Tax, before share of Profit of Associate (V-VI 1,638.18 1,353.94
VIIl | Share of Profit of Associate 879.90 614.13
IX | Share of Profit of Joint Venture (84.43) (38.87)
X Profit after Tax (VII+VIII+IX) 2,433.65 1,929.20
Xl Other Comprehensive Income
(a) Re-measurement (loss)/gain on Employee Defined Benefit Plans 39 59.77 87.41
(b) Tax Expense 40 (17.36) (25.44)
Other Comprehensive Income (XI) 42.41 61.97
Xll | Total Comprehensive Income for the year (X+XI) 2,476.06 1,991.17
Xill | Earnings Per Share (of Rs. 10 each) (Basic & Diluted) 4
(a) Excluding Exceptional Items (in Rs.) 20.98 16.66
(b) Including Exceptional Items (in Rs.) 21.03 16.67
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 1-5

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements

As per our report attached
For Anant Rao & Mallik
Chartered Accountants

NCL Buildtek Limited

Firm Reg. No.006266S

For and on behalf of the Board

(formerly NCL Alltek & Seccolor Ltd.)

V. Anant Rao
Partner

Membership No. 022644

Place : Hyderabad

Date : May 30, 2024

Bh. Subba Raju
Managing Director
DIN-08408400

B. Madhavi
Chief Financial Officer

K. Satya Subram
Executive Director
DIN: 07573350

U. Divya Bharathi
Company Secretary
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B. Other Equity Rs. in Lakhs
Reserves and Surplus

Items of Other Total

Particulars Securities General Retained C hensi
Premium | Reserve | Eamings |“OTEEEISIVe
ncome
Balance as at March 31, 2022 34517 11,808.94 1,874.50 54.43 14,083.04
Profit / (Loss) for the year - - 1,929.20 - 1,929.20
Other Comprehensive Income for the year, net of Income Tax - - - 61.97 61.97

Dividend to Equity Shareholders - - -
- Dividend on Equity Shares - - (173.55) - (173.55)
Interim Dividend to Equity Shareholders - - - - -

- Interim Dividend on Equity Shares - - (173.55) - (173.55)
Balance as at March 31, 2023 34517 11,808.94 3,530.49 116.41 15,801.00
Profit / (Loss) for the year - - 2,433.65 - 2,433.65
Other Comprehensive Income for the period / year, net of Income Tax - - - 42.41 42.41
Dividend to Equity Shareholders - - - -
- Dividend on Equity Shares - - - - -
Interim Dividend to Equity Shareholders - - - -
- Interim Dividend on Equity Shares - - (173.55) - (173.55)
Balance as at March 31, 2024 34517 11,808.94 5,790.60 158.82 18,103.52
The accompanying Notes are an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements

As per our report attached For and on behalf of the Board

For Anant Rao & Mallik NCL Buildtek Limited

Chartered Accountants (formerly NCL Alltek & Seccolor Ltd.)

Firm Reg. No.006266S

V. Anant Rao Bh. Subba Raju K. Satya Subram

Partner Managing Director Executive Director

Membership No. 022644 DIN-08408400 DIN: 07573350

Place : Hyderabad B. Madhavi U. Divya Bharathi

Date : May 30, 2024 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024 ¢ CONSOLIDATED
Rs. in Lakhs
Particulars For the year ended |For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

A. Cash Flow from Operating Activities
Profit before Tax 2,370.84 1,911.65
Adjustments for: - -
Depreciation of Property, Plant and Equipment 1,129.66 1,074.90
Amortisation of Intangible Assets 6.32 33.57
Interest Income and Notional Income (110.29) (183.90)
Finance Costs 1,536.63 1,662.16
Loss on Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment - -
Derecognisation of Financial Assets 2.09 59.81
Adjustment for Exceptional ltems (6.75) (1.74)
Operating Profit before Working Capital changes 4,928.50 4,556.45
Changes in Working Capital
- Adjustments for (increase) / decrease in Operating Assets:
Inventories (255.77) (108.48)
Trade Receivables (48.52) (8.02)
Current Financial Assets (1,114.98) (222.47)
Non-Current Financial Assets (134.75) (28.02)
Other Current Assets 779.18 1,663.01
- Adjustments for increase / (decrease) in Operating Liabilities: - -
Trade Payables (224.34) (604.54)
Other Financial Liabilities 531.48 (709.25)
Other Current Financial Liabilities and Provisions 680.31 (312.65)
Cash (used in) / generated from Operations 5,141.10 4,226.02
Income Taxes paid (1,130.18) (287.58)
Net Cash (used in) / generated from Operating Activities - (A) 4,010.92 3,938.44
B. Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment, including Intangible Assets, (1,672.62) (1,147.54)
Capital Work-in-Progress and Capital Advances
Proceeds from sale of Property, Plant and Equipment 43.06 4.86
Interest Received on Fixed Deposits 110.23 176.04
Investment in Joint Venture - 425.00
Net Cash used in Investing Activities - (B) (1,519.32) (541.65)
C. Cash Flow from Financing Activities

Increase in Non-current Assets (131.70) -
Proceeds from Long Term Borrowings - 1,207.61
Repayment of Long Term Borrowings (2,101.67) (1,782.65)
Proceeds from / (repayment of) Short Term Borrowings (net) 1,367.59 43.20
Dividend and Dividend Distribution Tax paid (173.55) (347.09)
Finance Costs (1,536.63) (1,672.16)
Net Cash (used in) / from Financing Activities - ( C) (2,575.95) (2,551.10)
Net (decrease) / increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents - (A+B+C) (84.36) 845.69
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year (Refer Note 14 & 15) 1,263.60 417.91
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year (Refer Note 14 & 15) 1,179.23 1,263.60
Components of Cash and Cash Equivalents:
Cash on Hand 444 3.53
Balances with Banks
In Current Accounts 264.34 261.51
In Dividend Accounts 83.74 77.85
In Deposit Accounts 826.71 920.71
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,179.23 1,263.60

Note: The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the 'Indirect Method' as set out in the Ind AS-7 on Cash Flow Statements.

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements

As per our report attached For and on behalf of the Board

For Anant Rao & Mallik NCL Buildtek Limited

Chartered Accountants (formerly NCL Alltek & Seccolor Ltd.)
Firm Reg. N0.006266S

V. Anant Rao

Partner

Membership No. 022644
Place : Hyderabad

Date : May 30, 2024

Bh. Subba Raju
Managing Director
DIN-08408400

K. Satya Subram
Executive Director
DIN: 07573350

B. Madhavi U. Divya Bharathi
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
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Notes and other explanatory information to Consolidated Ind AS
Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2024

Significant Accounting Policies:
1. Corporate Information

NCL Buildtek Ltd (formerly NCL Alltek & Seccolor Limited (CIN
U72200TG1986PLC006601) (‘the company”) and its subsidiary
are engaged in manufacture and selling of Spray Plasters, Paints,
Skim Coat, Steel Profiles, Doors, Windows (Steel, ABS , uPVC
and Aluminium) and Fly Ash Bricks.

The Company is an Unlisted Public Company incorporated and
domiciled in India. The address of its corporate office is 10-3-162,
5 Floor, NCL Pearl,Sarojini Devi Road, East Marredpally,
Secunderabad, Telangana - 500026

The Group is organized into four divisions namely:
Windoors: The Company manufactures colour coated Gl windows,

and over a period started manufacturing ABS Doors in
collaboration with KOS, South Korea, uPVC Doors &
Windows in collaboration with Veka AG, Germany, and
high-end Aluminum Windows in partnership with
SCHUECO, Germany.

Coatings: NCL Buildtek was the first Company in India to

Walls :

manufacture Putty (Acrylic) and textured paint. The
company has developed several products during last 3
decades which includes putties, textures, emulsion
paints, tile adhesives and masonry glue etc.

The company has set up its first AAC Block unit near
Kavuluru region, Ibrahimpatnam Mandal, Krishna District
of Andhra Pradesh. To cater to the demand Company has
set up one more unitin Nellore District of Andhra Pradesh.
The total capacity of both the units put together is about
7,49,600 Cubic meter.

Services: Providing services to buildings and building materials

manufacturing units.

2. Basis of Preparation

This note provides the list of the Significant Accounting Policies
adopted in the preparation of these Ind AS Financial Statements.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

a.

Compliance with Ind AS

The Financial Statements comply in all material aspects with
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section
133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) read with
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015,
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, and other relevant
amendments and provisions of the Act.

Historical cost convention

The Financial Statements have been prepared on a historical
cost basis, except for the following:

+ Certainfinancial assets and liabilities (including derivative
instruments) and contingent consideration that is
measured at fair value;

+ Assets held for sale — measured at fair value less cost to
sell;

+ Defined benefit plans - plan assets measured at fair
value; and

+ Share-based payments.

¢. Current/Non-Current Classification

Any Asset or Liability is classified as current if it satisfies any of the
following conditions:

+ Asset/ Liability is expected to be realised / settled in the
Group’s normal operating cycle

+ Assetisintended for sale or consumption
+ Asset/Liability is held primarily for the purpose of trading

+ Assetis a cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted
from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at
least twelve months after the reporting date

* In case of a Liability, the Group does not have an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at
least twelve months after the reporting date

Operating cycle for the business activities of the Group covers the
duration of the specific project / contract / product line / service
including the defect liability period wherever applicable and extends
up to the realisation of receivables (including retention monies) within
the agreed credit period normally applicable to the respective lines of
business. For the purpose of this classification, the Group has
ascertained its normal operating cycle as twelve months or the
duration of the project / contract, which is based on the nature of
business and time between acquisition of assets and inventories for
processing and their realisation in Cash and Cash Equivalents.

d. Principles of consolidation

These Financial Statements have been prepared on the
following basis:

i. Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Company has
control. The Company controls an entity when the Company is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power to direct the relevant activities of the
entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Company. They are
deconsolidated from the date the control ceases. The
acquisition method of accounting is used to account for
business combination by the Group.

Acquisition method of accounting

The Company combines the separate Financial Statements of
the parent and its subsidiaries line by line adding together like
items of assets, liabilities, contingent liability, equity, income
and expenses. Intercompany transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between group companies
are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the
transferred asset. The excess of cost to the Company of its
investments in the subsidiary companies over its share of
equity of the subsidiary companies, at the dates on which the
investments in the subsidiary companies were made, is
recognized as Goodwill, being an asset in the Consolidated
Financial Statements and is tested for impairment on annual
basis. On the other hand, where the share of equity in the
subsidiary companies as on the date of investment is in
excess of cost of investments of the Company, itis recognized
as Capital Reserve and shown under the head Reserves and
Surplus, in the Consolidated Financial Statements. The
Goodwill / Capital Reserve is determined separately for each
subsidiary company. Non-controlling interests in the net
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assets of the consolidated subsidiaries consist of the amount
of equity attributable to the minority shareholders at the date
on which investments in the subsidiary companies were made
and further movements in their share in the equity,
subsequent to the dates of investments. Net profit/ loss for the
year of the subsidiaries attributable to minority interest is
identified and adjusted against the profit after tax of the Group,
inorder to arrive at the income attributable to shareholders.

ii. Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Company has
significant influence but no control or joint control.
Investments in associates are accounted for using the equity
method of accounting, after initially being recognised at cost.

Equity method of accounting

Under the equity method of accounting, the investments are
initially recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter to
recognise the Company’s share of the post-acquisition profits
orlosses of the investee in profit and loss, and the Company’s
share of Other Comprehensive Income of the investee in
Other Comprehensive Income. Dividends received or
receivable from associates are recognized as a reduction in
the carrying amount of the investment. When the Group’s
share of losses in an equity accounted investment equals or
exceeds its interest in the entity, including any other
unsecured long-term receivables, the Group does not
recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or
made payments on behalf of the other entity. Unrealised gains
on transactions between the Group and its associates are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in these
entities. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting Policies of equity accounted
investees have been changed where necessary and
practicable to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group. The carrying amount of the equity accounted
investments are tested forimpairment.

iii. Changesinthe Group’s ownershipinterests in subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in subsidiaries
that do not result in the Company losing control over the
subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions. A
change in ownership interest results in an adjustment
between the carrying amounts of the controlling and non-
controlling interests or reflect their relative interests in the
subsidiary. Any difference between the amount by which the
non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity
and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Company ceases to consolidate or equity account
for an investment because of a loss of control, or significant
influence, any retained interest in the entity is re-measured to
its fair value with the change in carrying amount recognised in
profit and loss. The fair value becomes the initial carrying
amount for the purposes of subsequent accounting for the
retained interest.

e. Preparation of Financial Statements and Statement of Cash

Flows

The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared in
Indian Rupees Lakhs (Rs in Lakhs .), which is the functional

currency of the company. Accounting policies with regards to
Foreign currency transactions have been explained under Note
5.21.

The Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under Indirect
Method, whereby the statement is segregated into Operating,
Investing and Financial activities. Under Operating Activities, Net
profit or Loss before taxes is adjusted for changes in working
capital, non-cash transactions and items associated with
Investment or Financial activities. The Company has considered
Margin Money and all Deposits maturing within next 12 months
from the end of Financial Year under cash and cash equivalent.

. Significant Accounting Estimates and Judgements

Estimates, assumptions concerning the future and judgments are
made in the preparation of the Financial Statements. They affect
the application of the Group’s accounting policies, reporting
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expense and
disclosures made. Although these estimates are based on
management’s best knowledge of current events and actions,
actual result may differ from those estimates.

The critical accounting estimates and assumptions used and
areas involving a high degree of judgments are described below:

Use of estimates and assumptions

In the process of applying the entity’s accounting policies,
management had made the following estimates and assumptions
that have the significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
Financial Statements. The estimates and assumptions used in
accompanying Financial Statements are based upon
management’s evaluation of the relevant facts and circumstances
as of the date of the Financial Statements are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Actual results may differ from the estimates and
assumptions used in preparing the accompanying Financial
Statements. Any revision to accounting estimates is recognised
prospectively in currentand future periods.

a. Property, Plantand Equipment & Intangible Assets

Key estimates related to long-lived assets (Property, Plant
and Equipment, Mineral Leaseholds and Intangible Assets)
include useful lives, recoverability of carrying values and the
existence of any retirement obligations. As a result of future
decisions, such estimates could be significantly modified. The
useful lives are applied as per Schedule Il of Companies Act,
2013 and estimated based upon our historical experience,
engineering estimates and industry information. These
estimates include an assumption regarding periodic
maintenance and an appropriate level of annual capital
expenditures to maintain the assets.

b. Employee Benefits - Measurement of Defined Benefit
Obligation

Management assesses post-employment and other
employee benefit obligations using the projected unit credit
method based on actuarial assumptions which represent
management’s best estimates of the variables that will
determine the ultimate cost of providing post-employment
and other employee benefits.

. Income Tax

The Group recognizes tax liabilities based upon self-
assessment as per the tax laws. When the final tax outcome of
these matters is different from the amounts that were initially

NCL BUILDTEK LIMITED & ANNUAL REPORT 2023-24 | 74



NOTES AND OTHER EXPLANATORY INFORMATION TO Ind AS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &  CONSOLIDATED

recognised, such differences will impact the income tax and
deferred tax provisions in the period in which such
determinationis made.

4, Critical judgements made in applying accounting policies
a. Lease Classifications

The Group evaluates if an arrangement qualifies to be a lease
as per the requirements of Ind AS 116. Identification of a lease
requires significant judgment. The Group uses significant
judgement in assessing the lease term (including anticipated
renewals) and the applicable discount rate.

The Group determines the lease term as the non-cancellable
period of a lease, together with both periods covered by an
option to extend the lease if the Group is reasonably certain to
exercise that option; and periods covered by an option to
terminate the lease if the Group is reasonably certain not to
exercise that option. In assessing whether the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise an option to extend a lease, or
not to exercise an option to terminate a lease, it considers all
relevant facts and circumstances that create an economic
incentive for the Group to exercise the option to extend the
lease, or not to exercise the option to terminate the lease. The
Group revises the lease term if there is a change in the non-
cancellable period of alease.

The discount rate is generally based on the incremental
borrowing rate specific to the lease being evaluated or for a
portfolio of leases with similar characteristics.

b. Expected CreditLoss

Expected Credit Losses of the Group are based on an
evaluation of the collectability of receivables. A considerable
amount of judgement is required in assessing the ultimate
realization of these receivables, including their current credit
worthiness, past collection history of each customer and
ongoing dealings with them. If the financial conditions of the
counterparties with which the Group contracted were to
deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their ability to make
payments, additional Expected Credit Loss may be required.

5. Material Accounting Policies
5.1 Property, Plant and Equipment and Depreciation

All items of Property, Plant and Equipment are initially
recorded at cost. The cost of an item of plant and equipment is
recognized as an asset if, and only if, it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Cost includes its purchase price (after deducting trade
discounts and rebates), import duties & non-refundable
purchase taxes, any costs directly attributable to bringing the
asset to the location & condition necessary for it to be capable
of operating in the manner intended by management,
Borrowing Costs on qualifying assets and asset retirement
costs. When parts of an item of Property, Plantand Equipment
have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate
items (major components) of Property, Plant and Equipment.

The activities necessary to prepare an asset for its intended
use or sale extend to more than just physical construction of
the asset. It may also include technical (DPR, environmental,
planning, land acquisition and geological study) and
administrative work such as obtaining approvals before the

commencement of physical construction.

The cost of replacing a part of an item of Property, Plant and
Equipment is capitalized if it is probable that the future
economic benefits of the part will flow to the Group and that its
cost can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
replaced partis derecognized.

Costs of day to day repairs and maintenance costs are
recognized into the Statement of Profitand Loss as incurred.

Subsequent to recognition, Property, Plant and Equipment
are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment losses.

The carrying values of Property, Plant and Equipment are
reviewed for impairment when events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be
recoverable.

The residual values, estimated useful lives and depreciation
method are reviewed at each financial year-end and adjusted
prospectively, if appropriate.

An item of Property, Plant and Equipment is derecognized
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset is recognised in the Statement of
Profitand Loss in the year the asset is derecognized.

Assets under installation or under construction as at the
Balance Sheet date are shown as Capital Work in Progress.

Depreciation is provided on Straight Line Method, as per the
provisions of Schedule |l of the Companies Act, 2013 or based
on useful life estimated on the technical assessment. Asset
class wise useful lives are as under:

Factory Buildings - 30Years
Non-Factory Buildings - 60 Years
Plantand Machinery - 15Years
Computer - 3Years
Furnitureand Fixtures - 10 Years
Vehicles - 8Years
Electrical Installation - 10Years
Office Equipment - 5Years

5.2 Intangible Assets & Amortization

Intangible Assets are recognised when it is probable that the
future economic benefits that are attributable to the asset will
flow to the enterprise and the cost of the asset can be
measured reliably.

Intangible Assets are stated at cost of acquisition less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any. Product development cost recognises on initial
product registration charges, analysis and other relevant
costs and are stated as intangible assets less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses.

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of Intangible
Assets are added to its book value only if they increase the
future benefits from the existing asset beyond its previously
assessed standard of performance.

The Group amortizes Computer Software and Licences using
the straight-line method over its estimated useful economic
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life, which is generally a period of 3 years.

5.3 Investment Properties

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both is classified as Investment Property.
Investment Property is measured at its cost, including related
transaction costs and where applicable Borrowing Costs.
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised to the asset's carrying
amount only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the expenditure will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and
maintenance costs are expensed when incurred. When part
of an Investment Property is replaced, the carrying amount of
the replaced partis derecognized.

Investment Properties are depreciated using the straight-line
method as per the provisions of Schedule Il of the Companies
Act, 2013 or based on useful life estimated on the technical
assessment.

5.4 Inventories

Raw Materials, Consumables, Stores and Spares and
Finished Goods are valued at lower of cost and net realizable
value. Costis determined on weighted average cost method.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of
completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Inventories are valued at lower of cost or net realizable value.

Goods-in transit are valued at cost which represents the cost
incurred up to the stage at which the goods are in transit.

5.5 Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether there is
any indication that an asset may be impaired. Where an
indicator of impairment exists, the Group makes a formal
estimate of recoverable amount. Where the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount the asset is
considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable
amount.

Recoverable amount is the greater of fair value less costs to
sell and value in use. It is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are
largely independent of those from other assets or groups of
assets, in which case, the recoverable amount is determined
for the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset.

5.6 Non-current Assets Held for Sale

Non-current Assets, or disposal groups comprising assets
and liabilities, that are expected to be recovered through sale
rather than through continuing use, are classified as Held for
Sale. Immediately before classification as Held for Sale, the
assets or components of the disposal group, are re-measured
in accordance with the Group’s Accounting Policies.
Thereafter, the assets or disposal group, are measured at the
lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.
Any impairment losses on initial classification as Held for Sale
or subsequent gain on re-measurement are recognized into
the Statement of Profit and Loss. Gains are not recognized in

excess of any cumulative impairment losses.
5.7 Financial Assets

Financial Assets comprise of investments in equity and debt
securities, Trade Receivables, Cash and Cash Equivalents and
Other Financial Assets.

Initial recognition:

All Financial Assets are recognized initially at fair value.
Purchases or sales of Financial Asset that require delivery of
assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention
in the market place (regular way trades) are recognized on the
trade date, i.e., the date that the Group commits to purchase or sell
the assets.

Subsequent Measurement:
a) Financial Assets measured at amortised cost:

Financial Assets held within a business model whose
objective is to hold Financial Assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the
Financial Assets give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding are measured at amortised cost using
Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method. The EIR amortization is
recognised as finance income in the Statement of Profit and
Loss. The Group while applying above criteria has classified
the following atamortised cost:

+ Trade Receivables
+ Cashand Cash Equivalents
+ OtherFinancial Assets

b) Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Other
Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI):

Financial Assets held within a business model whose
objective is to hold Financial Assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows, selling the Financial Assets and the
contractual terms of the Financial Assets give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding are
measured at FVTOCI. Fair Value movements in Financial
Assets at FVTOCI are recognised in Other Comprehensive
Income. Equity instruments held for trading are classified at
Fair Value Through Profit or Loss (FVTPL). For other equity
instruments the Group classifies the same at FVTOCI. The
classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.
Fair Value changes on equity investments at FVTOCI,
excluding dividends are recognised in Other Comprehensive
Income (OCI).

Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss (FVTPL)

Financial Assets are measured at Fair Value Through Profit or
Loss if it does not meet the criteria for classification as
measured at amortised cost or at Fair Value Through Other
Comprehensive Income. All fair value changes are
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

c) Investment in subsidiaries, joint ventures & associates
are carried at cost in the separate Financial Statements.

Impairment of Financial Assets:

Financial Assets are tested forimpairment based on the Expected
Credit Losses.
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a) TradeReceivables

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date.
The Expected Credit Losses over life time of the asset are
estimated by adopting the simplified approach using a
provision matrix which is based on historical loss rates
reflecting current condition and forecasts of future economic
conditions. In this approach, assets are grouped on the basis
of similar credit characteristics such as customer segment,
past due status and other factors which are relevant to
estimate the expected cash loss from these assets.

b) OtherFinancial Assets

Other Financial Assets are tested for impairment based on
significant change in credit risk since initial recognition and
impairment is measured based on probability of default over
the life time when there is significantincrease in credit risk.

De-recognition of Financial Assets:

AFinancial Asset is derecognized only when:

+ The Group has transferred the rights to receive cash flows
fromthe Financial Asset or

« The contractual right to receive cash flows from Financial
Assetis expired or

+ Retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the
Financial Asset, but assumes a contractual obligation to pay
the cash flows to one or more recipients.

Where the entity has transferred an asset and transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the
Financial Asset, in such cases the Financial Asset is
derecognized. Where the entity has neither transferred a
Financial Asset nor retains substantially all risks and rewards
of ownership of the Financial Asset, the Financial Asset is also
derecognized if the Group has not retained control of the
Financial Asset.

5.8 Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents comprise cash at bank and in hand
and short-term investments with an original maturity of three
months or less. Deposits with banks are subsequently measured
atamortized cost and short term investments are measured at fair
value through Statement of Profitand Loss.

5.9 Share Capital

Equity Shares are classified as equity.

5.10 Financial Liabilities

Initial recognition

Financial Liabilities are recognized when, and only when, the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
financial instrument. The Group determines the classification of
its Financial Liabilities at initial recognition. All Financial
Liabilities are recognized initially at fair value plus any directly
attributable transaction costs, such as loan processing fees and
issue expenses.

Subsequent measurement - at amortised cost

After initial recognition, Financial Liabilities are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the Effective Interest Rate
(EIR) method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the liabilities are de recognised, and through the
amortization process.

5.11

5.12

5.13

De recognition

Afinancial liability is de recognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled or expired. When an existing
financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is
treated as a de recognition of the original liability and the
recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective
carryingamountsis recognised in Statement of Profitand Loss.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing Costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale
are capitalized as part of the cost of the respective asset. Al
other Borrowing Costs are expensed in the period they occur.
Borrowing Costs consist of interest, exchange differences
arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent they are
regarded as an adjustment to the interest cost and other costs
thatan entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the Borrowing Costs eligible for
capitalization.

Employee Benefits

Employee Benefits are charged to the Statement of Profit and
Loss for the year.

Retirement benefits in the form of Provident Fund are defined
contribution scheme and such contributions are recognised,
when the contributions to the respective funds are due. There
are no other obligation other than the contribution payable to the
respective funds Gratuity liability is defined benefit obligation
and is provided for on the basis of actuarial valuation on
projected unit credit method made at the end of each financial
year. Re-measurement in case of defined benefit plans gains
and losses arising from experience adjustments and changesin
actuarial assumptions are recognised in the period in which
they occur, directly in Other Comprehensive Income and they
are included in retained earnings in the Statement of Changes
in Equity in the Balance Sheet.

Compensated absences are provided for on the basis of
actuarial valuation on projected unit credit method made at the
end of each financial year. Re-measurements as a result of
experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions
are recognised in Statement of Profitand Loss.

The amount of Non-current and Current portions of Employee
Benefits is classified as per the actuarial valuation at the end of
each financial year.

Income Taxes

Income tax expense is comprised of current and deferred
taxes. Current and deferred tax is recognized in net income
except to the extent that it relates to a business combination or
items recognized directly in equity or in Other Comprehensive
Income. Current income taxes for the current period, including
any adjustments to tax payable in respect of previous years, are
recognized and measured at the amount expected to be
recovered from or payable to the taxation authorities based on
the tax rates that are enacted or substantively enacted by the
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end of the reporting period.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognized for
temporary differences between the Financial Statements
carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their
respective tax base using the tax rates that are expected to
apply in the period in which the deferred tax asset or liability is
expected to settle, based on the laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognized if the
temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable income nor the accounting income. Deferred tax assets
are generally recognized for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable income
will be available against which they can be utilized. Deferred tax
assets are reviewed at each reporting date and reduced
accordingly to the extent that it is no longer probable that they
can be utilized.

In the situations where the Group is entitled to a tax holiday
under the Income-Tax Act, 1961 enacted in India or tax laws
prevailing in the respective tax jurisdictions where it operates,
no deferred tax (asset or liability) is recognized in respect of
temporary differences which reverse during the tax holiday
period, to the extent the Group’s gross total income is subject to
the deduction during the tax holiday period.

Deferred tax in respect of temporary differences which reverse
after the tax holiday period is recognized in the year in which the
temporary differences originate. However, the Group restricts
recognition of deferred tax assets to the extent that it has
become reasonably certain, that sufficient future taxable
income will be available against which such deferred tax assets
can be realized. For recognition of deferred taxes, the
temporary differences which originate first are considered to
reverse first.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is
legally enforceable right of offset current tax assets and
liabilities when the deferred tax balances relate to the same
taxation authority. Current tax asset and liabilities are offset
where the entity has legally enforceable right to offset and
intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously.

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT)

MAT credit is recognised as an asset only when and to the
extent there is convincing evidence that the Group will pay
normal income tax during the specified period. In the year in
which the MAT credit becomes eligible to be recognized as an
asset in accordance with the recommendations contained in
Guidance Note issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India, the said asset is created by way of a credit to the
statement of profit and loss and shown as MAT Credit
Entitlement. The Group reviews the same at each Balance
Sheet date and writes down the carrying amount of MAT Credit
Entitlement to the extent there is no longer convincing evidence
to the effect that Group will pay normal income tax during the
specified period.

Leases

Effective April 1, 2019, the Group has applied Ind AS 116 using

the modified retrospective approach and therefore the
comparative information has not been restated and continues
to be reported under IndAS 17.

For contracts entered into or changed, on or after April 1, 2019,
the Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease. A
contractis or contains alease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the
Group assesses whether:

+ thecontractinvolves the use of an identified asset;

+ the Group has the right to obtain substantially all of the
economic benefits from use of the asset throughout the
period of use; and

+ the Group has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At inception or on reassessment of a contract that contains a
lease component, the Group allocates the consideration in the
contract to each lease component on the basis of their relative
stand-alone prices. However, for the leases of land and
buildings in which it is a lessee, the Group has elected not to
separate non-lease components and account for the lease and
non-lease components as a single lease component.

For contracts entered into before April 1, 2019, the Group
determined whether the arrangement was or contained a lease
based on the assessment of whether;

+ fulfilment of the arrangement was dependent on the use of a
specific assetor assets; and

+ thearrangementhad conveyed aright to use the asset.
Group as alessee

The Group recognises a Right-of-use Asset and a Lease
Liability at the lease commencement date. The Right-of-use
Asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial
amount of the Lease Liability adjusted for any lease payments
made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial
direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and
remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset
or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives
received.

The Right-of-use Asset is subsequently depreciated using the
straight-line method from the commencement date to the earlier
ofthe end of the useful life of the Right-of-use Asset or the end of
the lease term. The estimated useful lives of Right-of-use
Assets are determined on the same basis as those of Property,
Plant and Equipment. In addition, the Right-of-use Asset is
periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted
for certain remeasurements of the Lease Liability.

The Lease Liability is initially measured at the present value of
the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement
date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if
that rate cannot be readily determined, the Group’s incremental
borrowing rate. Generally, the Group uses its incremental
borrowing rate as the discount rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the Lease
Liability comprise the following:

+ fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments;

+ variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate,
initially measured using the index or rate as at the
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commencement date;

+ amounts expected to be payable under a residual value
guarantee; and

+ the exercise price under a purchase option that the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise, lease payments in an
optional renewal period if the Group is reasonably certain to
exercise an extension option, and penalties for early
termination of a lease unless the Group is reasonably
certain notto terminate early.

The Lease Liability is measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. It is remeasured when there is a
change in future lease payments arising from a change in an
index or rate, if there is a change in the Group’s estimate of the
amount expected to be payable under a residual value
guarantee or if the Group changes its assessment of whether it
will exercise a purchase, extension or termination option.

In certain Agreements under Lease where the annual rental
payments under lease are nominal, the group has decided not
calculate its Present value using EIR method. The group
recognises such payments in Statement of Profitand Loss.

When the Lease Liability is remeasured in this way, a
corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the
Right-of-use Asset, or is recorded in Statement of Profit and
Loss if the carrying amount of the Right-of-use Asset has been
reduced to zero.

The Group presents Right-of-use Assets that do not meet the
definition of investment property and Lease Liabilities as a
separate line item on the face of the Balance Sheet.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets: The Group
has elected not to recognise Right-of-use Assets and Lease
Liabilities for short-term leases that have a lease term of 12
months or less and leases of low-value assets. The Group
recognises the lease payments associated with these leases as
an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Asalessor

Lease income from operating leases where the Group is a
lessor is recognised in income on a straight-line basis over the
lease term unless the receipts are structured to increase in line
with expected general inflation to compensate for the expected
inflationary cost increases. The respective Leased Assets are
included in the Balance Sheetbased on their nature.

Provisions

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the
Group has a present legal or constructive obligation that can be
estimated reliably and itis probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are
measured at the present value of management's best estimate
of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the
end of the reporting period. The discount rate used to determine
the present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage of
time is recognised as interest expense and is recorded over the
estimated time period until settlement of the obligation.
Provisions are reviewed and adjusted, when required, to reflect
the current best estimate at the end of each reporting period.

The Group recognizes decommissioning provisions in the

517

5.18

5.19

period in which a legal or constructive obligation is incurred. A
corresponding decommissioning cost is added to the carrying
amount of the associated Property, Plant and Equipment and it
is depreciated over the estimated useful life of the asset.

Contingent Liabilities
Contingent Liability is disclosed in case of:

+ Apresent obligation arising from past events, when it is not
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation;

+ A present obligation arising from past events, when no
reliable estimate is possible;

+ A possible obligation arising from past events whose
existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond
the control of the Group where the probability of outflow of
resources is not remote.

ContingentAssets

Contingent Assets are not recognized but disclosed in the
Financial Statements when an inflow of economic benefits is
probable.

Fair Value Measurements

Group uses the following hierarchy when determining fair
values:

+ Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities;

+ Level 2-Inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1
that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly
(prices) orindirectly (derived from prices); and

+ Level 3-Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data.

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets
is based on quoted market prices at the reporting dates. A
market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and
regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry
group, pricing service, or regulatory agency and those prices
represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on
an arm’s length basis. The fair value for these instruments is
determined using Level 1 inputs.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an
active market (for example, over the counter derivatives) is
determined by using valuation techniques. These valuation
techniques maximize the use of observable market data where
it is available and rely as little as possible on entity specific
estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an
instrument are observable, the instrument is fair valued using
level 2inputs.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on
observable market data, the instrument is fair valued using
Level 3 inputs. Specific valuation techniques used to value
financial instruments include:

* Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar
instruments

+ The fair value of interest rate swaps is calculated as the
present value of the estimated future cash flows based on
observable yield curves
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+ The fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts is
determined using forward exchange rates at the reporting
dates, with the resulting value discounted back to present
value

+ Other techniques, such as discounted cash flow analysis,
are used to determine fair value for the remaining financial
instruments.

5.20 Revenue Recognition

5.21

The Group recognises revenue from contracts with customers
based on a five-step model, such as to, identifying the contracts
with a customer, identifying the performance obligations in the
contract, determine the transaction price, allocate the
transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract
and recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a
performance obligation ata pointin time or over time.

The Group satisfies a performance obligation and recognises
revenue over time, if one of the following criteria is met:

+ The customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the Group
performs; or

+ The Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the asset is created or
enhanced; or

+ The Group’s performance does not create an asset with an
alternative use to the Group and the entity has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed to
date.

For performance obligations where one of the above conditions
are not met, revenue is recognised at the point in time at which
the performance obligation is satisfied.

Foreign Currency Transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the
functional currency of the Group, at exchange rates in effect at
the transaction date. At each reporting date monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated

5.22

5.23

5.24

at the exchange rate in effect at the date of the Financial
Statements. The translation for other non-monetary assets is
not updated from historical exchange rates unless they are
carried atfair value.

Government Grants

Government Grants are recognised where there is reasonable
assurance that the grant will be received and all attached
conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an
expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis
over the periods that the related costs, for which it is intended to
compensate, are expensed.

Earnings Per Share

Basic Earnings Per Share are calculated by dividing the profit
attributable to owners of the Group by the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year,
adjusted for bonus elements in equity shares issued during the
year and excluding treasury shares.

Diluted Earnings Per Share adjust the figures used in the
determination of Basic Earnings Per Share to take into account,
the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs
associated with dilutive potential equity shares and the
weighted average number of additional equity shares that
would have been outstanding assuming the conversion of all
dilutive potential equity shares.

Segmental Reporting

Operating Segments are reported in a manner consistent with
the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision
makers, who are responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the Operating Segments.

Recent Pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standards or
amendments to the existing Standards under Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 from time to time.
For this year ending on 31st March, 2024, MCA has not notified
any amendments or new standards to the existing standards
applicable to the Group.
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Note 7A. Capital Work-in-Progress Ageing Schedule : Rs. in Lakhs
Particul Amount in CWIP for a year of Total
articufars Lessthan 1 year | 1-2years | 2-3years [More than 3 years ola
Balance as at March 31, 2024
(i) Projects in Progress
(a) Projects 185.80 - - 185.80
(b) Others 8.70 2.05 37.97 48.72
(ii) Projects Temporarily suspended
Total 194.50 - 2.05 37.97 234.53
Balance as at March 31, 2023
(i) Projects in Progress
(a) Projects 683.85 - - - 683.85
(b) Others 17.77 2.00 6.65 31.32 57.75
(ii) Projects Temporarily suspended
Total 701.63 2.00 6.65 31.32 741.60
Note 8. Intangible Assets Rs. in Lakhs
Particulars Computer Software
Gross Carrying Value
Balance as at April 1, 2021 90.63
Additions 8.07
Disposals / Deductions -
Balance as at March 31, 2022 98.70
Gross Carrying Value
Balance as at March 31, 2022 98.70
Additions -
Disposals / Deductions -
Balance as at March 31, 2023 98.70
Additions 0.58
Disposals / Deductions -
Balance as at March 31, 2024 99.28
Depreciation and Impairment
Balance as at March 31, 2022 78.17
Depreciation Expense 12.38
Depreciation on Disposals / Deductions -
Balance as at March 31, 2023 90.55
Depreciation Expense 2.95
Depreciation on Disposals / Deductions -
Balance as at March 31, 2024 93.50
Net Carrying Value
As at March 31, 2023 8.15
As at March 31, 2024 5.78
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Note 8A. Right-of-use asset Rs. in Lakhs
Particulars Leasehold Land
Gross Carrying Value
Balance as at March 31, 2022 32.61
Additions 627.51
Disposals / Deductions -
Balance as at March 31, 2023 660.12
Additions
Disposals / Deductions -
Balance as at March 31, 2024 660.12
Depreciation and Impairment
Balance as at March 31, 2022 5.61
Depreciation Expense 21.19
Depreciation on Disposals / Deductions -
Balance as at March 31, 2023 26.80
Depreciation Expense 6.68
Depreciation on Disposals / Deductions -
Balance as at March 31, 2024 3347
Net Carrying Value
As at March 31, 2023 633.32
As at March 31, 2024 626.65
Note 9. Investments Rs. in Lakhs
Particul As at As at
articufars March 31,2024 | March 31,2023
I) | Unquoted Investments :
(a) | Investment in Equity Instruments of Associates held for sale
NCL Veka Limited (Formerly NCL Wintech India Ltd.) 6,231,799 equity shares of
Rs. 10 fully paid-up (Previous year 6,231,799 equity shares) 2,678.12 2,063.98
Add: Share of Profit 879.90 614.13
Total 3,558.02 2,678.12
(b) | Investment in Joint Venture
NCL Buildtek & NCL Industries JV 375.83 340.81
Add: Share of Profit (84.43) 35.02
Total 291.40 375.83
Total 3,849.42 3,053.95
Note 10. Other Financial Assets Rs. in Lakhs
Particulars As at As at

March 31,2024 | March 31, 2023

Non Current (unsecured, considered good, unless stated otherwise)

Security Deposits 93.93 95.55

Other Advances 136.37 -

Interest refundable from SBI (Excess collected) 32.48 32.48

Total 262.79 128.03

Note 11. Other Non Current Asset Rs. in Lakhs
Particulars As at As at

March 31,2024 | March 31, 2023

Non Current (unsecured, considered good, unless stated otherwise)
Other Deposits 131.70

Total 131.70 -
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Note 12. Inventories Rs. in Lakhs
Particul As at As at
articufars March 31,2024 | March 31, 2023
Raw Materials and Packing Materials 3,686.52 3,591.46
Work-in-Progress 1,227.89 795.30
Finished Goods 785.82 1,051.27
Stores and Spares 443.27 449.70
(Unrealised Profit in respect of transactions with Associate Company forming part of
consolidated financials were not quantified and hence not adjusted)
Total 6,143.50 5,887.73
Note 13. Trade Receivables Rs. in Lakhs
Particul As at As at
articufars March 31,2024 | March 31, 2023
i) | Current:
Unsecured, Considered good 8,709.31 8,443.29
Less: Provision for Credit Impaired - -
Total 8,709.31 8,443.29
ii) | Non Current :
Unsecured, Considered good 721.02 977.12
Less: Provision for Credit Impaired 56.57 93.08
Total 664.45 884.04
Note 13.1 Trade Receivables Ageing As at March 31, 2024 Rs. in Lakhs
. Less than | 6 Months- More than
Particulars 6 Months | 1 year 1-2years | 2-3years | "5 years Total
Undisputed Trade receivables — due and considered good 5,157.41 989.36 898.00 1,534.98 | 129.57 8,709.31
Total 5,157.41 989.36 898.00 1,534.98 | 129.57 | 8,709.31
Note 13.1 Trade Receivables Ageing As at March 31, 2023 Rs. in Lakhs
. Less than | 6 Months- More than
Particulars 6 Months | 1 year 1-2years | 2-3years | "5 years Total
Undisputed Trade receivables — due and considered good 4,896.06 | 1,085.11 | 929.68 1,321.89 | 210.55 | 8,443.29
Total 4,896.06 | 1,085.11 | 929.68 1,321.89 | 210.55 | 8,443.29
Note 14. Cash and Cash Equivalents Rs. in Lakhs
Particul As at As at
articufars March 31,2024 | March 31, 2023
Cash on Hand 444 3.53
Balances with Banks
- In Current Accounts 264.34 261.51
Total 268.78 265.04
Note 15. Bank Balances Rs. in Lakhs
Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

In Deposit Accounts

Deposits maturing for more than 3 months but less than 12 months

Margin Money
- Fixed Deposit Reserve
- In Dividend Accounts

Total

499.05 231.92
193.63 477.12
134.02 211.67

83.74 77.85
910.45 998.56
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Note 16. Other Financial Assets Rs. in Lakhs
. As at As at
Particulars March 31,2024 | March 31,2023

Advances to Employees 14.53 17.14
EMD & Security Deposits 5.92 5.92
Deposits 4.65 3.99
Deposit with Others 29.81 27.02
Interest Receivable 13.10 13.04
Insurance Claim Receivable * 264.67 293.91
Inter Corporate Loan Given 1,393.46 210.12
Dividend Receivable - -
Total 1,726.13 571.13

*

On October 1, 2020 a fire broke outin a shed located in Factory premises at Mattapally, Suryapet District, Telengana, wherein certain equipment and inventory items were stored.

There has been no loss of life. The Assets and Inventory items are fully insured with the National Insurance Company Limited and the Company is following up with the insurance
company for settlement of the claim. Based on the conditions of insurance policy, an amount of Rs. 17,15,891 has been provided for (exceptional item) in the financial year 2020-
21and the claim amount of Rs. 2,93,90,673 (after adjusting salvage disposal value of Rs. 15,25,786) is shown above as receivable.

Note 17. Current Tax Assets (Net) Rs. in Lakhs
Particul As at As at
articulars March 31,2024 | March 31,2023
Current Tax Assets (net) 288.05 118.76
Total 288.05 118.76
Note 18. Other Current Assets Rs. in Lakhs
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
MAT Credit Entitlement 220.81 102.70
Advances for Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment 499.02 295.30
Advances to Suppliers 281.71 675.84
Prepaid Expenses 343.86 326.11
Balances with Statutory / Government Authorities 428.62 831.42
Total 1,774.02 2,231.37
Note 19. Equity Share Capital Rs. in Lakhs
Particul As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
articulars No. of Shares Amount No. of Shares Amount
Authorised Share Capital
Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each 250.00 2,500.00 250.00 2,500.00
Issued Share Capital
Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each 127.45 1,274.54 127.45 1,274.54
Subscribed and Paid up Share Capital
Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each 115.70 1,156.97 115.70 1,156.97
Total 115.70 1,156.97 115.70 1,156.97
19.1 Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period Rs. in Lakhs
For the period ended For the period ended
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
No. of Shares Amount No. of Shares Amount
Opening Shares Outstanding 115.70 1,156.97 115.70 1,156.97
Add: Issued during the period - - - -
Closing Shares Outstanding 115.70 1,156.97 115.70 1,156.97

19.2 The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one
vote per share at the general meeting of the Company. The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian Rupees.
In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after
distribution of all preferential amounts in the proportion of the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.
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19.3 Details of shareholders, holding more than 5% shares in the Company

Rs. in Lakhs

As at March 31, 2024

As at March 31, 2023

Particulars No. of Shares | % Holding | No. of Shares | % Holding
Sri. K. Ravi 7.01 6.06 7.01 6.06
Sri. K. Gautam 7.76 6.71 7.76 6.71
Smt. K. Anuradha 8.51 7.36 4.61 3.98
Smt. K. Pooja 8.32 7.19 8.32 7.19
19.4 Details of Shares held by promoters Rs. in Lakhs
Sl. Shareholder's N As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023 Change During the Year
No. areholder's Name No. of Shares | % Holding |No. of Shares | % Holding | Sales |Purchase | % of change
1 |Pooja Kalidindi 8.32 7.19 8.32 7.19 - -
2 | Gautam Kalidindi 7.76 6.71 7.76 6.71 - -
3 |Kalidindi Ravi 7.01 6.06 7.01 6.06 - -
4 | Kalidindi Roopa 5.67 4.90 5.65 488 - 0.02 0.01%
5 |[Ashven Datla 4.30 3.72 5.65 4.88 1.35 - 1.17%
6 |Kalidindi Shilpa 5.61 4.85 5.61 4.85 - - -
7 | Anuradha Kalidindi 8.51 7.36 4.61 3.98 - 3.90 3.37%
8 |Madhu Kalidindi - - 3.90 3.37 3.90 - -3.37%
9 |Goradia Vinodrai Vachharaj 2.08 1.79 2.08 1.79 - - -
Goradia Charulata Vinodrai
10 |[Goradia Charulata Vinodrai 1.98 1.71 1.98 1.71 - -
Goradia Vinodrai Vachharaj
11 [Divya Penumacha 1.50 1.30 1.50 1.30 - -
12 | Kanumilli Sudheer 1.34 1.16 1.34 1.16 - -
13 |Vijaya Lakshmi Kanumilli 1.16 1.00 1.16 1.00 - -
14 |Madhavi Penumasta 1.05 0.90 1.05 0.90 - -
15 [K Mallika 0.99 0.85 0.99 0.85 - -
16 |G Jyothi 0.97 0.84 0.97 0.84 - - -
17 |Varma PAK 0.87 0.84 0.97 0.84 0.10 - -0.09%
18 [Padma Gottumukkala 0.96 0.83 0.96 0.83 - - -
19 |Penmetsa Narasimha Raju - - - - -
20 |Sridevi Manthena 0.88 0.76 0.88 0.76 -
21 |Penmetsa Vara Lakshmi - - - - -
22 |Geeta GoradiaNirhmal V Goradia 0.83 0.71 0.83 0.71 - -
23 |Nirmala Kanumilli 0.96 0.71 0.82 0.71 0.13 0.11%
24 |Aditi Krishna Sundari Penumatcha 0.66 0.57 0.66 0.57 - -
25 [Meera B Goradia Bimal V Goradia 0.58 0.50 0.58 0.50 - -
26 |Somaraju Sakhineti 0.57 0.49 0.57 0.49 - -
27 |P Aparna Krishna 0.50 0.43 0.50 0.43 - -
28 |Parvati Sakhineti 0.50 0.43 0.50 0.43 - -
29 |Penumatsa Satyanarayana Raju 0.45 0.39 0.45 0.39 - -
30 [Bimal Goradia Meera Goradia 0.32 0.28 0.32 0.28 - -
31 |Utkal B Goradia Hiral U Goradia 0.31 0.27 0.31 0.27 - -
32 [Kanumilli Malathi 0.29 0.25 0.29 0.25 - -
33 [Surapaneni Madhavi 0.27 0.23 0.27 0.23 - -
34 [Nirhmal V Goradia Geeta Goradia 0.24 0.21 0.24 0.21 - -
35 [ValliP 0.24 0.21 0.24 0.21 - -
36 |Penmetcha Manoj Raj 0.23 0.19 0.23 0.19 - -
37 |Vijaya Raghavan Endlur 0.20 0.18 0.20 0.18 - -
38 |Kalidindi Abhiram Chandra 0.18 0.16 0.18 0.16 - -
39 [Ashwin Goradia Bharti Goradia 0.14 0.12 0.14 0.12 - - -
40 |Sai Sreedhar Kanumilli - 0.1 0.13 0.1 0.13 - -0.11%
41 |Bharti Goradia Ashwin Goradia 0.10 0.09 0.10 0.09 - - -
42 |Subba Raju Bhupatiraju 0.35 0.30 0.10 0.08 0.25 0.22%
43 |G.T.Sandeep 0.08 0.07 0.08 0.07 - -
44 |Hiral Utkal Goradia Utkal Bimal Goradia 0.05 0.04 0.05 0.04 - -
45 |"Meera Bimal Goradia Bimal V Goradia" 0.01 0.00 0.01 0.00 - -
46 |Bharti A Goradia 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 - -
47 |Diti Ashwin Goradia 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 - -
48 [Nishi Ashwin Goradia 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 - - -
Total Shares held by promoters 69.01 59.73 70.19 60.67 5.48 4.30 -1.02%
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Note 20. Borrowings Rs. in Lakhs
Particul Non Current Current
articuiars As at As at As at As at
March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Secured at Amortised Costs
Term Loans
YES Bank - Rupee Term Loan 1,383.98 3,317.01 1,950.99 1,758.50
Vehicle Loans from Banks - Hire Purchase 299.84 82.52 25.47 27.51
Unsecured Loans - - - -
Fixed Deposits from Public and Shareholders (includes interest due 851.63 1,464.07 1,050.45 1,046.86
of Rs.141.71 lakhs March 31, 2024 Rs.205.60 lakhs for March 31, 2023
Deposits from Dealers 124.59 92.14 - -
2,660 4,956 3,027 2,833
Current portion of Financial Liabilities are disclosed under - - 3,026.90 2,832.87
the head Current Maturities (Note 25)
Less: Unamortised upfront fees and other borrowing cost 23.85 23.85 - -
Total 2,636.18 4,931.89 - -
(a) The details of Term Loans from Banks and Financial Institutions are as under: Rs. in Lakhs
Particulars Outstanding as on | Outstanding as on Sanction Commencement
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 Amount of instalments
YES Bank - Guaranteed Emergency Credit Line(GECL)-1 866.29 1,314.29 1,820.00 | February, 2022
YES Bank - Guaranteed Emergency Credit Line(GECL)-2 670.95 890.15 900.00 April, 2023
YES Bank- Term Loan Il 1,797.73 2,871.08 5,000.00 June, 2020
Vehicle Loan-HDFC Bank Limited & ICICI Bank Ltd. 325.31 112.03 369.83 | December, 2021-22
2022-23 &
2023-24

The interest rate for the above borrowings ranges from 7.25% p.a. to 11.90% p.a. depending on the terms of loan sanction.

Terms and Conditions attached to the borrowings:
Term Loans from State Bank of India are fully secured by;

Secunderabad, Telangana.
Pledge of shares held by Promoters in NCL Holdings (A&S) Limited.

Exclusive Charge on the Property, Plant and Equipment (present & future) of the Company both moveable and immoveable.
Equitable Mortgage of Factory Land situated at various locations and Equitable Mortgage of commercial space belonging to the Company, situated at

Personal Guarantees of Promoters-1. Ms. Pooja. K, 2. Mr. Bimal V Goradia, 3.Mr. Gautam K, 4.Ms. K. Roopa and 5.Mr. Bh. Subba Raju
State Bank of India (Guaranteed Emergency Credit Line-2) were taken over by YES Bank Limited - Both GECL Loans amounting to Rs. 2500 lakhs

and shall rank on second charge basis with the existing credit facilities. The loan carries an interest of 9.25% and repayable in 48 monthly instalments

after a moratorium of 12 months.

charges created out of such loan facilities.

Rs.1800 lakhs and secured by;

Materials, Work-in-Progress, Stores and Spares, Packing Materials, Finished Goods and Receivables.

Collateral security: Assets referred in (a)(1) to (a)(5) of above.

Fixed Deposits are unsecured, bearing an interest rate ranges from 9% to 11.50% p.a. depending upon tenure of the deposit.
Deposits from Dealers are unsecured, bearing an interest rate ranges from 8% p.a. to 10% p.a.
Working Capital facilities from State Bank of India are taken over by YES Bank Limited & Canara bank sanctioned additional working capital limits of

Vehicle Loans from HDFC Bank Limited and ICICI Bank Limited are availed for the purpose of acquisition of vehicles and are secured by primary

Primary Security: Exclusive Charge (Hypothecation) of all chargeable Current Assets (present & future) of the Company, including stocks of Raw

Note 21. Provisions Rs. in Lakhs
Particul Non Current Current
articulars As at As at As at As at
March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Total
Provision for Gratuity (Note 29) 835.09 758.22 118.07 103.97
Provision for Compensated Absences 189.12 67.83 9.29 8.29
Total 1,024.21 826.05 127.36 112.26
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Note 22. Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) Rs. in Lakhs
Particul As at As at
articuiars March 31,2024 | March 31,2023
Deferred Tax Liabilities Relating to Accumulated Depreciation for Tax Purpose 1,711.23 1,739.50
1,711.23 1,739.50
Deferred Tax Assets Relatings Unused Tax Losses / 364.77 282.91
Depreciation Expenses Allowable on Payment Basis
364.77 282.91
Total 1,346.46 1,456.60
Note 23. Current Borrowings Rs. in Lakhs
Particul As at As at
articuiars March 31,2024 | March 31,2023
Indian Rupee loans from Banks - Secured
Working Capital Facilities from YES Bank & Canara Bank [Note 20 (f)] 5,930.59 4,563.00
Total 5,930.59 4,563.00
Note 24. Trade Payables Rs. in Lakhs
Particul As at As at
articulars March 31,2024 | March 31,2023
Outstanding dues to Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises 340.00 416.79
Outstanding dues to Creditors other than Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises 3,074.99 3,222.54
Total 3,414.98 3,639.33
Note 24.1 Trade Payables Ageing Rs. in Lakhs
As at March 31, 2024
. Less than More than
Particulars 1 year 1-2 years | 2-3 years 3 years Total
Amounts which have fallen due:
a) Outstanding dues to Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises 340.00 - 340.00
b) Outstanding dues to Creditors other than Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises | 3,067.74 7.24 3,074.99
Total 3,407.74 7.24 - - 3,414.98
As at March 31, 2023 Rs. in Lakhs
. Less than More than
Particulars 1 year 1-2years | 2-3years | "5 years Total
Amounts which have fallen due:
a) Outstanding dues to Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises 416.79 - - - 416.79
b) Outstanding dues to Creditors other than Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises | 3,116.53 106.00 - - 3,222.54
Total 3,533.32 106.00 3,639.33
Note 25. Current Maturities Rs. in Lakhs
As at As at

Particulars

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Valued at Amortised Cost
Current maturities of non current borrowings from Bank - Secured (Note 20)
Current maturities of non current borrowings Others - Unsecured (Note 20)

Total

1,976.45 1,786.01
1,050.45 1,046.86
3,026.90 2,832.87
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Note 26. Other Financial Liabilities Rs. in Lakhs
Particul As at As at
articulars March 31,2024 | March 31,2023
Valued at Amortised Cost
Inter Corporate Loan Received - 605.90
Unpaid Dividends * 83.74 77.85
Other Payables - Expenses 3,583.95 2,278.92
Dividend Payable - 173.55
Total 3,667.70 3,136.22
* Unpaid Dividends will be credited to Investors Education and Protection Fund as and when due.
Note 27. Other Current Liabilities Rs. in Lakhs
As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Total
Advances Received from Customers 390.68 750.82
Statutory Dues 1,033.86 206.66
Total 1,424.54 957.49
Note 28. Revenue from Operations Rs. in Lakhs
Particul For the year ended|For the year ended
articulars March 31,2024 | March 31,2023
A | SALE OF PRODUCTS
Manufactured Goods 49,684.26 51,254.20
Traded Goods 729.55 654.92
Total (A) 50,413.81 51,909.12
B | Sale of Services
Job Work Services 42.24 128.62
Total (B) 42.24 128.62
C [ Other Operating Revenue
Sale of Containers and Scrap 209.91 359.48
Revenue from Operations (Gross) (A+B+C) 50,665.96 52,397.21
Less : GST 7,117.13 7,362.01
Total 43,548.83 45,035.20
Note 29. Other Income Rs. in Lakhs
Particul For the year ended|For the year ended
articulars March 31,2024 | March 31, 2023
Interest Income 110.29 183.90
Other Income 44 .47 93.32
Dividend Income - -
Total 154.76 277.22
Note 30. Cost of Materials Consumed Rs. in Lakhs
Particul For the year ended|For the year ended
articulars March 31,2024 | March 31, 2023
Opening Stock at the beginning of the year 3,591.46 4,009.02
Add: Purchases 23,012.54 25,152.66
26,604.00 29,161.67
Less: Closing Stock at the end of the year 3,686.52 3,591.46
Total 22,917.47 25,570.21
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Note 31. Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, Work-in-Progress Rs. in Lakhs
Particul For the year ended |For the year ended
articutars March 31,2024 | March 31,2023
Opening Stock :
Work-in-Progress 795.30 76.65
Finished Goods 1,051.27 1,320.35
Closing Stock : -
Work-in-Progress 1,227.89 795.30
Finished Goods 785.82 1,051.27
Net (Increase) / Decrease (167.14) (449.57)
Note 32. Other Manufacturing Expenses Rs. in Lakhs
Particul For the year ended |For the year ended
articutars March 31,2024 | March 31,2023
Consumption of Stores and Spares 929.25 919.39
Power and Fuel Charges 1,920.49 2,233.11
Insurance 19.75 31.55
Packing, Forwarding efc. 143.05 147.37
Installation Expenses / Mining 1,121.08 1,342.30
Repairs & Maintenance : - -
(a) Plant & Equipment 325.85 311.48
(b) Buildings 5.85 3.95
(c) Others 0.80 1.93
Total 4,466.12 4,991.08
Note 33. Employee Benefits Expenses Rs. in Lakhs
Particul For the year ended|For the year ended
artictiars March 31,2024 | March 31, 2023
Salaries, Wages, Bonus and Other Benefits 5,300.44 4,903.43
Managerial Remuneration 240.19 201.09
Contribution to Provident and Other Funds 405.93 343.11
Staff Welfare Expenses 152.41 147.20
Total 6,098.97 5,594.83
Note 34. Finance Costs Rs. in Lakhs
For the year ended|For the year ended

Particulars

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Interest Expenses on:

- Working Capital Loan 552.36 435.63

- Deposits 220.49 283.81

- Dealership Deposits 3.98 9.45

- Hire Purchase and Others 51.55 165.37

- Term Loans 525.23 608.18

Loan Processing Charges 140.66 61.24

Bank Charges 42.37 98.50

Total 1,536.63 1,662.16

Note 35. Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses Rs. in Lakhs
Particul For the year ended|For the year ended

artictiars March 31,2024 | March 31, 2023

Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment 1,125.28 1,074.90

Amortisation of Intangible Assets/Right-of-use assets 6.32 33.57

Total 1,131.60 1,108.47
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Note 36. Other Expenses Rs. in Lakhs
Particul For the year ended |For the year ended
articufars March 31,2024 | March 31,2023
Rent 343.65 300.39
Licence, Fee & Taxes 108.33 115.03
Research & Development Expenses 16.04 30.30
Printing & Stationery 20.27 20.97
Consultancy & Professional Charges 274.12 160.00
Auditors' Remuneration :
(a) Audit Fee 3.75 3.75
(b) Tax Audit Fee 1.50 1.50
(c) Out of Pocket Expenses 1.90 1.84
Remuneration to Cost Auditors 0.75 0.75
Remuneration to Internal Auditors 5.00 4.50
Derecognisation of Financial Assets (Bad Debts) 2.09 59.81
Provision for Credit Impaired Trade Receivables 94.41 -
CSR Expenses 25.95 22.62
Directors Sitting Fee 14.30 11.78
Directors Travelling & Conveyance 2.50 511
Travelling & Conveyance 374.91 352.83
Impairment Loss (Fixed Assets) 4.38
Office Maintenance 130.94 131.05
Communication Expenses 50.65 49.56
Vehicle Maintenance 31.86 30.13
Security Services 137.03 126.39
Sales Promotion 1,000.59 867.67
Sales Commission 152.54 139.77
Freight Outward 2,063.91 2,107.61
Total 4,861.38 4,543.35
Note 37. Exceptional Items Rs. in Lakhs
Particul For the year ended |For the year ended
articufars March 31,2024 | March 31, 2023
Profit on Sale of Assets 6.75 1.74
Prior period Expenses - -
Total 6.75 1.74
Note 38. Tax Expense Rs. in Lakhs
Particul For the year ended |For the year ended
articufars March 31,2024 | March 31,2023
Current Tax 786.97 321.87
Deferred Tax (127.49) 173.88
Adjustment of Current Tax relating to earlier years 73.18 -
Total 732.65 495.75
Note 39. Other Comprehensive Income Rs. in Lakhs
Particul For the year ended |For the year ended
articufars March 31,2024 | March 31,2023
Remeasurement Gain on Net Defined Benefit Liability 59.77 87.41
Deferred Tax effect on Remeasurement Costs on Net Defined Benefit Liability (17.36) (25.44)
Total 42.40 61.96
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Note 40. Contingent Liabilities - Not probable and therefore not provided for

Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

A. Claims disputed by the Company

Various demands raised, which in the opinion of the management are not tenable and 62.70 58.82

are pending with various Forums / Authorities
B. Outstanding Corporate Guarantees

Given to IREDA with respect to term loan to Khandaleru Power Company Limited. Khandaleru

Power company Limited during the current year has been demerged and the loan was

transferred to the resultant company Hampi Energy Limited. Hampi Energy Limited has repaid

the entire Loan of IREDA and the Corporate guarantee seize to exist. - 500.00
C. Outstanding Guarantees Given by Banks on behalf of Company 637.14 571.43
Note 41. Disclosures required under Section 22 of MSMED Act 2006 under the Chapter on Rs. in Lakhs
Delayed Payments to Micro and Small Enterprises

For the year ended|For the year ended

Particulars

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Amount remaining unpaid to micro, small and medium enterprises at the end of the year

Principal Amount 340.00 416.79

Interest thereon - -

Total 340.00 416.79

Note 42. Earnings Per Share (EPS) Rs. in Lakhs
For the year ended|For the year ended

Particulars

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Total Operations for the year

Profit / (Loss) after Tax but before Other Comprahensive income and exceptional items

Less : Adjustments for the purpose of diluted Earnings per Share
Net Profit/(Loss) for calculation of basic EPS

Net Profit as above
Exceptional iterms Gains / (Loss)
Tax Impact on Exceptional Items

Net Profit/(Loss) for calculation of basic EPS after Exceptional Items

Net Profit as above
Weighted average number of Equity Shares for Basic EPS (Refer Note 19)
Effect of dilution :

Weighted Average number of Equity shares for Diluted EPS

Basic EPS (Rs.)
Basic EPS excluding exceptional items (Rs.)
Diluted EPS on the basis of Total Operations (Rs.)

(A)

2,426.91 1,927 47
2,426.91 1,927.47
2,426.91 1,927 47
6.75 1.74
2,433.66 1,929.21
2,426.91 1,927 47
115.70 115.70
115.70 115.70
21.03 16.67
20.98 16.66
21.03 16.67
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Note 43. Defined Benefit Plans - Gratuity
The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five years or more of service gets a gratuity on
departure at 15 days salary for each completed year of service subject to a maximum of Rs. 20.00 lakhs. The plan for the same is

unfunded. Rs. in Lakhs

Gratuity

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Net Employee Benefit Expense recognized in the employee cost in Statement of Profit & Loss

Current Service Cost 109.80 96.77
Interest Cost on benefit obligation 57.93 48.78
Expected Return on Plan Assets - -
Sub Total 167.73 145.55

Recognised in Other Comprehensive Income

Net actuarial (gain) / loss recognized in the year
i. Demographic Assumptions on obligation -
ii. Financial Assumptions on obligation 10.86 (26.30)

iii. Experience Adjustments on obligation (40.04) 46.62
iv. Financial Assumptions on Plan Assets - -
Sub Total (29.18) 20.32
Net Benefit Expense 138.55 165.87

Balance Sheet
Benefit Asset / Liability

Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation 953.14 862.19
Fair Value of Plan Assets - -
Assets / (Liability) recognized in the Balance Sheet (953.14) (862.19)
Change in the Present Value of the Defined Benefit Obligation

Opening Defined Benefit Obligation 862.19 777.44
Benefit transferred in - -
Benefit transferred out - -

Benefits paid (47.60) (81.12)
Expenses Recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss

Current Service Cost 109.80 96.77
Interest Cost on Benefit Obligation 57.93 48.78
Recognised in Other Comprehensive Income

Actuarial (gain) / loss on obligation (29.18) 20.32
Closing Defined Benefit Obligation 953.14 862.19

Change in the Fair Value of Plan Assets
Opening Fair Value of Plan Assets
Contributions by employer - -
Benefits Paid (47.60) (81.12)
Expenses Recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss - -
Expected return

Recognised in Other Comprehensive Income
Actuarial (gain) / loss on plan assets

Closing fair value of plan assets (47.60) (81.12)

Assumptions

Discount Rate (%) 6.97% 7.15%
Estimated Rate of Return on Plan Assets - -
Attrition Rate (%) 11.00% 11.00%
Expected rate of salary increase (%) 10.00% 10.00%
Expected Average Remaining Service (no. of years) 6.93 6.90
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Note 43A. Defined Benefit Plans - Leave Encashment

Rs. in Lakhs

Leave Encashment
Particulars For the year ended| For the year ended
March 31,2024 | March 31, 2023
Net Employee Benefit Expense recognized in the employee cost in Statement of Profit & Loss
Current Service Cost 80.51 73.66
Interest Cost on benefit obligation 515 10.64
Expected Return on Plan Assets - -
Sub Total 85.66 84.30
Recognised in Other Comprehensive Income
Net actuarial (gain) / loss recognized in the year
i. Demographic Assumptions on obligation - -
ii. Financial Assumptions on obligation 1.04 (2.59)
iii. Experience Adjustments on obligation (31.67) (105.12)
iv. Financial Assumptions on Plan Assets - -
Sub Total (30.63) (107.71)
Net Benefit Expense 55.03 (23.41)
Balance Sheet
Benefit Asset / Liability
Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation 198.43 76.12
Fair Value of Plan Assets - -
Assets / (Liability) recognized in the Balance Sheet (198.43) (76.12)
Change in the Present Value of the Defined Benefit Obligation
Opening Defined Benefit Obligation 76.12 169.55
Benefit transferred in - -
Benefit transferred out - -
Benefits paid (49.81) (70.02)
Expenses Recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss
Current Service Cost 80.51 73.66
Short term compensated absence leave (additional liability) 117.09
Interest Cost on Benefit Obligation 5.15 10.64
Recognised in Other Comprehensive Income
Actuarial (gain) / loss on obligation (30.63) (107.71)
Closing Defined Benefit Obligation 198.43 76.12
Change in the Fair Value of Plan Assets
Opening Fair Value of Plan Assets -
Contributions by employer - -
Benefits Paid (49.81) (70.02)
Expenses Recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss - -
Expected return -
Recognised in Other Comprehensive Income -
Actuarial (gain) / loss on plan assets -
Closing fair value of plan assets (49.81) (70.02)
Assumptions
Discount Rate (%) 6.97% 7.15%
Estimated Rate of Return on Plan Assets - -
Attrition Rate (%) 11.00% 11.00%
Expected rate of salary increase (%) 10.00% 10.00%
Expected Average Remaining Service (no. of years) 6.93 7.02
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Note 44. Leases

Operating Lease : Company as lessee

The Company has entered into certain cancellable operating lease agreements mainly for office premises, land and infrastructure facilities,
which are renewable on mutual agreement with the parties. There is an escalation clause in the lease arrangements during the lease
period in line with the expected general inflation. The lease rentals charged during the year as per the agreements are as follows

Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

Future minimum lease payments under Cancellable Leases

Not later than one year 330.27 304.90
Later than one year and not later than five years 817.60 685.91
Later than five years 26.94

Operating Lease Payment recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss amounting to Rs. 330.27 lakh (Previous Year Rs. 291.83 lakh).

General description of leasing arrangement

i. LeaseAssets: Company's offices consisting of infrastructure facilities, special amenities and car parking lots.

ii. Future lease rentals are determined at the rates prescribed in the arrangement. These lease payments to be escalated as 5% to 10% on

the previous year payments.

The Company entered into a Lease agreement with RIICO at Neemrana for 99 years for two plots of Industrial Land SP-21 and SP-25.
These lease agreements commensed from 18.11.2019 and 13.01.2020 respectively for 99 years. RIICO has stipulated certain upfront
payments. The company sought some clarifications from RIICO which were finally completed in FY. 2022-23. The company has made
regular payments from time to time in the intervening period. Thus, the Asset were capitalized as a Right - to - use Assets during FY.
2022-23 as per INDAS. 116. The Lease Agreements also stipulated annual lease rents of Rs. 849/- and Rs. 805/- for plots SP-21 and SP-
25. Asthese annual lease rents are nominal and not material, they are being charged off to Profitand Loss Account.

Note 45. Capital and Other Commitments Rs. in Lakhs
Particul As at As at
articufars March 31,2024 | March 31,2023
Estimated amount of contracts not provided for 259.01 245.87

Note 46. Corporate Social Responsibility

a. Grossamountrequired to be spent by the Company during the year 2023-24 is Rs. 8.75 lakhs and for the year 2022-23 is Rs. 9.50 lakhs
b.  Amountspentduringthe yearon: Rs. in Lakhs
Particul As at As at
articutars March 31,2024 | March 31,2023
i.  Construction / Acquisition of any asset - Promoting of Education - -
ii.  On purposes other than (i) above - Promoting of Education 2218 22.26
jii. ~ Providing on job training for ITI Candidates - -
Total amount spent on CSR 22.18 22.26
CSR relating to FY 2020-21 incurred / paid in FY 2022-23
iv.  Incurred for various other activities 0.36
v.  Advance paid for various other activities -
Total - 0.36
Total amount spent on CSR 22.18 22.62
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Rs. in Lakhs
. As at As at
Particulars March 31,2024 | March 31,2023

a) Amount required to be spent by the Company during the year : 8.75 9.50
b)  Amount of expenditure incurred : 22.18 22.62
c) Shortfall at the end of the year : - -
d) *Total of previous year Shortfall : - 3.77
e) Reasons for the Shortfall ; - -
f)  Nature of CSR Activities :

i. Construction / Acquisition of any asset - Promoting of Education - -

ii. On purposes other than (i) above - Promoting of Education 2218 22.26

iii. "Providing on job training for ITI Candidates" - -

iv. Incurred for various other activities - 0.36

v. Advance paid for various other activities - -
Total amount spent on CSR 22.18 22.62
g) Details of Related Party Transactions, eg., Contribution to a Trust controlled by the

Company in relation to CSR expenditure as per relevant accounting standard:
h)  Where a provision is made with respect to a liability incurred by entering into a contractual

obligation, the movements in the provision during the year should be shown separately :
[) Opening Balance (Excess Spent available for set off from previous years) 12.76 -
i) Excess amount spent available for set off 13.43 12.76
k) Amount availablle for set off in the succeeding 3 financial years 26.19 12.76

*The unspent amount of Rs.3.77 lakhs was transferred to Swacch Bharat Khosh Fund on 13.04.2023.

Note 47. Segment reporting

Based on "the management approach"” as defined in Ind AS 108, the Chief Decision Maker evaluates the Company's performance and
allocates resources based on an analysis of various performance indicators by business segments.

Accordingly, information has been presented for each business segment. The accounting principles used in the preperation of the
Financial Statements are consistently applied to record revenue and expenditure in individual business segments and are as set out in
the significant accounting policies.

Business segments of the Company and products / services in each segment are:
1. Windoors (Colour Coated Gl Profiles (CCGI), uPVC and Aluminium Doors & Windows, ABS Doors)
2. Coatings (Wall Putties, Paints and Textures)
3. Walls (Aerated Fly Ash Blocks)
4. Services (providing services to buildings and building materials manufacturing units)
Segment Revenue and Expense;

"A) Revenue and expenses directly attributable to segments are reported under each reportable segment. All other expenses
which are not attributable or allocable to segments have been disclosed as unallocable expenses.

B) Assets and Liabilities that are directly attributable or allocable to segments are disclosed under each reportable segment. All
other assets and liabilities are disclosed as unallocable.

C) Assets and Liabilities relating to Corporate Office / Corporate Investment portfolios are disclosed as unallocable."

For the year ended March 31, 2024 Rs. in Lakhs
Particulars Coatings Walls Windoors | Unallocable | Services Total

Segment Revenue from External Customers

Within India 9,563.13 12,654.75 21,330.95 - 330.78 43,879.61
Outside India -
Inter Segment Revenue - - - - (330.78) (330.78)
Total Segment Revenue 9,563.13 12,654.75 21,330.95 - - 43,548.83
Segment Result

Within India 1,239.75 754.83 1,845.44 - 60.70 3,900.72
Outside India -
Total Segment Result 1,239.75 754.83 1,845.44 - 60.70 3,900.72
Finance Costs - - - 1,536.63 - 1,536.63
Other un allocated Income / Expenses (net) -
Profit before Tax from ordinary activities 1,239.75 754.83 1,845.44 | (1,536.63) 60.70 2,364.09
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For the year ended March 31, 2023 Rs. in Lakhs
Particulars Coatings Walls Windoors | Unallocable | Services Total
Segment Revenue from External Customers
Within India 10,155.30 12,501.03 22,378.87 - 298.59 45,333.79
Outside India -
Inter Segment Revenue 45,035.20 45,035.20
Total Segment Revenue 10,155.30 12,501.03 22,378.87 - | 45,333.79 90,369.00
Segment Result
Within India 1,342.13 204.26 2,000.74 (104.69) 67.67 3,510.11
Outside India -
Total Segment Result 1,342.13 204.26 2,000.74 (104.69) 67.67 3,510.11
Finance Costs - - - 1,662.16 - 1,662.16
Other un allocated Income / Expenses (net) -
Profit before Tax from ordinary activities 1,342.13 204.26 2,000.74 (1,766.86) 67.67 1,847.95
Segment Assets and Liabilites ]
As at March 31, 2024 Rs. in Lakhs
Particulars Coatings Walls Windoors | Unallocable | Services Total
Assets 5,265.65 10,901.39 | 20,040.54 3,350.09 258.01 39,815.68
Liabilities 3,347.48 6,809.03 | 10,257.93 2,386.87 29.59 22,830.90
As at March 31, 2023 Rs. in Lakh
Particulars Coatings Walls Windoors | Unallocable | Services Total
Assets 5,457.76 11,901.19 18,924.51 1,660.72 229.14 38,173.31
Liabilities 3,003.38 6,572.88 10,012.31 3,059.65 69.89 22,718.12

Note 48. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

a.

Capital Management

The objective of the Company's capital management structure is to ensure sufficient liquidity to support its business and provide adequate return to
shareholders. Management monitors the long term cash flow requirements including externally imposed capital requirements of the business in order to
assess the requirement for changes to the capital structure to meet the said objective. As part of this monitoring, the management considers the cost of capital
and the risks associated with each class of capital and makes adjustments to the capital structure, where appropriate, in light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. The funding requirement is met through a combination of equity, internal accruals, borrowings
orundertake other restructuring activities as appropriate.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes during the year ended March 31, 2024.

The Company's capital and net debt were made up as follows: Rs. in Lakhs
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Net debt (Debt less Cash and Cash equivalent) 4,383.11 6,469.49
Total Equity 16,756.36 15,295.95

b. Financial Risk Management Framework

Company'’s principal financial liabilities comprise Borrowings, Trade Payables and Other Financial Liabilities. The main purpose of these Financial Liabilities
is to finance the Company’s operations and projects under implementation. The Company’s principal Financial Assets include Trade Receivables, Loans,
Cash and Bank Balances and Other Financial Assets.

Risk Exposures and Responses

The Company is exposed to Market Risk, Credit Risk and Liquidity Risk. The Board of Directors reviews policies for managing each of these risks, which are
summarised below :

Market Risk

Market Risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market prices
comprise two types of riski.e. Interest Rate Risk and Commodity Risk.

Interest Rate Risk
The Company obtains financing through borrowings. The Company's policy is to obtain the most favourable interest rates available.

The Company’s exposure to Interest Rate Risk relates primarily to interest bearing Financial Liabilities. Interest Rate Risk is managed by the Company on an
on-going basis with the primary objective of limiting the extent to which interest expense could be affected by an adverse movementin interest rates.

Sensitivity Analysis

Anincrease / decrease of 100 basis points in interest rate at the end of the reporting period for the variable financial instruments would (decrease) / increase
profit before taxation for the year by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes all other variables remain constant.
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Rs. in Lakhs
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Financial Liabilities - Borrowings
+1% (100 basis points) 1,484.59 1,642.27
-1% (100 basis points) (1,484.59) (1,642.27)

There is no hedging instruments to mitigate this risk.

Commodity Risk

The Company has Commodity Price Risk, primarily related to manufacturing items and consumables. The Company monitors its purchases
closely to optimise the price.

ii. CreditRisk

Creditrisk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss.
The company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily for trade and other receivables) and from its financing activities,
including short-term deposits with banks and financial institutions, and other financial assets.

Credit Risk Management

The Company assesses the Credit Risk for each class of Financial Assets based on the assumptions, inputs and factors specific to the class of
Financial Assets.

The risk parameters are same for all Financial Assets for all periods presented. The Company considers the probability of default upon initial
recognition of asset and whether there has been a significantincrease in Credit Risk on an on-going basis throughout each reporting period. In
general, itis presumed that Credit Risk has significantly increased since initial recognition if the payments are more than 30 days past due. A
default on a Financial Asset is when the counterparty fails to make contractual payments when they fall due. This definition of default is
determined by considering the business environment in which entity operates and other macro-economic factors.

Trade Receivables : The Company’s exposure to Credit Risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. The
demographics of the customer, including the default risk of the industry and country in which the customer operates, also has an influence on
credit risk assessment. Credit Risk is managed through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring the
creditworthiness of customers to which the Company grants credit terms in the normal course of business.

Bank Deposits : The Credit Risk is considered negligible, since the counterparties are reputable banks with high quality external credit ratings.

Other Financial Assets : The Company ensures concentration of credit does not significantly impair the Financial Assets since the customers
to whom the exposure of credit is taken are well established and reputed industries engaged in their respective field of business. The
creditworthiness of customers to which the Company grants credit in the normal course of the business is monitored regularly.

The maximum exposure for Credit Risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of Financial Assets as stated in the Balance Sheet. The
Company does not hold any credit derivatives to offset its credit exposure.

Liquidity Risk
Liquidity Risk arises from the Financial Liabilities of the Company and the Company’s subsequent ability to meet its obligations to repay its
Financial Liabilities as and when they fall due. The Company regularly monitors its risk to a shortage of funds.

The Company’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of working capital facilities and
borrowings. The Company has reviewed the borrowings maturing within 12 months.

The following table details the remaining contractual maturities of the Company's Financial Liabilities at the end of the reporting period, which
are based on the contractual undiscounted cash flows and the earliest date the Company is required to pay:

Rs. in Lakhs
Particulars Weighted average
interest rate (%) Less than 1 Year | More than 1 year
March 31, 2024
Borrowings - Variable Interest Rate 10.55% 5,930.59 -
Borrowings - Fixed Interest Rate 11.15% 3,026.90 2,535.44
Trade Payables & Other Financial Liabilities - 3,414.98 -
Total 12,372.48 2,535.44
March 31,2023
Borrowings - Variable Interest Rate 10.55% 4,563.00 -
Borrowings - Fixed Interest Rate 11.15% 2,832.87 4,899.41
Trade Payables & Other Financial Liabilities - 3,639.33 -
Total 11,035.19 4,899.41
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c. Financial Instruments by Category ,
For amortised cost instruments, carrying value represents the best estimate of fair value. Rs. in Lakhs
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Amortised Cost Amortised Cost
Financial Assets
Investments 3,849.42 3,053.95
Trade Receivables 8,709.31 8,443.29
Cash and Cash Equivalents 268.78 265.04
Bank Balances 910.45 998.56
Other Financial Assets 1,726.13 57113
Total 15,464.09 13,331.96
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings 8,466.04 9,462.40
Trade Payables 3,414.98 3,639.33
Other Financial Liabilities 3,026.90 2,832.87
Total 14,907.92 15,934.60

Note 49. Related Party Transactions for the year ended Mar 31, 2024
a) Names of Related Parties and description of relationship.

S.No. Subsidiary Company

1 NCL ASL Services Private Limited (Formerly Span Tile Mfg. Co. Pvt. Ltd.)

S.No. Associate Company
1 NCL Veka Private Limited (Formerly NCL Veka Limited )

S. No. Joint Venture Firm
NCL Buildtek & NCL Industries JV

Key Management Personnel and Relatives
Bh. Subba Raju - Managing Director

=
L

Kalidindi Ravi - Director

Kalidindi Gautam - Director (Appointed w.e.f. 10.11.2022)
Satya Subram Kapula - Wholetime Director

D Niranjan Reddy - Independent Director

OCoOoO~NOoODOaPRWN-—-W

P Madhavi - Director (Appointed w.e.f. 10.02.2022)

10 Madhavi Bangalore - Chief Financial Officer (Appointed w.e.f. 10.02.2022)

" U. Divya Bharathi - Company Secretary
12 Roopa Bhupatiraju - Relative

13 Pooja Kalidindi - Wholetime Director( Appointed w.e.f. 08.11.2023)

14 Sonali Gandhi - Relative
15 K. Rajani - Relative
16 K. Susmitha Bindu - Relative

17 K. Venkata Vishnu Raju- Independent Director (Appointed w.e.f. 30.07.2022)

Kallepalli Narasaraju - Independent Director (Resigned w.e.f. 10.02.2022)
Venkata Jagannadha Raju Vatsavayi - Wholetime Director (Appointed w.e.f. 01.08.2021)

Kamlesh Suresh Gandhi - Chairman & Independent Director (Chairman w.e.f. 30.07.2022)

S.No. Enterprises Controlled or significantly influenced by Key Management Personnel or their Close Family Members

1 NCL Industries Limited

Khandaleru Power Company Limited (Demerged - Resultant Company - Hampi Energy Limited)

2
3 NCL Homes Limited

4 NCL Green Habitats Private Limited
) Kakatiya Industries Private Limited
6 NCL Holdings (A&S) Limited
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Additional Information pursuant to Para 2 Part lll of General Instructions for Preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements
Note 49 A RPT Disclosure

Name of the Entity Net Assets ( Total Share in Share in Other Compre|Share in Total Compre
Assets - Total Liabilities) Profit or Loss hensive Income hensive Income
as % of Conso as % of Conso as % of Conso as % of Conso
lidated Assets Amount lidated Amount lidated Other Amount lidated Total Amount
Profit & Loss Comprehensive Comprehensive
income income

NCL Buildtek Limited (formerly NCL | 98.79% |16,756.36 | 65.44% | 1,592.55 | 97.66% 41.41 94.61% |18,390.32
Alltek & Seccolor Ltd.)
NCL ASL Services ( formerly Span 1.21% 205.87 1.88% 45.64 2.34% 0.99 1.30% 252.50
Tile Mfg. Company Private Limited)

NCL Buildtek Limited & NCL Industries JV - - | -347% (84.43) - - -0.43% (84.43)
NCL Veka Private Limited - - | 36.16% 879.90 - - 4.53% 879.90
( formely NCL Wintech India Limited)

Total 100% 16,962 100% | 2,433.66 100% 42.40 100% |19,438.30
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Note.50. Analytical Ratios : Rs. in Lakhs
Ratios Reasons for
Particulars Numerator Denominator As at Asat |Variance >25%
March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023 variance
a) [ Current Ratio Current Assets Current Liabilities 1.13 1.21 -1%
b) | Debt-Equity Ratio Total Debt Shareholders Equity 0.60 0.73 -17%
There is a reduction
c) | Debt-Service Coverage Ratio | Earnings Available for | Debt Service 0.90 0.61 49% [N debtdam:. V‘gtlh
Debt Service improved pro itability
there is an
improvement in
debt service ratio.
d) | Return on Equity Ratio Net Profit after Taxes | Average Shareholders Equity |  12.64% 11.38% 1%
e) | Inventory Turnover Ratio Sales Inventory 7.09 7.65 -1%
f) | Trade Receivables Turnover Ratio| Net Credit Sales Average Trade Receivables 5.00 5.33 -6%
g) | Trade Payables Turnover Ratio | Purchases of Services| Average Trade Payables 6.74 6.91 -2%
and other Expenses
h) [Net Capital Turnover Ratio Net Sales Average Working Capital 7.34 9.87 -26% | Due to increase
in CC limits
Due to improvement
) [Net Profit Ratio Net Profit Net Sales 5.59% 4.28% 30% {in the profitability
j) [Return on Capital Employed | Earnings before Capital Employed 15.93% 14.53% 10%
Interest and Taxes
k) |Return on Investment Income generated | Time Weighted Average | 12 649% 1.38% | 1%
from Investments Investments

Note 51- Other Disclosures

i) The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami property.

(
(i) The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction of charges which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.
(i)~ The Company has not traded orinvested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

(iv)  The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(is), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or
otherwise) that the Company shall: (a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding
Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or (b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(v)  Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(is), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the
Intermediary shall: (a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate
Beneficiaries) or (b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(vi)  The Company does not have any transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax
assessments under the Income TaxAct, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income TaxAct, 1961.

(vii)  The Company is not declared as willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution (as defined under the Companies Act, 2013) or consortium thereof or other lender in
accordance with the guidelines on willful defaulters issued by the Reserve Bank of India.

(viii)  The Company has complied with the number of layers for its holding in downstream companies prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with the Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017.

(ix)  The Company does not have any transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax
assessments under the Income TaxAct, 1961

(x)  The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right-of-Use Assets) during the year.

(xi)  The company is not having any transactions with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of the Companies Act, 1956.

=

Note 52. Previous year figures have been regrouped / reclassified where ever necessary, to conform to those of the current year.

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements

As per our report attached For and on behalf of the Board

For Anant Rao & Mallik NCL Buildtek Limited

Chartered Accountants (formerly NCL Alltek & Seccolor Ltd.)

Firm Reg. N0.006266S

V. Anant Rao Bh. Subba Raju K. Satya Subram
Partner Managing Director Executive Director
Membership No. 022644 DIN-08408400 DIN: 07573350
Place : Hyderabad B. Madhavi U. Divya Bharathi
Date : May 30, 2024 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
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GO GREEN INITIATIVE

Go Paperless. It's EASY!

Dear Shareholder,

As you may be aware, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Govt. of India, as part of its “Green Initiative in Corporate
Governance” has issued Circular no. 17/2011 dated 21/04/2011 and Gircular No.18/2011 dated 29/04/2011
permitting service of documents by Companies, to its shareholders, through electronic mode instead of

physical mode.

Accordingly, as per the Company’s “GO GREEN” initiative, the Company shall send documents,
including Notice of General Meetings and Annual Report of the Company, in electronic form to
Email ID of the shareholders registered with Company, instead of physical mode.

However, shareholders may note that as a member of the Company, shareholders opting to
receive documents in electronic mode will be entitled to receive all such communication in physical
form, upon request made by them to the Company.

Shareholders having shares in physical form should provide their Email Id to the Company for opting to receive notices /
documents electronically. To Register the E-mail ID with the company shareholders are requested to submit the following Form
duly filled & signed by the shareholders at the forthcoming AGM or send it by post at the registered office of the Company.

GO GREEN FORM

To
NCLBUILDTEKLIMITED
(Formerly NCL Alltek & Seccolor Limited)

As perthe “Green initiative in the Corporate Governance” of the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, | hereby opt to receive
service of documents by companies, including Annual Report, in electronic mode, and request you to register my
Email ID as stated below for the same.

Name of Shareholder(s)*

Folio No./ DP ID - Client ID

No. of Share held as on Date*

E-mail ID (Permanent)*

E-mail D (Alternative)

ContactNo. (Mobile)*

Contact No. (Fixed Line)*

Signature*

Fields marked with “** are compulsory
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GO GREEN INITIATIVE

WHY GO PAPERLESS

Because it'll make you feel good about yourself. Not only will you be
doing the environment a favor, you'll also be improving both
your personal and professional lives.

We've transitioned into the Digital Age, and going
paperless is a step in the right direction.

A =

SAVE TREES SAVE DATA

It takes about 2.4 trees to produce Paper copies are often lost or
10 reams (500 sheets) of misplaced, which is why digitizing your
non-recycled printing paper documents is the way to go.

=
SAVE TIME SAVE SPACE

Professionals spend about 50% of Not only do paper documents

their time searching for information, increase clutter on your desk, the

and roughly 18 minutes on average important ones are generally stored
locating each document away in large filing cabinets, which

take up a lot of floor space
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Some of our

PRESTIGIOUS
CUSTOMERS

@ L&T Cpns truction

aw

TATA
TATA PROJECTS

ANDHRA PRADESH
STATE HOUSING
CORPORATION

NCC

NCC Limited

N
APARNA

Shriram

Properties
Homes that live in you

N2

-_ -

RAIAPL ISHPA

ETHA VT LT

‘whapeiny lwastmti

&

Prssiiee

Al Pestige o yosut (i

AUROBINDO

3% JAYABHERI

UNIVERSITY OF
SOUTH ASIA

SER

RUPATI

iﬁ[]}]-ﬂ

TIRUPATI

aurobindo |

REALTY

SRIAS
WILIFE SPACES

CYBERCITY

BUBLORNS & DEVELORENS PYT. LTD

...who rely on NCL
in their pursuit of creating
a happy abode.

gt

Logos/ Trade Marks displayed above are for identification purpose only. All trademarks are the property of their respective owners.




Z#&  NCL

NCL GROUP BUILDTEK LTD

+91 40 6831 3333

contactus@nclbuildtek.com
www.nclbuildtek.com

NCL Buildtek Ltd.,
10-3 - 162, 5th Floor, NCL Pearl SD Road,
East Maredpally, Secunderabad - 5000026.

OUR BRANDS:

s NCL
NCL[iliok|| [NCLaftek| | [NCL[altek| | warLx
| S UTPE PUTTY

NCL | NCL NC N(~ L
PAINTS FETO LRELAS N?g ;Tﬁ les ADH ESIVES

[Inos [ Noing| NCL | saccotor

UPYC WINDOWS AND DODRS ALUMINIUS WINDOWS AND DOORS

o J
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